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Honorable Judges of the Suppeme Court—— ; *
of. New Jersey { %

State House Annex
'I'mnto\n,{ New Jersey 08625

RE: State v. Clark E. Squire
Docket No.

Honorable Sirs: .

. This letter is intended to serve in lieu of a formal petition for
certification in'the abovescaptioned matter. The defendant will rely on his
Appellate Division Brief and Appendix in support of his Petition for Certification.

The defendant, Clark E. Squire, was indicted by the Middlesex County Grand
Jury with Joann Chesimard in Indictment No. 1436-72 charging: (1) murder; (2) -
murder; (3) atrocious assault and battery; (4) assault and battery on a police
officer; (5) dssault with an offensive weapon; (6) assault with intent to kill;
(7) possession of an illegal weapon; and (8) armed robbery. Following a mistrial,
the Honorable Leon Gerofsky, A.J.S.C., granted a defense motion and ordered the
Ampaneling of a foreign jury. i

: T
During the jury voir dire, defendant Chesimard bgcame pregnant and was
severed from. the trial.

Following this, trial was held before the Honorable John E. Bachman, J.C.C.,
a Jury, from January 2, 1974 to March 11, 1974. After the Court dismissed '
» the defendant was found guilty of all remaining counts. On March 15,

Bachman sentenced the defendant as follows: ecount (1), life
nt; count (6), 10 to 12 years; counts (3) (4) and (5) were merged with
count (6); courf (7), 2 to 3 years; and count (8), 12 to 15 years, all sentences
to be served consecutively. -
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Thereaf't; on June 18, 1974, Judge Bachman denied defendant's motion .,
for a new tﬂﬁ The notice of appeal filed on March 25, 1974. The
- State then filed a cross appeal and defel t's unopposed motion to dismiss »
the cross appeal was granted by the Appellate Division on March 7, 1974.

The Appellat;e Division affirmed déf‘erdant's con{lic;tion on May 20, 1976.

Defendant relied on the following points in his appeal: : S

" 1. Joint representation of the defendant by -co-counsel, who was also
counsel for a severed co-defendant, violated the defendant's r:lght to effective
assistance of counsel under the 6th and 14th amendments since a conflict of
interest existed between the fendants. It 1s clear from- the Appellate .
Division opinion that the Court red the holding in United States Ex. Rel.
Hart v. Dam 478 R.2d 203 (3 Cir. 1973), wherein the Court stated that
representation of co-defendants at a joint trial is defective upon a showing
of a possible conflict of interest, however remote,regardless of whether any
specific prejudice can be shown. See also, State v. Ebinger, 97 N.J. Super. 23,
. 27 (App. Div. 1967).

2. .The Court committed reversible error in qualiMrv an expert witmess
1tself and pemltr.ing him to testii‘y outside the scope of any alleged expertise.

. 3 The Court err-ed in !‘aﬂi.ng to charge that the defendant may be puilty
ot the crime of b@ing an-accessory after the fact

< Y, The Court's charge to the jury was erroneous in fhat it falled to :
instruct the jJury that it could find the defendant puilty of mnslaug:tar rather
than murder. ¢

5. 'The Court committed error by admitting a finge: card bearing the ¢
defendant's fingerprints and personal information in tl doing so was a violation . .
of Rule 55 of the New Jersey Rules of Evidence. . ;

6. The Court-abused its discretion in admitting photegraphs-of the victim
into evidence, s!nce prejudice arising from the photographs outweighed any
pmbative value
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’Ihe‘ecutor 's relrm-ks during the summation were improper
4 L and® px'eJudicial to the defendant.

8. The aggregate of legal error at the trial created an atmosphere
so0 hostile and prejudicial to the defendant as to preclude t:he mniering of -ui:
a fair and impartial verdict.- ~ §
-
i o 9. It was error for the trial court bo deny defendant's mocion for
% Judgment of acquittal on the ground of robbery, since on the evidence produced

e no reasonable jury could have found the de!'emmt puilty of robbery beyond a
" - reasonablg doubt. %

' % 10" The défendant's convict;ion for robbery should have merged with
: his coﬂviction for murder.

3 ¢ 11. The verdict below was against the welght of the evidence as to the
] - assault and robbery counts. : )

12. The defendant's sentence, 1s rranifestly excessive and uﬂduly punitive.

-and the opinion below, it is respectfully requested that the de!‘endant‘

3 : RS
i Therefore, based upon the defendant's Appellate Division brief. and
h _appendix,

g petition for certil‘ioation be granted.

Respectmlly submitted,
; STANIEY C. VAN NESS

R 3 Public Defender 2
; » Attomey for Defendmt-Petitiomr

SNOWDEN ,

Deputy Public Dew



'NOT FOR PUBLICATION WITHOUT THE APPROVAL
OF THE C ITTEE ON OPINIONS

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JBRSH

APPELLATE DIVISION
A-1882-73 .

 _/ STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
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Stanley C. Van Ness, Public Defender of New .
Jersey, attorney).

Hr. William Welaj, Deputy Attorney General,
argued the cause for respondent (Mr. William
F. Hyland, Attorney General of New Jersey,
attorney) .

PER CURIA“. 07 e
Tried to a jury, defendant wasfgonvicted/of (a) murdef 1; ;»
the first degreé for killing NfW‘Jeréby State Tioopgr'Woerne:
Foerster, (b) the armed robbe;} of Foerster, (c) assault with e

#ytlﬁe,to *1;1.New Jersey State Tiooper James Harper (other

.
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’ztllind'convleﬁlﬁnn were merged herein wheqfsentence was imposed)
and (d) the unlawful possession of a gun without a permit. He
was lentenced to State Prison for life on the nurder conviction.
On the convictiors for armed robbery, assault with the intent to
xill andAinlawful possession of a gun, he was sentenced to con-
lccuﬁiVﬁ terms of 12-15jyears;‘!0-12 years and 2-3 years, respec-

ts.voly.

rhe rolevant and essentially uncontroverted facts (defendant
did not testify) were amply sufficient for .the jury to find the
tollowtnq: At about 12:45 a.m., on May 2, 1973, Harper stopped
a car being driven by da(endant in a southerly direction on the
New Jersey Turnpike because it had a defective taillight. Harper's
car came to a stop a short distance behind defendant's car, at a
point about 200 yards south of the Turnpike Administration building.
The passengers in defendant's car were James Costan, seated in the
rear, and Joanne Chesimard, seated in the front passenger seat.
pefendant and Harper exited their respective cars and met midw;y
between both vehicles where defendant produced a New York driver's
license issued to one Archie Gibson, ;nd a Vernontvcar registration
bearing ‘a female's name as ownet.' pefendant~told Hafper he had
porrowed the car and was headed for Philadelphia. Harper then
went to,dotenauné's car to check its serial number against the

registration certificate. when Chesimard told Harper they were on

SRS

-
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their way to w:shlngton, D. c., he became suspicious and aaked

tor their identifications.

At about this point Foerster, who had been previously sum—'
moned _y Harper to help him, called out "Jim, look what % found,"
and held up a clip for an au‘.nptic weapon. Simultaneously there-
with, Harp;r ordered Costan and Chesimard to place their hands on
their laps. When Cheuima;d did not obey his command, but instead
made a loud sound and a "gritting face" and moved her right hand
toward ‘her ieq, he regreated toward hiq car. While retreating
Harpeg was shot in the{shouldar, presumably by Costan or Chesimard.
Chesimard got out of the car firing a gun. Shots were exchanged
ﬁnd Chesimard fell wounded but continued her firing. Harper saw
' Foerster grappling with defendant and heard shots fired. Ilarper

exchanged shots with Costan during the course of which Harper shot
;nd presuﬂ;bly wound,  or iilled Costan, Harper then ran toward

(s”the Turnpike Headqua crs for help - while running he heard mbre
shots being fired, <)
Other trooper: -onverged at the scene and found Foerster's
5 . car parked behind Ha "per's. Boéh cars had‘lightu on unq the motors
were running. Fderster was dead and his‘;ody was found lying by
thg"ight rear door of HAfper's car, A New York driver's license
and a social secuA-t/ card bearing the name of Archie Gibson wae
found nea:by A reqistracion certificate issued to one Isabelle 4

Johnson, for thc car defendant was driving, was also found nearby.‘
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_ defendant's car had "spun out" in leaving the area and headed

m marks on the road in front of Harper's car indicated that

south.

Défendant‘s car was found by Trooper Robert Polentchar sev;
;{a'l miles south of wh‘iﬂurper's car was parked. Polentchar
saw a black man, wearin§ a white jacket, emerge from the woods
bogdefinq the highway and approach the parked car. When the man

failed to stop when ordered to do so, Pélentchar fired several

. shots but missed him. Defendant was captured in the general ut;a

at 2 g.m., on May’3, f973. He had in his possession keys which
fittédvthe 1gn1t18n and doors of his car and a white jacket. He
had no gun. He had Q wound or cut -on the_web of his right hand
between his thumb and first finger wh}ch the jury could £ind result-
ed from the slide of anyimpropetly held automatic weapon.

Chesimard was also found in the area of defendant's car. She v
was ﬁbunded'andﬁunaile to stand. Costan was found dead, with a
bullet wouﬁd in his chest, in the nearby woods with Foerster's
guﬁ near his body. Also found near Costan's body was a .380 caliber
Browning automatic. A clip with 13 rounds of ammun}!ion for an :
automatic weapon Qas found in Costan{;'pockeca, and on his body was
a belt.with a black holster strapped to his back. :

The State's proofs further revealed that Foerster died as the

-result of two bullets fired at close range from his own gun which

enééred his neck and head. There were additional hullet wounds in

O
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his chest and arm whiéh:did notbcause his death. All the weapons
found, other than Foerster's, were jammed and could not ha fired.
pefendant abpeais from the 5udgment of conviction and raises,

the Eollowing issues in his brief:

-
i Point T [ Joint representabion of de- : :
N fendant by co-coulnsel, one % &

of whom was counsel for a .

severed co-defendant, violated
defendant's right to effective
assistance of counsel under the
Sixth and Fourtéenth Amendments.

Point II - The court erred in qualifying ‘
Chief Mullin as an expert wit- ] 3

- ‘ness and permitting him to
( testify outside the scove of : j
any alleged expertise. . o
Point III - The court erred in failing to %
X B charge accessory after the fac . 3
: as requested by counsel. Bl : . €

. Seint-IV > The court's charge to the jury .
e . was erroneous in ‘that it failed .
to instruct on manslaughter. '

—~ o

Point V. - Admission of,.a fingerprint card
violated R. 55 of the New Jersey
Rules of Evidence and the New 3 &
= Jersey and United States Consti- - .
tution.

Point VI - The court abused its discretion \
in admitting photographs of the ¢ y .
victims in evidence. (Partially s
raised below).

Point VII -~ The prosccutor's remarks during 9
summation were improper and pre-
judicial to the dcfendant (Not -
# i raised below) 3! .
Point VIII - The aggregate of. legal errors
*at the trial created an atmosphere
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" however, to briefly discuss-Points I, IV, V, IX, X and XI.

© and overwhelming circumstantial proofs presented, warranted the

so hostile and prejudicial
to the defendant as to pre-
clude the rendering of a fair
and impartial verdict (Not
“raised below).

Point I - It was error for the court to -
& deny defendant's motion for
judgment of acquittal on the
robbery count, since on the
evidence produced no reason-
yos able jury could have found
M ' guilt beyond a reaspnable
3 3 doubt. «

L

Point X - Defendant's conviction for e
robbery merged with his con-
viction for murder. (Not
(» = raised below). >

Point XI - The verdict below was against
the weight of the evidence as
to the assault and robbery
counts.

Point XII -~ The defendant's sentence is
manifestly excessive and un- . -
. % & duly punitive. >

We have considered all the issues advanced and find them to be

clearly without merit. R. 2:11-3(e)(2). We deem it adviéable,‘

At the outset, it will sufgjce for. our purposes to indicate
g - . -

that the testimony of the State's eyewitnesses, and the itronq

ju;yLs fihding beyond a reasonable' doubt that defendant was guilty

of the charges for which he was convtf%?d.-;
Lo

J

Dofendant and chesimard had been separately indicted on sim- 2 «‘,“




ilar charges and were jointly schediled to stand trial. Prior

‘

to the scheduled trial date Raymond Brown, a New Jersey ;tﬁorney,

. - .
moved for the admission pro hac vice of €harles McKinney, a New

\-ngk attorney, to try the case for defendant, and for the admissioﬁ
of Ebelyn Williams to try the case for Chesimard. The motions were
granted with the understanding that Brown ard other attorneys frc@

.his office,; would assist Qgring the ttial ané,~if neéessary, be

prepared to take over the trial if either McKinney, Williams, or

both, dro‘

L or were prevented from continu{\g their respective
representations &fgdefendant and Chesimard. : i

Duriné the selection of aijury it was learned that Chesimard :
was pregnant.' She was,‘therefore, severcd:from tﬂc trial. Brown
,assisfed McKinney during defendant's trial by participating in the
examination of witnesseé and during motions made during and after °

trial. Tt is how contended that Brown's participation in.defendant's

trial violated defendant's right to effective ad®istarce of couniel

o presumably because Brown was in a conflict of interest'pésition -

since he was acting on behalf of defendant and Chesimard., We dis-
agree. : : =g : £
It is clear from an examination of the record that when de-
fendant and Chesimard were joined for trial that the attorne&s
inégnded to act as a team ané'bresent a common,defense. Appellant

admitted at oral argunent that if the trial had nat been- severud 563
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‘or saié«;ﬁything to prejudice défendant. In fact, the record is
v y »

'assoc;ate in this case, Mr. Brown from Jersey City #*%." M0 now

'a;gue defendant was prejudiced, without showing how he was pre-

315 U.S. 827 (1942) and in Roth v. United States, 315 U.S. 827

tnere could bé no claim of conflict of 1Aterest. > £ ghis }s S0,
and we find it to pe so, how can defendant's scparate trial beb
deemed improbéé? When the trial was severed Brown did only what
he kouwave done had i#%'been a joint trial. There is absolutely
nothing in the record’hhich in .any way supports theﬁassertion that

McKinney was "chilled" in defending defendant, ot that Brown did

to the contrary.

o

When the, motion for severance was made, defense counsel ob:/

Jécted, claiming it"would be prejudicial to ':fen@ant because "We
have been acting as a team in relation to thc defense of this case
%% " At the commencement of summation McKinney showed his appréc-

iation for Brown's assistance by publicly thanking his " *** able . ..

judiced, lqcks substance. Glasser, et al. v. United States, 315

U.S. 60 (1942), rehearing denied in Kretske v. United States,

(1942) ; Kruchten v. Eynan, 406 F 2d 304, 311-312 (9 Cir. 1969)

:
4
2
k
!
3
G
3.
‘

modified on o?ge— grounds 408 U.S. 934 (1972), reh. den. 409 D.s.

897 (1972); Frya: v. Urited States, 404 F. 2d 1071, 1073 (10 Cir. j

19€8), cert, Gden. 395 U.S. 964 (1969); United States v. De Berry

487 F, 24 1?, 452 (2 Cir. 1973); Marxuach v. United States, 398

F. 2d 8, 551-‘562 a cir. 1968) , cert. den. 393 n S. 982 (1968);




United States v. Cozzi, 354'5. 2d 637 (7 Cir. 1965), cert. den.

383 U.S. 911 (1966); Porter v. United States, 298 F. 2d 461, 463-
464 (5 Cir. 1962); Craig v. United States, 217 F. 2d 355, 358~

359 (6 Cir,' 1954); State v. Smith, 59 N.J. 297, 300 (1971). We
do not belie\hhe ‘holding in United States ex rel. Hart v. Daven-

M,. 478 F. 2d 203 (3 Cir.-1973) that representation by one at-
torney in a joint trial of six defendants is defective upon the
showing of a possible conffict- of interest, however remote, should
be applied to the 1nstant"_case. In Hart the defendants clearly;‘_
had dif(erent c}onflicting interests which were the compelling reasons

for the court's holding. As indicated, defendant here had separate

counsel.who very ably represented him when he had little or nothing _
to present as a defense, and where not.even a possible conflict of

interest has been shown. At best, Hart represents a minority view

thaty we are not prepared to adopt in view of the circumstances ex-
isting herein.
If it could be said that a conflict existed, such was induced,

encouraged, acquiesced in or consented to by defense counsel and

i e R R R A

no claim of prejudicial erref can be predi;:ated thereon absent

a clear demonstration that prejudice resulted. See State v. Harper,
128 N.J. Super. 270, 277 (App. Div. 1974), certif. den. 65 N.J.

574 (1974). No such showing has been made.

¥

II.

Defendant alleges the trial judge erred in failing tq instruct

the jury that they could return a verdict of mhslauqhtez.‘ He '




argnes the jury could have believed that reasonable provocation
k existeé so as to justify defendant's nctions once the shooting
.started., In short, he is saying the jury should have been per-
mitted to.infkr \‘t defendant had been unlawfully arrested, or-
that excessive force ﬁas being uUsed by Foerster or Harper in arrest-
iﬁg him, which would make his use of force excusable® thus reducing
the offense from nmurder to manslaughter.‘ ) -
There is no merit to this contention. The record is barren
of any progf which could give rise to the defense of voluntary or
involuntary manslaughter. If-the trial judge had charqed manslaughter
on this rqcord, he would have improperly permitted the jury to spec-

ulate on a factual issue not supported b§ the evidence. See State
7

v.‘Artis, 57 N.J. 24 (1970); State v. Godser, 50 N.J. 438 (1967) ,
cert. dep. 390 U.S. 1035 (1968); State v. Di Paolo, 34 N.J. }79,
298-299 (1961), cert. den. 368 U.S. 880 (1961); tate v. Wynn, 2
N.J. 264 (1956).

: IIT.
Defendant further asserts_the trial judge erred in allowing
into evidence a fingerprint é;ré of the New York Police Department
v . of one Archie Gibson which merely contained the prints and the
officer's signature. ‘The trial judge allowed the card into eQi-
dence, without objection or a request for a limiting,insgruction,
because . the State proved that the prints on the card were those
of defandant. and, therefore, under Evid. R. 55 it was admissible to

‘prove identity. Defendant admits its relevancy but argues that s

WU R, e v A

"




ﬁﬁdez Evid. R. 4 it should have been excluded because its probative
value suhstantially outweighed the prejudice resultxng from its ad- @

mission. We disaqree.‘ »

B R T AL RN

-

'rhe tehtimony %: admissible as an exception under vad R.
55 because it was relevant to, show "okkk motive, intent, plan, K
knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake or accident." State v.

Zwillman, 112 N.J. Super. 6, 17~ 19 (App. Div,. 1970), certif. den.

57 N.J. 603 (1971). 1In addition, the connéction between defendant a

and his use of the name Archie Gibson was vitally important to the

State's case nce defendant when stopped by Harper produced a
driver's license bearing that name, and various documents were found

by the pollce'ln the trunk of defendant's car bearing the name

4 §

N ; % {
Archie Gibson. Thus, in effect, it was part of the res gestae and bl

i37, l40-14i (App. Div. 1967). Furthermore, _ich proof raised the

g
therefore admissible. Evid. R. 64; State v. Jones, 94 N.J. Super.
almost inescapable inference that defendant actually or constructive-
\

:
5
5
+
r
4
1

ly possessed the ammunition in the trunk and the automatic guns in
the car, and was at the outset codperating with Harper and Foerster
to allay suspicion and avoid a car search. '

Pinally, since defendant d1d not object to the admission of

the fingerprint card or request a limiting instruction under Evid.
R. 64 it became necessary for defendant to show that the error was

fairly capable of pruducing an unjust result. R. 2:10-2; State v.

; Lair, 62 N.J. 388, 392 (1973); so viewed, we perceive no error,




let alone plain error. State v. Edge, 57 N.J. 580, 588 (1971);
: State v. Macon, 57 N.J. 325, 333 (1971).
ey : v.

: S ’ v
In Poigts IX and X of defendant's brief he argues (a) the

trial judge should have entered a judgment of acquittal on the
a:qu.robberQ?chargﬁ ané (b) as plain error that the armed rob-

bery cbnvlction'merged with ﬁis conyiction for murder. The thesis
-

;

; . .
i advanced is that even though defendant may have taken Foerster's é
gun from him and killed him, he had no 1ntcntion of stealing the gun &

o

and, any event, the robbery merged into the murdef since it was -g

: part of the same continuing event. Again, we do not agree.
‘At the outset,wé boint to the significant fact, overlooked

by defendant, that this case was'not presented as a "felony murder."

. The indictment charged defendant with unlawfully murdexing Foerstér
T ;'Néw Jersey State Trooper then and there acting in the per-’
formance of his duties while in uniform, contrary to the provisions

weof ﬁégég. 2A:113-1 and N.J.S. 2A:113-2 #%%."  The case was tried -
on that basis and tﬁevtrial judge instructed the jury in accordance

with the-dictates of State v. Madden, 61 N J. 377 (1972), ‘and not

Ao L VORI 1

on the theory of a felony murder. Unquestionably, if this had b-on %
. the usual case of a homicide committed during the course of a robbnty & :
a merger would result. See State v. Hubbard, 123 N.J. Super. 345 7 viad

i & = k)

(Apé; Div. 1973), certif. den. 63 N.J. 325 (1973) and cases cited




thcros.n.

Based on the uncontroverted proofs the jury was warranted

s

~ in finding that during the course of the struggle botwecn defendant g ;;
and Foerster,  defendant used his own gun in wourdirg Tcerster.
Theredfter, he forcibly took the gun from Foérster for the pﬁipdse
of (a) killing him as evidenced by the close range at which the ,.» .;
fatal shots were fired nnd (b) using gc to prevent his capture : b,
since his gun and his accomplicos' guns were inoperable. Bych a
finding is consiacent with defendant's having carried Foerstot'u

gun wit‘_him for a distance of several miles from where Foerster

was killed. So too, the jury could rcuqonably infer that defendant v
left tke gun near COstan s body to uvcrt suspicion from himself ¢‘,/"“
or to lay the groundwork for a subsequent claim that costan killed b o
Foerltori This theory is underatnndable when considered din the

lighE“ot the defense p*ojected at trial that Costan fired the fntal

shots.

<

In summary, giving the State the benefit of ali\xeauoqablo
inferences to be drawn tro; the teatlm&ny, defendant's mption for
judgment of acquittal was-properly denied. State v. Reyes, 50 i Tf“‘—fﬁff
N.J. 454 (1967). The proofs warranted a finding that by the use : ;

of force defendant took Foerster's gun with the intgnt to steal it

and pormunently deprive him of it. State v. Muxbarrx, 52 N.J.
413 (I!")o gert. den. 393 U.S. 1043 (1969).

-




Slktvile, ‘the ‘armed rohbery did not merge into the murder

conviceioﬁ because under the circumstances existing in this cuse,

the armed robbery was a separate and distxnct offense from the
: murﬁer. The proofs supporting one offense are ncithcr components of
noi:‘”gompﬁble to proofs supportinq the other. The fact that these
separate crimes arose out of the same criminal episode merely made
it mandatory that the State join the offenses so as -to dispose of
‘them at one ume."seat. v. Gregory, 66 N.J. 510, 518 (1975).

i V.
Finally, we find no merit in defendant's bate and unsupported

assertion that the sentencea ‘imposed were‘manifestly excessive and e
unduly punitive. 1In view of the heinous nature of this. brutal nne,—”‘—f’i

senseleas murder of a police officer, committed while he was per-u

forming his duty to protect socloty, the consecutive sentences im-
posed were warranted and no showing has heen neﬂe that the tY¥ial
”judge ebused his sentencing discretion. State v. Tyson, 43 N.J.
411, 417 (1964), cert. den. 380 U.S. 987 (1965). S %
Affirmed.

A TRUZ COPY . . ; £
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INTRODUCTION

% ~

: P -

The entire record of the instant appeal encompasses some
36 volumes of testimony. During the preparation of appellant's
brief, for clarity, each volume was assigned an ordered volume

£

number, indicated in the gppér right corner of the title page

_ for each volume. : Only those volumes dealing with trial testi- -

mony and those dealing with‘ motions or other matters raised in
appellant's brief have been submitted with this brief. Thus,
“ .;11 volumes are not inéluded here. Hence, tt}:‘ following cita-
“tion ‘fom for reference to the record has been adopted by
Ippe]:htg coungel: example, 26T 144, 16-1_9. indicates volull;
2§? page 144, lines 1:6—19.
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PROGEDURAL_HISTORY,

The defendant, Clark E. Squire, was indicted by the Middlesex
County Grand Jury with Joann Chesimard in Indictment No. 1436-72
charging: (1) murder; (2) murder; (3) atrocious assault and “battery;
(4) assault and battery on a police officer; (5) assault with_ an of;
fensive weapon; (6) assault with intent to kill; (7) .pd’s’:a:é;zion of
an illegal weapon; and (8) armed robbery. (Da-l-to.Da-5) Following
a mistrial, the Honorable Leon Gerofsky, A.J.S.C., granted a defense
motion anﬂ ordered the impaneling of a foreign jury. (Da=f=to-Da-7)

During the jury 19_1_r_g_12. defendant Chesimard became "
pregnant and was severed from the trial.

ﬁ;iiowing this, trial was held before the Honorable John E.
Bachman, J.C.C. and a jury, from Janu-nry 2, 1974 to March 11, 1974.
After the Court dismissed count two, the defendant was found guilty
of all remaining counts. (Da=8-to-Da-9) On March 15, 1974,Judge

:,"Bnchman sentenced the deferidant as follows: count (1), life impri-
.sonment; count (6), 10 to 12 years; counts (3) (4) and (5) were
merged with count:(ﬁ); count (7),2 to 3 y.ears; and count (8), 12
to 15 years, all sentences to be served comsecutively. (Da=9)— -

Lﬂ Thereafter, on June 18, 1‘9?4“’!{(}8& Bachman deni;d defen=

dant's motion for a new trial. (Pa=10) The notice of appeal. was




‘

filed on March 25, 1974. (Da-ii-to-Da-14) The State then filed a

cross appeal” (Da-15 to Da-16) and defendant's unopposed motion to
dismiss the cross appeal was granted by the Appellate Division on”

March-7, 1974, (Da=17) This appeal followed.




. STATEMENT OF FACTS

Folloving_openingé, the State made an offer of proof stating

that it intended to have a New York Ci:y\policeman testify to a_

‘prior arrest of defendant Squire and his subsequent fingerprinting
for ?he purpose of comparing those fingerprints of Squire to prints s
taken from the scene of the New Jegsey incident for the purpose of

proving identity under Rule 55. Defendant Squire objected. The ‘Jyv;&‘
objéctlon was overruled. (19T 40)
. The first witness for the Statewas Michael James Sullivan,

a;an York City Transit Policeman. (19T 40) He stated that on day 10

1, 1973, he had occasion to arrest a man in New York. (19T 42, 7)

The man identified himself as one Archie Gibson, showing the

officer a New York drivers license. (19T 42, 18-19) The officer 0 5
then indicated, in court, thg'defendant, Clark Squire, to be the

wan he arrested in New York on May lst. (19T 47, 18-24) The

witness then identified the document P-1 for identification which
Ac stated was the license shown to him by the defendant as iden-
vification. (19T 48, 25)
Officer Charles Christiano of the New York City Police
Department was then called. He stated that he had made a review : 26
’ 2 .

of his files for the records of one Archie Gibson for an arrest .

on May 1, 1973 (J9T 55, 22-24), and found a card for that date




and person. Th‘c‘ard (which he had brought with him) was marked
P-2 for identification. (19T 56) Ronald Manaker, also of the New
York City Police Department, was then called. He examined P-2
for identification and stated thet it was signed by him, thereby
indicating that he took the prints on the card. (19T 58, 16-22)

The next witness was Detective Casmir Smerecki, of the
Hiddlesei<County Prosecutor's office. He stated that he was a
criminal identification expert, particularly u{th regard to
fingerprints. His expertise was not challenged. (19T 61) He
stated that he had ex ed P-2 and found that the prints

thereon were of Clark Squire. (19T 61, 20-21) The document P-2

was offered nto evidence but objected to by defendant. (19T

61) Thereafter, officer Mannger was recalled and P-2 was again
offered into evidence. On cross-examination Manaker testified
that he was not the official keeper of the records. (19T 65-1)
He further stated that he had né€4completed all the information
contained on the card and when he last dealt with the card, some
of the areas on it were sf11l $lank. (19T 67, 1-4) After
directing the clerk to seal up the top and the back so that only
the fingerprints on the card were visible (19T 67, 13-18), the
Court admitted it, over objection (19T 67), on the grounds that
Manaker had testified that he was the officer who took the

fingerprintg on the card. (19T 68-1)

10
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‘Detective §Eereck1";as then recalled. Smerecki testified
that he compared the New York identification card with another card
containing f{ngetptints from the Middlesex County Sheriffs offic; )
(P-3). (19T 73-7 and 19T 90, 1-5) Defense counsel uga}n objected
to the admission of the fingerprint evidence on the grounds that it
violated Rule 55 in that it implied evidence of a prior crime. (19T
75) The court ruled that the evidence was admissible under Rule 55
for the purpose of proving {identity. (19T 88 et seq.) Officer /{
Smerecki then testified that on January 18, 1974, he compared thc
fingerprints on P-2 and p-3, (19T 96, 10-13) Over objections,
Officer Smercckl testified that the fingerprints on both cards P-3
and P-2 were umade by the ;nmc:person. (191 97, 8-10)
The State then called James Michael Harper, a State Trooper.
He testified that on May 2, 1973, he was assigned to uniformed
patrol du:y/;; the New Jersey Turnpike from Interchange No. 11 to
mile post 97,driving a 1973 grey, unmarked, Oldsmobile. (19T 98,
22 to 19T 99; 24) At about 1:00 P.M. he had occasion to stop a
1965 Pontiac. (19T 101) As he approached behind the Pontiac he
noticed the tafl-lights of the car were not in proper working
condition. - (19T 102, 20-21) As he drove past the car he noted
that it carried Vermont license plates. (I;T 103¥ 13-15) After
he pns§8d the Pontiac he crossed over in front of it to the slow

Jane and began to decrcase his speed to allow the Pontiac to pass

10
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-

him. (19T 104, 6-8) After it did so, he began to follow it keeping
an even pace. Harper then changed his position again pulltng even

< with the Pontiac inthe left hand lana and signalling the driver to
pull over. (19T 105, 8-11) As the Pontiac pulled over. Harper
slowed and pulled in behind the Pontiac on ‘the shoulder of the road.
(19T 105, 21-23) The driver of the Pontiac exited his car but was
told by Harper to return to his car and pull it further off the
road, (19T 106, 6-12) As the man~ complied, Harper- could :59""'t\ :

4 he was a black male wearing a white safari type jacket und black »
pants. (19T 106, 18-21) S . 10

After pulling the Pontiac further to the side of the road,

the defcndant again got out of his car and began to walk towards ; ;’

e
the trooper, meeting him at a point midway between the two cars.

(19T 134, 12-16) Harper told the defendant that his tail lights
ueré/;;t working and asked to see his registration and driver's
license, and defendant thereupon produced same. (19T 135, 1-9)
Harper recalled that since the driver's license was of New York
issue and the Vermont registration was in the name of a woman,
he walked to the Pontiac and opened the driver's door and knelt
down to verify that the gerial number of the automobile agreed IOV
with the number appearing on the registration, certificate, (19T

137, 13-19) As he opened the door to examine the number, he

. noted a black female sitting in the r%ght front passenger seat




and '\b-lack male sitting in the right rear passenger seat. (19T 138,

13-16) The“male was dressed in a blue jacket” and dungarees and
light brown boots. The female had on a red shirt or red jacket and
dark colored pants. 'Pnrper asked the passengers in the automobile
where the car was from nn; they replied they had borrowed it from
4 soneone'in New York City. At this ﬁoint Harper asked them for iden-
' tification. (19T 140, 11-16) ‘The man complied, handing ﬁnrper a
hospital identification card. As Harper was asking these questions,
he beard someone call his name and looked up over the Pontiac and
saw Trooper Werner Foerster standing with the driver of the car,
apparently having arrived at the scene unnoticed by Harper. (19T
'161, 1-12) Foerster said to Harper, "Jim, look what I found,"
and held something out in his hand (19T 141, 18-21) which appeared
to be a clip for an automatic weapon. (19T 142, 19-20)
After seeing the clip, Harper ordered the two occupants
of the car to place'iﬁgir hands on theéir laps in front of ;hen.
While the male complied, the female, who was sitting with her
right hand out alongside her body, began groping for something
near the seat. (19T 143, 1-11) Harper immediately turned to
run towards the rear of the car and,as he did so,heard a shot
fired and felt pain and a burning sensation in his shoulder.

(19T 145, 11-15) Harper continued to run to the rear of his,own

car and took ‘up a position behind the car. (19T 146, 17-19)

o
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He looked around the cg%ner of his car and saw the black female who

was previously sitting in the front seat coming out of the driver's
door firing a pistol (191 1&7,‘7-12) ;n his direction. (19T 147,
14-155 Harper fired thr;e shots and heard the female scream and
dgu her fall to the ground. (19T 147, 19-23) Harper moved to

‘the other side oi.the car and rose up chr the trunk to sce where
Trooper Foerster was. He spotted Foerst;r and the driver of the
car struggling in the roadway. (19T‘148, 5-10) As Harper observed
‘them grappling, he heard additional shots fired, crouched down,
and moved back to the left side of the bumper, (19T 152, 2-6{

He saw the black male who had been seated in the rear of the car
kneeling beside the female and holding a weapon in his hand. He
then saw the man firg the weapon at him (Harper). (19T 152, 15-23)
As Harper ducked back pgblnd the car, he heard two éore shots
fired which had a more "full" tone than the previous firing he
had seen from the woman or the passenger from the rear of the car.
(19T 153, 1-10) He looked around the corner of the bumper again
and fired two shots and heard the male who had been kneeling with
the female scream. (I9T 153, 11-15) Harper heard more shots, and
began to reload his weapon, ejecting the spent shells. After
reloading the weapon, he stood up and began to back away from tﬂz
rear of his car. As he backed away, he looked towards the area

where he had previously seen the driver of the car grappling with

A
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Trooper Foerhr. He did not see either of them in that spot. (19T
155, 1-11) As he backed fur;het from his car, he turned and began
to run toward the State Péllce Barracks, which were directly behind
the cars, about 200 yards awdy. (19T 155,\11-17) After he had run
part of the way to the barracks he heard more shots fire!. (19T
155, 19-23)

When he ran inside the station he saw Troners Baginsky,
0'Rourke and Foster in the office. While at the station, Sergeant
Baginsky partially undressed the wounded Harper. (19T 159, 1-2)

. Harper identified the shirt he had been wearing that evening noting
a bullet hole in the rear and a brownish colored stain surrcundiég
the hole. It was offered and accepted into evidence over objec-
tion. il?T 161, 13-15) He also identified other articles of
clothing including his hat, ammunition belt and shoulder strap.

He also identified a jacket/gs being of the type the driver was
wearing on the.nlghc in question. (19T 165, 14-15) Harper
stated that after reaching the station house he was later trans-
ported to the hospital. (19T 165, 23-25)

At this point the direct examination of Trooper Harper
was interrupted and a Wade hearing was held. At that hearing the
court heard testimony from Harper and five other witnesses con-
cerning the ldentificgtion of the defendant. Since this issue

is not raised on appeal, saffice it to say that after considering
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the testimony and argument of counsel,
court identification by Harper was admissible.

+Following :ﬁe hearing, Trooper ﬂ;rper resu@ed his direct®
testimony. Harper {dentified several pictures of the Pontiac that
he stopp;d on the morning hours of May 2nd and identified Clark
Squire in court as the man who had been driving the car on the
turnpike. (20T 376, 18-19) Harper then :cscifled concerning.his

trip to the hospital and his meeting with a Dﬁ:spltvﬁ Homa uhtch

culminated in the drawing of a-sketch of,Sqﬁlre on May 3. (20T 377,

1, 25)
On cross-examination Harper stated that he never heard
‘Squire comnunicate with any of the people inside of the car

during the entire occurrence (20T 537, 1-14) and the defendant

had not fired at him during the occurrence. (20T 542, 13-14)
The next witness was Robert Silverman. He testified that

on May 2, 1973, he had occasion to be driving on the New Jersey

Turnpike, southbound. (20T 568, 13-24) He saw :'police;;n in-

volved in what appeared to be a fight with some other people

(20T 569, 4-13) near whege three cars were parked on the shouldqx;

including one marked police car with 1ts flasher on. (20T 569,

+18-21) He stated zha: the pollccn.n ‘he saw was in a posicton on
the passenger side of the middle car (20T 570, 4-5) and that the

policeman was grappling with another person. (20T 571, ;—3) He

the court found that the in-
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stated that although he specifically looked he only saw the people

involved in the scuffle. (20T 572, 13-14)

Sgrgcunt Chester Bug{psky of the New Jersey State Police
Department was ;he next witness. He téstified that on May 2, 1973,
he was the sergeant in charge of the shift stniioned at the New
Brunswick station house on the turnpike. (21T 2, 11-24) When he

rived at work Trooper Harper was already on patrol, but Trooper L

Foerster still there at about 10:45 P.M. (21T 4, 2) After ; 1»'
running 4n errand for Baginsky, Trooper Foerster was sent out on)/‘}/””

patrol in ca (21T 5, 25) Bagiqsky recalled that 10 o
sometime after 12:00 P.M, he heard, over the radio, Trooper

Hnrper.call in to the cffé!‘\thnt he was making a stop. (21T 10,

13-14) He also heard one other unit (car 817) respond that it %
was also réapOnding as a backup. (21T 10, ;8—19) Car 817, he : $?
testified, was tanned by Trooper Palentchar. (21T 12, 3) He ﬂ;

then heard, over the radio, that Trooper Foerster in car 820
was responding also. (21T 12, 7) Then, at about 12:55 A.M. he
saw Trooper Harper walk into the office. (21T 13, 11-13) He

appeared to be ashen and gray and explained to Baginsky that he

had been in a gunfight. (21T 13, 18-20) Baginsky began to 20
treat Havper's wound and elicited from him information as to the
occurrence and alerted the entire turnpike. (21T 14, 6-11) Over

objections, Baginsky testified that Harper told him he had stopped




the car with thiree colored occupants, :ﬁcte was an exchange of

gunfire and ﬁe believed one or two of the ‘occupants may have been . e
wounded. (21T 1%, 1-5) Hatpé} told him that Foerster had been at

the scene and engaged in a gun battle but he had lost track of

him during the fight. (21T 15, 13-15) With this information,

Baginsky alerted the turnpike. N

The next witness for the State was Trooper Robert

Palentchar. He testified that he was a New Jersey State Trooper
y P /“’,a——,

4

patrolling the turnpike on the morning of May 2, 1973. Duriﬁg i
the course of the evening, he overheard Tr;opcr Harper advise
headquarters that he was stopping a certain white Pontiac. (21T
47, 19-21) At the time, Palentchar was travelling south about

10 miles south of Trooper Harper's location, (21T 48, Zk) He also

heard Troopef/ipctstcr come on the radio and advise that he was

héadlng towards Trobper Harper as a backup (21T 49, 3-6)(as
headquarters had advised Foerster and Palentchar to backup
Harper.) (21T 49, 9-11) As a result of a further radio commu-
nication from headqdarteré, as he was proceeding toward Harper,

palentchar pulled into a "U" turn and stopped on the shoulder

and shut off his lights. He was waiting for a white Pomtiac
Tempest with a burned out taillight - heading southbound. (21T v
50, 19-24) After an uneéventful wait of about 30 seconds to a

minute,he procecded through the U turn and began heading




northbound agaLMn‘ 51, 12-13)

Pfocecding northward, the trooper travelled approximately

5/10ths of a mile when he looked to his left and saw a white

Pontiac Tempest stopped g the shoulder with no lights on. (21T

51, 22-25) As_he approached the vehicle, he had no l;cadllghtu
on in atdgt not to draw any suspiclon to his car. (21T 52, 21-
22) As he neared the vehicle he saw a black male with a white
Jjacket come out of the woods and start towards the car. (21T
55, 15-17) He quickly stopped the car, switched on his lights
and jumped out of the car. He shouted "halt" and the black
male turned and ran with Palentchar firing four shots at him.
(21T 54, 1-8) .The trooper stated he did not think he hit the
black male bt saw him run off into the woods. (21T 5%, 1-11)

Immediately after 'his, he saw movement to the right and south

.of him (21T 60, 1-3) to the right of the Pontiac. -He called

for the person to halt, The person then stood up and raised
her hands. (21T 61, 23-24) He had the person approach the
car and noted that she was a light skinned black female
wearing a red sweater and black pants and suffering from a
wound. (21T 62, 12-24)

Shortly thercafter, other troopers nFt_iv‘evdA(ZIT 64, 1-
13) and an ambulance was called for the female, while other

troope;u todk flashlights and went into the woods to check

e
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for the two other subjects they.were looking for. (21T 70, 18-20)

Palentchar then stepped into the woods in the area where he had
first-seen the female crawling and saw a deceased black male
lying on the ground. (21T-73, 1-6) Leaving another trooper to ) .

secure the scene, Palentchar returned to his radio car where he

met a Detéctive Carabelli who then assumed responsibility of the

investigation. ¥ -
Several photos of the scene and of Mﬁe’s were ad-

mitted into evidence over objection (21T 78) and thereaftét
¢ !
Palentchar resumed his narrative, stating that at the scene he 10

)

saw a revolver between the legs of the deceased male, and also

a red scarf. (21T 84, 2=4) 1In a depression in the grass, near
where the woman was crawling, he also found an automatic pistol ]
and belt. (21T 84, 12:13) Palentchar noted the serial number
of the wez;pon lying by the dead male's body ‘and then .leftithe
scene. (21T 86, 3-16)
Trooﬁet Frank Dryer was then called. On the morning of
May 2 he was at the Princeton headquarters when he received a
call of a trooper being .sl;ot on the turnpike. (21T 97, 8-10) S
He proceeded to the original scene (milepost 83) where he 20
found a marked police vehicle on fhé shoulder of the road
parked behind another vehicle. (21T of, 7-13) As he approached

the cats, he noticed that the last unit was a marked State




Police car and.the front unit was an unmarked State Police car.
As he proceéded to* look around ;hc scene where the two vehicles
were ocated, he found a State Police hat and a flashlight be-
twecn the two cars. (21T 105, 3-6) He walked up a dirt embank- w__
wment in front of ghe’unmarked vehicle and approximately 15 yards
in front of the unmarked vehicde“on top of the emb;nkmcnt ﬁe
found a New York driver's ilccnéé (P-1). (21T 108, 1-3) He
handed the license to his partner, Trooper Byrne, and cpptlnued
to look around the area. After about five minu;es he walked‘up
the dirt embankment opposite the right front wheel of the first
car. He looked down and saw Trooper Foerster's body 1y1n§ along-
side the unmarked car in the vicinity of the right rear door and
wheel, (21T 113, 2:};) While examining Trooper Foerster's body
Dryer noticed that his weapon was missing and that there were
sevetal'nutomatlc'pistols in the vicinity of the trooper's body.
(21T 116, 10-13) A picture of Trooper Foerster's body was
identified by Dryer and objected to by defense counsel on the
grounds that he was not properly qualified to support the intro-
duction and on the inflammatory nature of the picture. (21T 125)
“The objection was overruled and the picture admitted into
evidence. (21T 127)

Several witnesses were then called in regard to an issue

pertaining to certain FBI pictures which were shown to Harper
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inhttempt to identify his assailant.
The trial resumed, with the State calling as its next witness,
Henry F. Comeau, an employee o,&tPe'New Jersey Turnpike Authority. N -
He testified that on the night in question he was working in the
v Administration Bullding close to the Communications Section. He

f testified that Communications Section has a tape recordet which

records all incoming and outgoing radio transmisslons from State

Policsxcars. (21T 236, 15-22) Comeau then identified a reel of “’4"“#.

tape as being that which wag recorded on the morning of May 2,
1973. (21T 242, 2-6) ) & 10
~ > The next witness was Cornelius Sheridan. He testified that :
he also was a shift supervisor and performed the same functions as
Mr. Comeau. (21T 245, 1-8) He testified that on May 2nd at approxi-
mately 2:30 in the afternoon at the request of a Sergeant Kelly
) of the State Police he removed the tape of the morning of May 2nd

from the lotkup and turned it over to Sergeant Kelly. (21T 246,

1-8)
Sergeant Kelly of the State Police was then called. Kglly
‘testified as to the chain of evidence of the tape and the State
offered the tape into evidence. This was objected to by defense 20
counsel, Defense objected to the tape on the grounds that (1)

it would contain inevitable hearsay (21T 252, 14-18); (2) that L

defense would be unable to properly cross-examine the people \

e




.#(21T 315-21T 321) The court ruled that it would so instruct the

‘The tape, exhibit "P-39" was then marked into evidence qver ob=-

recorded on the tape and that the prejudice of the tape b‘lould out-
weigh its probative value. _(21T 253) The court and counsel then,
An camera, listened to the tapes., (21T 258) After lxstenln.g to the
tape, defense éounsel f ier argued that the tape was inadmissible
as not coming within any exception to the hearsay rule. (21T 262
et seq.) The cou:_'t ruled that aside from the voice of the dis-

patcher, the transmission of Troopers Foerster, Harper and . /

Palentchar were part of the res gestae and admissible. As to the

transmissions of the dispatcher, Trooper Foerster, the court ruled

Py >

that these transmissions were hearsay but came within Rule 63(4) 10

and that they were excited utterances made while the dispatcher

was in a stre;s situation. (21T 300) Therefore, the court ruled

the tapes admissible subject to preparation of a.Mrnte

transcript. (21T 301)

When trial resumed on February 29, 1974, defense and pro-

secution had agreed on a s;;ccified excerpt from the radio tape.

(21T 312) Defense then re-argued its objection, but was overruled.
Defense counsel asked the court to instruct the jury that

the tapes were oifer.ed only to show the actions of the troopers

and not to prove the truth of the statements that they had made. 20

Jury, however, it would do so. during the final charge. (21T 320) ;:

Jection. (211%340)
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The next witness for the State was New Jersey State Police
Trooper James Chall?ndet. He testified that he was familiar wlt£ the
voices of Troopers Harper, Paientch;r, Foerster and Foster. (21T 341,
9~13) He testified that also he was familiar with the tape now
{marked State's exhibit "P-39". After explaining how the timing
'device worked on the recorder, the trooper prepared to play’ the tape.
The court cautioned the jury that the tapes were to be considered as
evidence for the proof of only two thtngs. First, the time sequence
of the events and sccona, the actions of the state troopers during
this time perl;d. (21T 344, 1-4) The jury was also assisted by a
prepared transcript. (21T 344, 7-11) The tape was then played for

the jury. (21T 353)*

The next witness was Detective Carl Carabelli of the New
Jersey State Police. 0a May 2nd, he responded to milepost 78 on
the southbound lane of the New Jersey Turnpike at approximately
1:35 A.M. (21T 365, 8-13) He saw a white Pontiac parked by the side
‘:f the road and parked his car behind it. There were three or four

troopers there at the time. After talking with Trooper. Palentchar
he walked into a grassy area and observed a dead black male lying on
his back in the grass. (21T 368, 22-24) Carabelli testified th.g

under the right knee of the male was a .38 caliber Smith and

% Since the contents of the tape was not recorded by the stenographer
at the trial, the transcript referred to above is attached hereto as
Da-30. The copy was supplied by the Middlesex Coufity Prosecutor, Mr.
C. Jud Hamlin. g ; :
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Wesson revolver. (21T 379, 4-5) About eight feet cast of his foot was
a .380 caliber automatic weapon along with a black belt (21T 379, 7-9),
and in his upper left pocket was a clip containing thirteen rounds of
<ammunition. (21T 379, 13:14) He further testified thac when the body
was turned over he observed a blue belt with a holster strapped on the

b&ck of the deceased. (21T 386, 5-6)

The next witness for the State was Trooper Charles R. Thom. s

He tes%lfied that on the énd of May, 1973, he had occasion to proceed F‘JVJ"“W

to milepost 78 In the southbound lane of the New Jersey Turnpike.

(21T 466, 1-3) When he arrived, he saw other troopers including 10
““Detective Carabelli who ordered him to stay with the vehicle, a 1965

Pontiac with Vermont licgnse plates. (21T 466, 12-16) He testified

that later that evening he saw the car loaded on to a flat bed truck

and towed away. (21T 469, 3-4)

Detective James Challender was then recalled to the stand.
He testified that after receiving a phone call on May 2nd, he re-

sponded to New Jersey Turnpike milepost 78 southbound. (217 510,

1-2) He arrived at the scene at approximately 1:38 A.M.. He then
had a conversation with Detective Carabelli (21T 510, 10—19), and
walked with Carabelli to a grassy portion adjacent to the south- . 20
bound berm where Carabelli showed him the body of a black man lyiné
in.the grass. (21T 511, 1) Close by the body he observed two

ﬁeapons} He also observed a black female in an ambulance, and then




rcr.utn‘ed“his car and proceeded to the Middlesex General Hospital

in New Brunmswick. (21T 514, 4-7)

There he saw Trooper Harper lying on

a cot and observed medical people rendering attention to the black

female he had observed in the ambulance. (21T 515, 3-5)

He then

proceeded to talk to Trooper Harper, as a_ result of which he learned

of the death of Trooper Foerster. (21T 515, 16—15)

view, he called the New Brunswick Station and relayed the description

After the inter-

of the driver of the car Harper had seen. (21T 515, 23-24)

Challender testified that while at the hospital he observed

closely the body of Trooper Foerster as it was brought in.

He ob-

served that his face was covcred with dried blood as were his-hands.

~ >

There was an enormous amount of blood in the area of his right arm

and a hole in the back of his neck.

He noted a protrusion at the

rear of his head, much blood in his hair, and blood spattered on

the entire front of his uniform. (21T 519, 12-25)

He also noted

e
that there was a long laceration in Foerster's left throat area.

(21T 520, 12-13)

his holster. (21T 521, 3-4)

He also noted Foerster's weapon was missing from

From the body of Foerster, Challender

removed his belongings and equipment (21T 522, 6-21), wrapped these

articles in white paper and, as he had done with the clothes from

the black female, put them in a paper bag and locked them in the

trunk of his car.

He took all of these items to headquarters in «

New Brunswick where they were turned over to Detective Sergeant

Wilke, (21T 523, 8-19)

S
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The next witness for th; State was Trooper Elmer Phillips. He
testified that on the.norning of May 2nd, 1973, he proceeded to mile-
post 78 on the turnpike in the southbound lane. (21T 623, 8-13) He

| _ guardea the body and did not allow anyoné to come close or touch the
body until Detective Carabelli took over the scene from him. (21T
628, 4-22)

The next witness for the State was Detective Louis Parisi, who w_,"”‘—m
testified that on the morning of May 2, after reporting in, he pro- '

ceeded to the Middlesex General Hospital where he observed Trooper

Harper, Joanne Chesimard and several state police officérs, doctors 10

and nurses, and conducted an interview with Trooper Harper. (21T
642, 3-14) After this he proceeded baék to the Administration Building
where he went down to the garage of the building where the Pontiac
was being processed'ﬁga assisted in processing it. (21T 646, 1-2)
Detectives Wilke and Demeter were working on the car and asked him
to look in the trunk and check the bags therein. (21T 647, 6-12)
Parisi testified that he opened an attache case and found in it some
materials bearing the name of one "Archie Gibson." (21T 650, 16-18)
Over objections, Parisi testified that he also found a page torn from
a telephone book with the name "Archie Gibson" underlined, a birth 20

o certificate in the name of Archie Gibson, a United Insurance Company

- Hospitalization form in the name of Archie Gibson and a Selective

" Service Card in the name of Archie Gibson. (21T 653, 1-11)
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" Trooper Harper's Oldsmobile. (21T 780, 15-17) After having some dis-

Detectivc‘Robett.Conrad of the New Jersey State Police then I
testified that on tie night of May 2, he was called to the scene of the

shooting of Trooper Foerster at milepost 83. (21t 777, 8—?) At the

scene he met Troopers Byrne and Dryer. He testified that at the sc;ne

he saw Trooper Foerster's body lying along the right rear side of

cussion with Troopers Byrne and Dryer, he was handed a New York ,_‘,d'”"

driver's license which he identified as "p-1" in evidence (21T 781,
7-8) with the name Archie Gibson on it. (21T 781, 9-10) To the rear
of the unmarked vehicle, car number 894, Conrad found a trooper's 10

hat and a flashlight. (21T 792, 5-6) The badge number on the hat,

2108, was Trooper Harper's badge number. (21T 793, 3-5)

A v et

He stated‘;hnt upon examination of the body, he saw lying

R

nearby an automatic pistol with the shells stuck in the breach. (21T
806, 5-7) Also nearby was a clip from an automatic pistol. It was a
smaller clip, however, than that which would be used in the gun lying

near the body. (21T 806, 21-22) He also found a green hat with a

large brim with a metal buckle-type band lying near Foerster's feet
(21T 807, 1) and a short distance from Foerster's foot was a spent
shell. (21T 807, 2-3) He testified that he saw another automatic 20
pistol just south of Foerster's feet, lying on the shoulder of the

road (the pistol with the shell jammed in the breach). It was.a

fyowning automatic. (21T 829, 1-11) He indicated that at the scene he
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hndluen some sp;:nt' shenﬁ’sou't.h of car 886 (Harper's car), and

found tire marks onlr.hg road (21T 836, 17-25), which were made by

a car spinning out as it.left the scene. (21T 839, 18-19) He .
(noted some damage to llarpe‘r's car (21T 839, 21T 845, 21T 852),

and some red stains on the right side and door. (21T 853, 1-5)

Sergeant Norman A, Demeter of the New Jersey State Police
was then called and testified that on May 2 he was attached with - A
the Field Identification Bureau of the State Police. (22T 3, 1-2) A/

-~ . Sergeant Demeter was then qualified as an expert in fingerprint

identification (22T 4, 1-7), and after some testimony it was sti- 10

pulated between counsel that the identfty of the black female was .
that of Joanne Chesimard (22T 165, 3-7), and ’that the deceased m
male invo_lved was one James Costan. (22T 165, 9-11) Demeter tes- f‘:

\ , » ad
| tified that he began to process the weapons seized, along with 3 N

| Detectives Wilke, Toranto and Carabelli. (22T 165, 20-23) He

dusted three automatic weapons and one .38 police weapon for

‘fingerprints -(22T 166, 1), but no identifiable fingerprints were
readable from the weapons. (22T 166, 11-13) The clips from the
automatic weapons were dusted in the same way producing the same
result. (22T 166, 19-21) ) 220,50

“« Demeter, along with Detective Wilke then proceeded to the

parking garage in the Administration Building to examine two auto=

i
¥
X

mobiles, the 1965 Pontiac and Troop Car 886. (22T 192, 22-24) The v »
b i ) - > 3
first one he examined was the Pontiac, which was photographed and 3




ted fot ptinta. (ZZT 193, 19-20) There were no readable finger-
prints on the outslde of the car. (22T 194, 6- 8) Ingide the car on
the front geat, he saw a red handbag lying on the floor and a small

pool of blood and a shell casing. 1In the back, there was a black

leather case which housed a typewriter, several maps (22T 194,-15-21),

a handbag on the p ger side in the front, another brown handbag

~in the back, several books, magazines and maps in the back seat ané

glass. (221 206, 23 to 22T 207, 2) He testified chat he lobfied into
the handbag that he found on the front seat (22T 207, 5-6), and tes-
tified that he found three clips for an automatlc weapon in the
pocketbook. (22T 213, 24-25) The maps he found in the car were also
dusted for fingerprints (22T 215, 7-12), and a latent print was
raised. (22T 217, 2-6) On the rear geat was éound an.uncxpended
shet1™ (22T 217, 16-17), qnd in the trunk he fou several sultcases,

a brown attache case, a brown duffle bag and clothes. (221 218, 20-

22) In the attache case, he found various papers, while in the

* suitcases he found a license plate, shotgun shells, bullets,

an assortment of clothing, (22T 219, 8-13) and ammunition for a

.38 police revolver. (22T 220, 3-19)

b After examining the Pontlnc, Demeter proceeded to observe

Troop Car 886. (22T 21, 10-11) AEter nocing some damage, We stated——— .

‘that he noticed the head of a bullet protruding from a plece of

molding near the rear of the car. (22T 222, 11-14) Demeter recovered

10
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a plece of lead Ero; the right rear molding and a piece of lead
from the headlight compartment of the car. (22T, 8-10)

i After coyplcting these examinations of the cars, officer
lbemeter proceed to Perth Amboy General Hospital where he, Detec—
_tive Wilke and Trooper strachensky were present to witness an
Aautopsy of Trooper Foerster and James Costan. (22T 228, 15-22)
.;cmeter saw certain bullet heads removed from Foerster's body by
D;. Albano and given to Detective Wilke. (227 229, 4-9) The

bnllistic evidence, namely the bullets, was given to Detective

Orsman. (22T 230, 13-15) ‘The followlng day he then proceeded to
the Administration Building in New Brunswick whgre he.witnessed
several detectives bring in the defendant. (22T 232, 1-17)

Demeter photographed the defendant, gave him a peutron activa-

tion test, a nail scraping was raken, hair from his head was

taken and saw him fingerprinted by Detective Wilke. (22% 233,
2-6) Demeter also photographed a parti
bhaud. (221 233, 19-23) *Demeter then compared the fingcrprinta
taken by Detective Wilke of the defendant wit
he had lifted from the map found in the Pontiae and found that

the print from the map was the left middle finger of the defen—

dant.. (22T 235, 13-24)

On cro¢s—c‘nmlnntion, he admitted ;ha: he had dusted and

d fbur weapons and threé ¢lips, none of which yielded

cular wound on defendant's

h the latent-print -
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Trooper George Seitz was called. He testified that on May 2,
1973, he was patrolling on the turnpike between milepost 83 to inter-
change 8A. He stopped at the time to speak with Trooper Strashinski,
who was securing the scene, and as he exited his car to talk with
Strashinski, he noticed five spent shell caslnés lying on the dirt
portion of the road, near police car 820. (22T 19, -18) He re-
trieved the shells and returned them to the New Bruaswick station
(22T 20, 1-2), giving them to Trooper Carabelli. (22T 20, 13)

Sergeant Herbert R. Ulbrich of the New Jersey State Police
was then called. He testified that on the morﬁing in quéstion, he,

“ along uith.a forensic chemist, George Hickman, was directed to pro-
ceed to the scene at milepost 83. (22T 33, 15-16) He checked the
scene and noted a large pool of blood on the shoulder of the highway
and discovered an expended bullet lying on the right hand lane of the

. southbound portion of the -npike. (éZT 33, 21-25)

A "Miranda hearing" «as then held outsid@ the presence of

the jury to determine the admissibility of a sta t allegedly
made by the defendant. After hearing testimony from several wit-
nesses andbargument, the court ruled that the alleged statement
was inadmissible.

The State then called Frank Zygmund, of the East Brunswick
iounship Police Department. He stated that on May 3rd, he pro-

ceeded to the Hearts Lane area where he took part in a search in
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«which the suspect was apprehended. (221;134, 1-8) He stated that
officers formed & skirmish line and procceded across the area they
wished to search. Dgr;;g the seatch, as he approached a thicket
of young trees, he noticed what appeared to be a body covered with
what appeared to be leaves and grass of the surrounding area. (22T
135, 19-24) Officers were called and the suspect apprehended. He
identified, in court, ;he defendant Squire as the man (body) he
had found in the field during the search. (22T 136, 14-18) He
also added that when the defendant was made to stand up in the
field, Zygmund noticed that he had a white jacket wrappediatound
bhi; left arm. (ZZT 137, 5) On cross-examination, he admitted that
a pat search of the defendant had failed to disclose any weapon.
(22T 138, 22-23) A more thorough search conducted later uncovered
only a roll of currency. (22T 139, 2-4)

The next thn;;: was Officer Randall Kluj, also of the
East Brunswick Police.ﬁepartment. He largely reiterated Zygmund's
testimony concerning the capture of the defendant. (22T 143 to 22T
149) ’

.Troqpqr Douglas Osborne was then called. He largely corro-
borated th; testimony of Zygmund and Kluj. He added, however, that
when he observed the defendant at the time of the arrest, he had a
wound on the web of his hand, between his thumb and first finger.
(221 153, \). He also added on cross-examination that no guns or-

weapuns or bullets of day kind were found on the defendant. (227
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\;- The next witness was State Police Detective Michael Langan.
He testified that on May 4, he p;;ce;ded to the Middlesex County Jail
where ptcparatléns were bélng made to take a blood sample'ftdﬁ defen-
lant Squire. The blood was taken by a Dr. Lknd (22T 316, 3-8), in a
vial which was put in an envelope, labelled, and taken‘by Detective
4 Langan to the State Bureau of [dentification Léboratury in West
Treaton. (22T 316, 11-17)

The next witness was William Gelder, an employee of the New

Jergey Turnpike Authority. Gelder testified that his occupation waad_,""ﬂﬁ

automobile body repairman. He testified that at sometime during the
wonth of June, he had occasion to work on a gray 0ldsmébile, license
sumber SFA 894. (22T 328, 14-17) He testified that in the course of
nis repair work, as he was about to replace the headliner, he ;nw a
small copper object. He took it down from the inside of the roof,
showed it to his Egperio:, who then called a detective who came down-
and took possess;on of the object. (22T 329, 1-7)
The next witness was Edward Wilke, a Detective Sergeant of
.~ the New Je;sey State Police. Defense objected to Wilke's being
qualified as an identification expert on the grounds that over a
period of ten years he had testified on only four&occasions, none of
which involved a charge of murder. (22T 340, 4-11) ‘ﬁowevﬁi, Wilke
was qualified as an expért over objection. (22T 341, 10-14) As a

- result of a communication he proceeded to milepost 83. (22T 343,
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1-4) At milepost 83, he met Troopers Conrad, Dryer and Byrne and saw

several cars pntked in a row north of car 886. (22T 343, 17-24) He
toq& photographs of the scepe (22T 345, 9-14), especially Troop Car
886 (22T 346, 1-2), and Trooper Foerster's body. (221 346, 7-8) He
notfbed the jammed automatic lying near Trooper Foerster's hand, a
clip near his knee, a spent shell near his toe, another jnmmed auto=-
matic approximately seven feet Ercm the car and a hat near Foerster's
feet., (22T ?67, 1-8) HeAnotlcee that two of the automatics that he
picked up at the scene were jammed open. (22T 350,,19) He saw an auto-
_mobile registration certification made out to one Isabelle Johnson
i qhich he testified he found near Foerster's body when the body was
‘ moved. (22T 354, 1-12) He then identified Trooper Foerster's hat as
| being the hat he had found at the scene.

After securing all evidence found at the scene at milepost
83, he proceeded with Tf;;;er Byrne to milepost 78. (22T 371, 8-10)
There he again photographed the scene and collected evidence. He
tastigﬁpq that he saw a clip sticking out of the left pocket of the
deceased black male, a butt of a gun appearing between his legs and
a button. (221 375, 3-5) Wilke then identified a small Browning

|

|

|

| pistol which he found lying near Costan's body. (22T 386, 9-16)

‘ /

\ Later, he fingerprinted Trooper Foerster and’ photographed,

.Trooper Harper. (22T 395, 23-25) After leaving the hospital he

proceeded back to the Aduinistration Building,” where Detective

B : 3 A
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‘Chjlender gav:: him Chesimard's clothes and some of Trooper Foerster's -
equipment. (22T 396, 16‘-17) More ballistics evidence was taken from
the Pontiac and turned over to Detective Orsman. (22T 422, 1) He
then testified that he attended the autopsy performed by Dr. Albano

P
and identified several photographs of that autopsy. He identified v
the clothes and equipment Trooper Foerster had been wearing (22T ¥

424), and also identified a webb pistol belt, and a mexican wallet

'which was removed from the body of James Costan, whose autopsy he - 2

also witnessed.- (22T 424, 14 to 435, 5)° He testified that duting' / B
s the autopsy, he saw Dr. Albano remove three fragments from ' 10 "

Foerster's right arm (22T 429, 4), and head. (22T 430, 2-20) =

On May 3rd he fingerprinted the defendant. (22T 438, 11-12)

He testified that in Sergeant Demeter's presctice he compared a

£
T

<}

latent print and the prints that he had taken from Squire. (22T

3

439, 1-4) He testified that as a result of that comparison, he
i D o
made a positive {dentification of the left middle finger of Clark

Squire with the latent print from the map processed by Detective

Demeter. (22T 439, 6-9)
Detective Demeter was then briefly recalled to the stand.
Hle testified tHat in furtherance of his investigation of this 20
case, on June 21, he was directed ;o proceed to the Hightstown
Garage on the turnpike., (23T 73, 11-14) When he arrived there
he was approached by Mr. William Gelder, who handed him a copper

bullet. (231 73, 19 to 23T 74, 1
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" Clifford Coyle, aiso of the New Jersey State Police, testified
that on May 3, 1973, he had the responsibility of transporting a
certain 1965 white Pontiac. (23T.123, 17-19) “The Pontidc was placed
on a flat bed truck, and Coyle escorted it down to Trenton (23T 124,
A-B)E_whege it was turned over to the laboratory. (23T 124, 10)

Vincent M. Peterson, a detective with the New Jersey State

P;licc stated that in May of 1973, he was assigned as the nssistnét
burcau chief for the Fingerprint Record Burcau for the State Police. a“"ff
He fcceived at that time, a 1965 white Pontiac delivered to the
lqbornﬁyry.>(23T 126, 16-17) On May 7, Peterson and Detective
0'Donohue and Mr. George Hickman, a chemist, examtn;; the automo- 10
bile for anything of evidential value, including fingerprints,

bullet holes, ete. (23T 127, 6-13) Peterson recovered from the

channel of the rear window a bUIiit with a lead core. (23T 127, 16-

e el B - %
On cross-examination, Peterson admitted that he assisted

Detective O'Dpnohue in dusting the car for latent prints, but was

unable to railse any. (23T 156, 11-19)

The next witness was Sergeant Lewis Taranto. He testified

only as to the chain of evidence of certain items recovered from

the vehicles, as did the following witness, Detective Ronald Horstman. 20

Horaiman added that he was also asked on September 19th to check out

four keys glven to him by Serhouné Taranto. He testified that the

“sold golored key marked “B10" fit and operated a maroon door, which




silver in color, fit and operated the ignition of
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.;as on the right hand side of the Pontiac. The two keys that were

the vehicle. (23T

170, 1-6) & ~

On cross-examination, Horstman admitted that while the two

silver keys fit the ignition.and'turned the lock, they were unable to : g

start the car, preéumably because the batfery was dead. (23T 178, 17-

18) No one ever attempted to start the car with the keys with a good

sattery. (23T 178, 20-28) = - . w"',—v‘““

was quélified

John Lintott, a State Police ballistics expert,

25 an expert (24T 197) and identified the following items: P-8, a

cevolver (24T 199, 1-4); P-71, a .38 caliber Llama super auto P-53

a5 a Browning 380 caliber automatic pistol; and P-76, a Browning 9mm

Luger caliber automatic pistol. (24T 210, 6-19) e stated that he

jon 4and arrived at the

tested the above wedapons and pieces of ammunit
/

‘following conclusions: p-131, a silver shell, had been fired from

pP-71, the 38 super auto; p-132, being shells from the 38 caliber

. l.lama pistol (24T 221, 7-8); a bullet recovered from Harper's car

whiCh had been fired from the Llama (24T 227, 13-15); P-88, P-108

dnd P-149 as bullets also fired from the ‘Llama (261 231, 9-11 and
20

24T 233, 13-17); several rounds and clips which fit the Browning.

(41 238 and 24T 239% . ,

Lintott then identified "P-142" and 127, another metal G %

jacketed bullet (24T 242, 16-20), which he testified that his tests
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sho;ed‘that this bullet had pgcn fired by the 9mm caliber Browning
automatic, "P-76." (24T 243, 1-10) b

5 Ove; objection (;hT 260), Lintotc’fggzified that he compared

"p-48" in evidence as being Costan's holster with the 9mm Browning

and found that because of the stretch marks in the holstet, he de-

termined that these marks corresponded to the protruding parts of

the gun (24T 261, 5 to 24T 262, 10) concluding by stating that he . p . ”
felt that a 9mm Browning had been carried in that holster. _Hd'a;;" ::
admit that another gun could have been carried in the holster on ‘
the night in question and still have found tﬁg stress marks from 10
the Browning in it. (24T 270, 12-14) '

He then testified that "P-53" in evidence (the Browning 380 : ‘Aﬁ
caliber automatic pistol) found by Co§tun's boot was examined in : :
the laberatory nnd.found to be operable and having blood stains $ fg
on it. (24T 271, 22-24) He testified that the serial number had_ :
been removed from the Browning 38 automa{ic and the 9mm Luger
caliber automatic. (24T 272, 20-24) Through a chemical process ﬁ?

e “w

was able to restore the serial number on "p-53" in evidence, the

nusber being "71N12237". (24T 273, 19) He then identified "P-158"

for identification as being six 380 caliber metal jacketed bullet
. ? E

cartridges (24T 275, 12-15) and "p-122", a 380 ‘caliber discharged.
sholl.casing.(ZbT 276, 11-12), which he testified had been fired

from the 380 caliber Browning automatic pistol. (24T 276, 15-19).
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He then identified "P-8" in evidence as being Trooper Harper's 38
speciul caliber colt revolver. (24T 281, ‘16-24) He then identified
"p-84" for 1del;tification, which Eonsi;tcd of five shells for a 38
special caliber revolver (24T 282, 3-12), which he’ determined had

been fire‘ from Trooper Harper's revolver (P-8). (24T 282, 17)

‘" Lintott then identified "P-52" as being the special Smith and

He?son revolver issued to Trooper Foerster (24T 290, 14-25), and
"PTI‘ZJ“ as being some discharged shells of 38 spccinl—caliber.
(24T 291, 16-18) He testified that I‘llsucomparlson tests showed
that these shells had been fired from Foerster's revolver. (24T
291>, 21-25) He then identified "P-140 and-P-141" for identifica-
tion stating that it was a bullet which his tests indicated had
been fired from Foerster's revolver. (2.61‘ 293, 1-8)

The next witness was Dr. Edwin Albano, Medical Examiner
for the State of New Jersey. Dr. Albano was qualified as an ex-
pert (24T 367), and then testified that he performed a post-mortum
cxamination of the body of Werner Foerster, at the Perth Amboy
“Hospital Morgue on H:y 2, 1973. (24T 367, 19-22) He stated
that when he. first saw Foerster's body, he was wearing a light
blue uniformed shirt, bloodstained with two holes in it; light
trousers, bloodstained; a white undershirt, bloodstnlned'wl:‘\ a
hole in ‘tl'me_f‘ront of it; and bloodstained.shorts. (24T 368, 8-25)
Clothes ﬁte then admitted -1nco evi_dence over defense ‘objection.

(2“{ 371) He (N ‘the following marks of injury: A bullet“wound

o
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of entrance on the left side of the neck with pou;der marks surrounding
the entrance of the wound (24T 373., 1.-7), passing through the skull.
The bullet, of largé caliber and distorted, »;as found lodged at a
point near the scalp. (24T 373, 12-22) There was also a second

bullet m.:un of the head with the wound of entrance situated back and
above the left ear. (24T 374, 7-11) There were no powder marks
noticable‘near thlls wound. The bullet also passed through the skull 2
ur'id éhe brain and lodged near the point where t.he spinal cord meets

the btain. (2:‘0'1‘ 374, 16 to 24T 375, 14) This was also a large

caliber, distorted, lead bullet. (24T 375, 7-10) Albano also found 10
a bullet wound of éntrance in the right chest which also “ad no In-
-
dication of blacking or scoréhing or gun poufler marks. (4T 375, !
15-22) -There was,however, a broad scrape or abrasion just below g

the wound of entrance. (24T 3757 22~ 23) This bullet passed through A
' muscle and tissue in the right chest and part of the lower right -
lung, afd exited at a point on the outside of the right shoulder.
| (241 376, 2-10) There was another bullet wound of entrance in the
: front of the right arm, slightly about 16 inches below t.he right’ ¥

shoulder. (24T 376, 16-18) .

Other wounds found by Albano were abrasions of the left R -,

ct;uik. laceration of the scalp about four inches back from the

bridge of the nose, laceration of the left side of the head and

Yarinus other small lacerations, of the left thumb, left index i
) - b ;




. finger, middle forefinger, sc_utt.cred bruises over the skin of tﬁe
right leg, and small scattered abrasions on the back of the right
ha;d. (24T 377, 17 to 24T 378, 13) 1In his opinion the weapon from
which the bullet was fired that made the wound entering the neck
was fired at a distance of at least six inches but not more than
18 inches from the body. (24T 386, 11-14) The doctor stated that &

death was due to bullet wounds of the head with lacerations, >

_abrasions and hemorrhaging of the brain. (24T 386, ! )

) Albano then testified tl;n: he also performed a post-mortum

examination of one James Costan. (2141‘.389, 20-25) He found a 10
l;ullet wound of the chest, which showed no powder marks, which

continued through the chést into the lung and liver and exited g
out the lower ri;;h.t back. (24T 395, 1-21) Death was determined "é
4B be due from the bullet wound perforating the right lung and ;

liver with massive hemorrhage in the right chest cavity. (24T

397, 1) Over objection, the doctor testified that one recelving M
such a bullet wound would collapse and fall to the ground imme-

diately. (24T 399, 12 through 13)

The next witness was Frank J. Tonaino, Dr. Albano's

assistant. e testified that on the sucon'q of May, he assisted : 20 g
with éhe‘nﬂtopsy that was performed on w'cmer Foerster and Jm;\el %
Costan. (24T 401, 12-14) He testificd that he took blood samples 7
from Foerster and Costan and turncd them over to Detective Wilke. 5 ;g

(24T 402, 1-10) -




S

The néxt witness was Deputy Chief of Police Edward John Mullin
Eton‘Petth Ambo&. Defense object;d to his qualifications as an expert
to testify about an injury to S;ulre's hund.fsxncc during the voir
dire he stated that he would be unable to tell that a specific

injury Jgs caused by a specific weapon. (24T 420) The court over=

_ruled the ‘objection to Mullin's exper e (24T 427), and Mullin then
o My

stated that the most common type of i. ury one receives from an
automatic weapon is due to the slide of the weapon hitting the web

portion of the hand due to an improper grip with the hand being too

“high on the handle of the weapon. (24T 428, 11-14) By the webbing, . .

he maant the portion between the thumb ‘and index finger. He testi-
fied further that when this type of lnjur;.occurs, it also slnus

down the action of the slide and can possibly cause a jamming in the
pistol. (24T 429, 3-4) Mullip~examined "p-109" and "P-110" (pictures
of Squire's hand) and testified that he had seen this injury numerous
times on persons who have mishandled or misfired an automatic weapon.
It was the classic type of injury that he had prcviously:desqribed
from holding a weapon with the hand too high on the handle. (24T 430,
7;10) Th}s testimony was admitted “over objection. (24T 432) Mullin
then testified that of the three weapons he examined, the Browning

380 caliber automatic weapon is the one most likely to have caused

~the knjury shown in the photographs. (24T 433, 14-15)

ud‘_:Lwawﬁnn.zumu;;hui‘xnsaaa;u;wanaéé.*ALunﬂndha
.
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He admitted on cross-examination that any one of the three guns,
if helJ improperly, could inflict an injury of the same type. Also
that each'one had a safety notch which is the part of the slide that
would actually cause the injury to one's hand. (24T 442, 2-14) He

further admitted ‘that he could not say with certainty that particular

'injury could'only be caused by the misuse of the particular gun,

"p-53." Defendants' motion that this testimony be stricken was ’ 5 M

_— 15

“

denied. (24T 444, 24) _ ~
. The next witness was George Hickman, a Principal Forensic

Chemist with the New Jersey State Police. Hilkman was stipulated 10

to be an expert in the area of blood groupings (24T 502), and over

an expert in“regards to bullet holes in _ i

NI S % -3

objection, was qualified as
fabric and metal. (25T 509, 5-10) He examined blood specimens and ;
slassified and typed the groups of that blood (ZST.509, {6-18), to
wits Cypi/:o" blood was th;t of Costan; apparently Squircvwas also
type "0"; Chésimard was type "B"; and Fgerster was type "AB." (25T
512, 20 to 25T 513, 2) Hicknan then tc}ufied that he examined
wp-53" (which was the 380 automatic) and found traces of bloo& type

o', (25T 514, 4 to 10) He then examined Foerster's equipment. On

"p-52", Foerster's revolver, he found type "0" blood. (25T 515, 5) 20 .

On "P-56", Foerster's holster, he also found type *'0" blood. (25T

515, 16) He also found type "0" blood on Foerster's belt bucklé,

pants and haty (257 5165 1-21) On "P-135", Foerster's shirt, he
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| 5 . found type "AB" blood. (25T 51 2-3) On "p-144", a hubcap, he found

type "AB" blood. (25T 518, 2) {ud on "P-173", the steering wheel

from the white Pontiac, he found type "AB" blood. (25T 520, 12-13)

On the 1nterior of the Pontiac, over objection, (25T 523), he testi-

fied that he found type "O" blood on the right side of the left seat. 3

(25T 522, 6-7) Type "g" blood on the right side of the roof and g
’ exterior passenger side, and on the driver's side handle. (25; 523, .
| is-zor 7 / :

Hickman continued testifying statlng that on "P-45", a jacket,

and "P-47", he was unable to find any {dentifiable blood, although 10
bloodstains were found. (26T 532, 11-12) But on "p-46" he found ‘
type "0" blood. (T 533, 12-13) He neXt c;s:eﬂ Chesimard's clothes '. 'ig
: for blood, and found type "AB" on her jacket, and traces of type "B" ;
~on the jacket cuff. (26T 535, 1-4) On "P;}ﬁT. a green hat, he found "@
type "AB" blood. (26T 535, 10-12) On the ixgh: side doors of car
486, he also found'type "AB" blood. (26T. 536. 20-21) ; :
He further testified that he found butle: holes on a portion
of the roof and near the rear window of the white Pontiac. (26T

537, 23-25) Over objccilon as to competency, he stated that one of

20

\

\

\

|

|

| : g

} the holes indicated that the bullet had been fired from within the
| cav. (26T 541, 4-25) Hle then testified that he examined "P-88",

|
|

Lbuilet, and found traces of glass imbedded in it. (26T 544, 12-16)

o testified the clothes of both Costan and Chesimard showed no
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\cen of powder burns around the bullet holes. (26T 545, 1-18)
After_thls the State rested and defense made motions as
follows: A m;tion for a judg?enc of acquittal with respect to
Indictment 1436-72 (27T 2), and that the 4th, Sth, 3rd and 6th " g

count of the indictment (assaults on Harper) be dismissed on the

o

ground that there was no evidence of any conspiracy or activity
on the part of defendant Squire towards Trooﬁer Harper. (27T

6, 3-6) Defense counsel argued that there was no proof that /

Squire aided and abetted anyone with respect to the attack on
Harper. (27T 7, 2-8) Defense counsel then argued that if the 10
- s court chose not to dismiss these counts against Mr. Squire,

e

then the 3rd, 4th, S5th and 6th counts should be merged and re-

garded as one charge of assault with intent to kill or assault
and battery on a police officer, or assault with an offensivé
weapon. (27T 12, +3-24) Defense argued that the seventh count™
ghould also be .d'lsmissed since all of the weapons were not only

in the automobile but in the personal possession of Costan and

Chesiward, therefore, not attributable by way of constructive
possession to Squire. (27T 20, 6-13)
The court ruled as follows: The motion to delete the 20
nnmc/oE James. Hoenry Walker from the caption of the-matter was
granted (27T 73); nmotion to delete the name of Archie Gibson was ! § L

denied (27T 74); the motion for directed verdict as to the first

count of thetindictment was denied (27T 74, 6-10); motion as to the
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Qecond count was g.r.-mted (27T 81); motion on the 3rd, 4th, S5th and 6th
counts were also denied (27T 76). The court noted also that the merger
of the counss would takesplace at sentencing. (21T 75, 1-7) On the 7ti\‘ .
count, the motion was denied. (27T 82) SRS
Following this, the defense called its first witness, Dr. David
M Spain, After stating his qualifications as a physican and patholo-
gist, Dr. Spain stated that he had sat at counsel's table in the court ;
and heard testimony of two witnesses, in particular " the tes y of :
Deputy Chief Mullin. (27T 86, 1-11) He also had occasion to review

‘three photographs in respect to alleged injuries of the hand of the 10

defendant. (27T 86, 7-11) le also examined a particular weapon,

namely, the 380 Browning automatic pistol, P-53, in evidence. (27T
38, >19-210) His opinion was that h"_ did not believe that the weapon i
could have caused the injury to the hand. (27T 92, 20-21) Dr. Spain
continued t{s(ttfylng, uta:lné that he had listened to the testimony
of Dr. Albano and read ‘n copy of Dr. Albano's autopsy report with
rcspectv to James Costan. (27T 93, 1-7) He testified that in his
opinion Costan could have survived a perlod of time from a few

minutes to 3/4 of an hour or more with the. injury he had received.

(271 93, 24-25) He further stated that Costan actually could have 20

been active for a period of time with the injuries hé had %ustained.

(27T 96, 12-13) He further stated that the individual could nat.

collapse untu enough time had passed where he had lost enough

-
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blood to throw hi; into shock. (27T 96, 19-20). The defense then
rested, sand repewed {ts motions made at the end of the State's case,
which wer;Adenled by the court. (27T 127)

Following summations and the charge, the defendant was found !
-guilty of all counts. ‘

On May 3, 1974, a motion gor a new trial was made before s E
Judge Bachman. . At this time, thé defense stated -that the motion
was actually four motions. (1) A motion for a new trial to set_as?de

a jury's verdict(which was actually a continuation of the motion o

made at the end of the trial),and a motion for a new trial based . 1o i
on the fact that the verdf{ct3vas ngulnsc the welght of the evidence; B ' .

—— "
(2) A motion to return ccrtnin monies of Squlre ! allegedly seized . g

from him by the police; (3) A renewed motion for leave to challengl
/

the panel of the orlglnnl Jury selection in Morris County, and (4)

A motion by the State :o strike certain statistical data having to

do with the motion on attacking the panel. (30T 2)

The court stated it would adjourn the motion to attack the *

panel to a later date when Mr. Brown would be available to argue

it. (30T 4) The court ruled that upon receipt of a satlafactéry

affidavit, the monies of the defendant would be returned to him, . 20

(30T 5) The motion for a new trial was denied. (30t 13)

At sentencing, defense moved that the 3rd, 4ch and Sth

counts, involving assaults, be -étgnb_and considered for the purposes
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of aetfltcncins, as one offense. He also asked that the armed tobbety'

count be merged with the first count - murder in the first dégree,

as a concept of felony murder. (31T 3) The court then merged the

3rd, 4th and 5th counts into the 6th count, granting ‘thut motion..

(31T 5) The court denied the defendant's motion to merge the posses-

sion of a weapon count into the murder count. (31T 11)
) ng_f’?dgnbtn sentenced by Judge Bachman to life imMm:l

on the first count; 10-12 years on the sixth count; 2-3 years on the

seventh count and 12-15 years on the eighth count.

be served consecutively. (31T 41)

.

All sentences to

y..],o
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LEGAL ARG NT

POINT I

JOINT REPRESENTATION OF DEFENDANT
BY CO-COUNSEL, ONE OF WHOM WAS
COUNSEL FOR A SEVERED CO-DEFENDANT,
(\ VIOLATED DEFENDANT'S RIGHT TO
EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL
UNDER THE SIXTH AND FOURTEENTH

AMENDMENTS . ,/’/,'

Defendant Squire was indicted with co-defendant Joanne

Chesimard. (Da-1 to Da-5) At the start of the trial Squi..re 10 )
x ‘wu represented by James T. McKinney, Esq.. and Chesimard
jointly by Evelyn Williams, Esq. and Raymond Brown, Esq.
McKinney and Williams were New York attorneys appearing in

New Jersey on a pro hoc vice basis, with Raymond Brown acting

as supervising attorney for both, as well as retained counsel

for Chesimard. During the jury voir dire, however, it was

discovered that defendant Chesimard was pregnant. Thercafter,

over a defense objection, a severance was granted. (14T 10)

Mr. Brown, who had been retained by defendant Chesimard's

family (14T 20, 21-25), was then told by the Court that as ‘ 20

“supervising attorney"” he would be responsible for both the -
PEa,
present trial and for the later-expected trial of Chesimard.

(141 19, 2-14) -The following colloquy then ensued:




But the law of the case is that
Mr. Brown has sponsored both of
you. I don't want to hear any-
thing about it. [ didn't set it

up. .

I don't want to hear a single,
solitary word about it,--

" MRS, WILLIAMS: Well, may I--—

THE COURT: --the conflict of
interest problem.

MRS. WILLIAMS: Your Honor, may I
just say this: would your Honor
at least consider, prior to making
a decision on the Prosecutor's mo-
tion, having both--

THE COURT: And if--let me say
this: if there be any possibility
of conflict of interest, then it's
almost incumbent upon me to grant
the Prosecutor's motion.

Think that one over. You just
said there's a possibillty of
conflict of interest. If there is,
then I have no choice but to grant
this motion.

MRS. WILLIAMS: Your Honor, it is
my very distinct impression that
_Mr. McKinney, Mr. McKinney's ad-
mission before the Courts of New
Jersey was based .on the sponsor=
ship of Mr. Brown, who is retained
by the family of Chesimard to re-
present her.

At no time has it been my
understanding that he also repre-
sented defendant Squire.

20
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THE COURT: Well,--
MRS, WILLIAMS: Except in that role.

THE COURT: We'll let you read Judge--
. N the trgnscript of Judge Gerofsky's
d ruling.

MRS. WILLIAMS: I have it.

23
THE COURT: ,All right. He's respon-
sible, he's the New Jersey attorney
responsible for both of you and, as &
such, must have a New Jersey attorney 10

in the courtroom at all times, even ’
on a separate processing, and th};’/’
{s no question about that.

(14T 19 to 14T 21, 13)

.

Again, just prior to thestart of the trial attorney Brown,
apparently scnsing a possible conflict of interest situation deve- ? i
lopin.g, represented to the court that he wished to withdraw from the * - e
case., (19T 2, 16-18) le pointed out that he had been retained only
by Chesimard's family and, although he: had agreed to the joint trial

/'originnlly. he 'fﬂlt‘ that since the severance a conflict aituat!.onv 20

would arise. (19T 2, 16 to 19T 3, 7) The court denied his request
hut stated that a member of Mr. Brown's firm could sit in for Mr.
Brown. (19T 3, 8 to 19T 5, 7) .-

Following this, attorney Bx.'own not only attended the b
trial daily as supervising attorney, but,  while still retained by
Che-imrd.'accually took pyrt in the trdal, olterl\sibly on behalf

of Squive, conducting several key examinatlons. It is of this

¥
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participation as well as the "supervision" of Squire's attorney
that the defendant now complains. Defendant submits that the dual
representation of possibly adverse parties by the same attorney
"% ylolated defendant Squire's right to the effectlve asslistance of
counsel unﬁet the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments, for two

reasons: (1) that Mr. Brown's nileglance to his retained clieant,

Chesimard, prevented him from vigorously pursuing all avsnuel of
defense for Squire, and (2) that Brown's role as supervising
attorney" had a chilling cffect on the defense put forth by 5

Squire's rctained attorney, Charles McKinney. 10 Z
>

The United States Supreme Court declared in Powell v.
Alabama, 287 U.S. 45, 53§, Ct. 55 (1932), that a criminal defen-
dant has a right to the Yeffective appointment” of counsel as an
integral part of his "right to counsel" as that term appears in
% the- Sixth Amendiient to the Constitution..

The full protection of the Constitutional right of a
criminal accused requires that judicial scrutiny focus upon the
competency or adequacy of representation affordedito such
persons. This 1s especlally s0 in cases involving court-

appointed defense counsel. As was stated by Mr., Justice Black

in Von Moltke v. Gillies, 332 U.S. 708, 725-26; 68 S. ct. 316 -

(1948) ,




“State v. anderson, 117 N.J.

% mod. and aff'd-60 NI 437,

with the Federal position as is shown by

Super. 20, 27-28 (App. Div. 1961):

This principle was reaf(}rmed recen

devoted service to a client are

prized traditions of the American
lawyer. It is this kind of service
for which the Sixth Amendment makes

provision. And, nowhere is this

service deemed more honorable than

in the case of appointment to re=

present an accused too poor to hire

a lawyer."

The State of New Jersey is, of course, in full cots:ggpnCt

.

"The right of an accused In a
criminal case 'to have the assis-
tance of counsel in his defense’
is granted by our Constitution,
N.J. Constitution (1947), Art. i ™
par. 10. When counsel is as-
signed at the request of a defen-
dant he becomes bound to fully
and faithfully serve the
{nterests of his client within
the boundaries of professional
ethics. His duties include not
only the extremely important
matter of satisfying himself
that the defendant understands
the nature of the charge laid
against him, and the consequences
of a plea of guilty, but also_of

fully acquainting himself with

the nature of the charge and the’
facts of the case so that he may
informally advise the defendant
concerning the same."

"Undivided allegiance and faithful

State V. Ercolind:’65 N.J.

AL A

tly in the case of
Super. 507, 520-521 (App. Div. 1971),

in which it was held that:

10

20




-

"pefendant was entitled to the
effective assistance of competent
counsel. He camnot be left to
thé mercies of incompetent
counsel. It is one of our func-
tions to assure that attorneys
representing defendants in
criminal cases maintain proper
standards of professional perfor-
mance." -

{
L

The Federal c°urtsvhave often>he1d that the assignment of

counsel in a state prosecution under such circumstaunces as to pre=

clude the giving of effective ald in the preparation and trial of a

o - case is a denial of due process of law. Reece v. Georgia, 350 U.S.

85, 76 S. Ct. 167 (1955): Powell v. Alabama, supra; Avery v.

oW .

Alabama, 308 U.S..AAA. 60 S. Ct. 321 (1940).

Yet, what is meant by "effective assistance of counsel";

what standards nrg/ncceptablal
A defendant is entitled to the indi®idual loyalty and

The leading United States Supreme Court

62 S. Ct. 457, 86 L.

attention of counsel.

case, Glasser V. United States, 315 U.S. 60,

Ed. 680 (}932) states:

‘@ The 'assistance of counsel'
guaranteed by the §ixth Amend-
ment contemplates that said
assistance be untrammeled and . ¢ 2
unimpaired by a court order
requiring that one lawyer
shall simultancously represent
conflicting interests." 62 S.
Ct. at 465.

20




That court further pointed out: "[rrespective of any

conflict of igtercst, the additional burden of representing

another party may conceivably impair counsel's effectiveness "

(62 S. Ct. at 467) See also Government of Vl}gln TIslands V.

Hernandez, 476 F. 2d 791 (3rd Cir. 1973).
In .

The Third Circuit has also confronted the issue.
7

United States ex rel. Hart v. Davenport, 478 F. 2d 203 (1973), -—",uaf

»

the Court of Appeals held that:

The legal standard to be applied
N to a claim of prejudice from joint 10
representation is clear ‘enough.
The right to counsel guaranteed by
the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments
contemplates the gervice of an
attorney devoted solely to the
interests of his client. The right 5 o
to such untrammelled and unimpaired S e
assistance applies both prior to
5 trial in considering how to plead
[eitation omitted] and during p
trial [citation omitted]. Recog— e
nizing that the right to such
- assistance of counsel may be
waived [citation omitted], we have
refused to find any such waiver
¥rom a silent record. [Citations
onitted]. We have not yet held
that the coincidence of joint
representation and a silent
record is alone enough to require
relief [citation omitted]. On the |
other hand, we have rejected the
approach that before relief will
be considered the defendant must
show some specific instance of
,ptcjudice; [Citations omitted].
.
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Instead, we have held that upon a
showing of a possible conflict of
interest or prejudice, however
remote, we will regard joint re-
presentation as constitutionally
( defective. [at 209-210]

Purtﬁer. the Third Circuit has held that while rcpresnntntion-of
co-defendants by the same attorney is not tantamount to denial of
4 3
effective assistance of counsel guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment g
there must only be some showing of a possible conflict of 1nt;::::f/— 10
or prejudice, however remote, before a reviewing court will find

joint representati®n as constitutionally defective. Walker V.

United States, 422 F. 2d 374 (3rd Cir. 1970), cert. den., 399 U.S.

915, 90 S. Ct. 2219, 26 L. Ed. 2d 573 (1970). This test is appli-

cable to State proceedings. United States ex rel, Hart v.
/
_Davenport, supra at 210.

The ABA Project Standards for Criminal Justice, Standards

Rolating to the Defqug_fpnction'(Approved Draft, 1971), at 835

and commentary at p. 214 counsels strongly against joint repre-=

qontacion noting among other things that: 20

’ "he weaker defense may often de-
tract {rom the stronger, and a
lawyer may find to assert a point
vigorously for one client operates ‘
to disparage the other or put him
in a bad light. Such situations
' underscore the need for separate
tuprcﬂuntulluu...[T]hc risk of an
. unforeseen and even unforeseeable
. 3 conflict of interest seveloping

K




is so great that a lawyer should
decline multiple representation
unless therg is no other way in

* which adequate representation
can be provided to the defendants."

o Nor will it do to show the defenses were consistent. Sanchez

v. Nelson, 446 F. 2d 849 (9th Cir. 1971); For this reasoning is s

often circuldr,since it is clear that the very fact of joint
¥

repreaentntion frequently prevents the development of real “",—-” 3

differences and strategles. The test remains that set forth in 10 _

United States ex rel., Hart, supra: whether there exists a possible

conflict of Interest or prejudice. However remote, this will

render the joint representation constitutionally defective.

It is possible, of course, to waive one's right to effec-

tivqﬁfssistancc of counsel by ratifying, in effect, a conflict

of tntetesg/;;Lsing from joiﬁt representation. Hart, supra at
209, 210. While the right to such assistance of counsel mny'be
intelligently and'knowlngly waived, a walver cannot be found on

Government of Virgin Islands_v. Hernandez,

a silent record.

.supra, Government of Virgin Tslands v. John, 447 F. 2d 67 (3rd 20

Cir. 1971).. There is a duty on the-trial judge. to presewve the :
A e

defchdnnt's right to effcctive assistance of counsel, and "to

Classer,

ndulge every rcasonnble presumption against waiver."

supra, 62 S Ct. nt 665. “Further, it makes no difference that

counsel was retained rather than assigned as in.Glasser. Uniteg

wart_v. Davenport, 478 F. 2d 203 (3rd Cix. 1973);



State v. Ebinger, 97 N.J. Super. 23 (App. Div. 1967); Campbell

v. United States, 352 F. 2d 359 (D. C. Cir. 1965). A growing

number of courts have come to recognize the importance of the
need for an affirmative finding of waiver on the record by the

trial judge. Campbell v. United

supra; Inllar V.

United States, 376 F. 2d 243 (1967). United States v. chano.

———

420 F. 2d 769 (2nd Cir. 1970); United States v. Foster, 469 F.

EWES Sep Ny TS BT

2d 1 (1st Cir. 1971), Government of Virgin Islands v. Mernnv'*!r’”"’d”

supra, United States v. Deberry, 487 F. 2d 448 (2und-Cir. 1971),

State v. Green, 129 N.J. Super. (App. Div. 19?4).. Such a

" waiver will not be founded on a silent record. lart, supra,
In fact, New Jersey courts have recommended that trial court;
conduct voir dires whenever a possible conflict situation

arises., State v, Green, supra.

The above being the current state of the law, the

questions presented here are: (1) was chére a conflict of
interest in the participation by Mr. Brown in Squire's de-
fense; (2) was defendant Squire prejudlced therefrom; and,
(3) did Squire waive his right to effective representation.
That a posslble conflict existed scems ovaous.A All
_thtec defense counsel recognlzcd this and infotmcd the
COuit of the conflict on at least two occasions. (14T 19 to

14T 21. 13 and 197 2, 16-18) The Court not only rejected

'ééﬁn;éls' arguments, but indeed ordered<Brown to be present

. v ) Y

10

20
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This, defendant submits, was error. (It should

at Squire'ﬂ trial.

be noted here that this claim of error is actually two-fold: that

the Court erred in orderipg Brown to continue as “supcrvlsing”

attorney and that the Court and counsel McKinney erred permitting

‘Brown to take-an active part in the trial. Since the constitutional

right to effective asaistance of counsel does not depend on court

or counsel requestlng same, and since the “Court has the ultimate

responsibility of assuring the defendant a fair trial, the eriz:””r’,

§

must be ascribed to the court.)

The most recent New Jersey case on the issue at bar is

state v. Green, 129 N.J. Super. 157 (App. piv. 1974). In that

case one Guida, a hitchhiker, was given a ride by Green. Green's

van was stopped by the police, narcotics were found in the van,

and Green and Guida were charged with possession of a controlled

dangerous//ﬁbstance. Green, at 160. Both were represented by

one counsel and both convicted. GCuida appealed claiming that he

was denied effective assistance of counsel because of the con~

flict of interest between himself and Green.. The Court agreed,

holding that this case required separate counsel for each defen~

depended upon placing the

Green, at 163. The 2
'

23,

dant, since the defense of each
¥

possession of the narcotics with the other.

Court, citing with approval State V. Ebinger, 97 N.J. Super.

27.(App. Div: 1967) stated: ;

20 -




The right to adequate and effec-
tive representation by counsel is
so fundamental that invocation of
it cannot be made to depend on a
showing of prejudice [citations
omitted]. Moreover, where, as

~ here, a substantial conflict.of .
interest is present, the matter of
adequate and effective representa=
tion falls into a shadowy area which
is almost impossible to probesk*¥
(state v. Ebinger, 97 . Super.
23, 27 (App. Div. 1 ] cited in
Green, at 163.

Thus, in Green, the Appellate Division found a conflict

when it recognized that the best defense for each defendant would

be to agcrlbute the possession of the narcotics to the other.

Green, at 163. Likewise, in the present case, the obvious, and

perhaps only, defense for Squire was to attribute the murder and

assaults only to Chesimard. Such a defense would have been

reasonable and perhaps even believable considering the state's

own evidence. for {nstance, Harper had testified that, prior

to the shooting, Squire had cooperated with him completely;

that he never saw Squire with a weapon; and that Squire had not

pbeen firing at him (19T 542, 13-14); and, most tellingly, that

Squire had not cormunicated with Chesimard or Costan at any time

during the occur:cqce.‘(19T 537) Considering these facts, it

is conceivable that the jury could have believed that Squire did

aot murder Foerster, rather,Chesimard did, and that he did not

-

y
3
3

20
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share the common intent with Chesimard and Costan to be found
guilty of assaulting Harper as an aider and abettor. The theory 3

that could have been reasonably advanced, pased on Harper's tes—

timony and other ‘evidénce was that no common plan existed ; X
between Squire and Chesimard before the shooting; that while

squire had no intent to murder or assault (as evidenced by his

cooperation with Harper), He pencted against Foerster ;n self-

defense after Chesimard, ex parte, shot-Harper; and that after

Harper fled and Squire had wounggd Foerster in self-defense,

Chesimard executed Foerster with his own weapon. While this 10
theory may not have been believed by the jury, it is submitted

that it was an obvious theory to advance as suggested by the

evidence. Howcver, nowhere is this thébtj'éiéivéié;;iy

espoused. The closest the defense comes to it is in the cross=

exnmi&ntion of Dr. Albano and the testimony of Dr. Spain, ghcta
it is very indirectly suggested that Costan may have lived:
long enough toighoot Foerster.

But however tenable or untenable this theory may be,
the question remains as to why two experienced lawyers failed

to visorously pursue this or related defenses. Why was no

“¢clear defense theory ever outlined to the jury duttng openings

or closings? Why did the defense try to attrlbu:e Foerster's

murder to the mortally wounded Costan, instead of the slightly -
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wounded Chegimard (who was still ambulatory at her capture ir
62, 12-24))? Why was not the blame shifted to the instigator
and prime mover of the occurrence, Joanne Chesimard? As in
éé;ggg, oné can only surmise that because of the joint represen=
tation by an attorney who cxbected to face trial as Chesimard's
attorney was the defense of Squire vestricted. The case at
bar, as in Green, was one in which the defense of one defendant
could result in conviction of the other. Conflict was .
alarmingly obvious and clearly called for Brown~f5'::s:;placed
as "supervising” attorney and especially demanded that he take
no active part in the trial. He most certainly should not have
exanined key witnesses who could, while aiding Squire, shift
the guilt to Chesimard. It is patently clear that participa-
tion by Brown in Squire's trial was in obvious conflict uich>

his répresentntion of Chesimard. As outlined in Hart:

-~ ...upon a showing of a possible

conflict of ‘interest or preju-
dice, however remote, we will
regard joint representation as
constitutionally defective.
Hart, suprafat 209, 210.
(emphasis added)

We next turn to the question of preiudice. It is clear,
first of all, that when a possible conflict, however remote,
(Egig. supra) is shown, the defendant need not point to any
particular prejudice to him resulting therefrom. State V.

ibinger, 97 N.J. Super. 23, 27 (App. Div. 1967).

-

10

¥
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In Ebinger, the defendant was convicted of armed robbery
while a co-defendant, represented by the same counsel, entered a
plea of guilty to the same charge and testified against Ebinger
prior to his own sentencing. Ebinger at 25. Thus, one counsel
represented a man pleading innocence and a co-defendant admitting
his guilt and hoping for a Mghter sentence through his coopera= . -
tion with the‘Scn:e by testifying against the former. Ihpr!f;:;V -

conceded the conflict Su: alleged that no prejudice resulted

from it. The court disagreed, holding: =

The right to adequate and effective 10
representation by counsel is so . )
fundamental that invocation of it ol
cannot be made to depend on a

showing of prejudice. Gideon v.

Wainwright, 372 U.S. 335, 83 S.° A
Ct. 792, 9 L. Ed. 2d 799 (1963). b
See Glasser v. United States, 315
U.S. 65, 62 S, Ct. 457, 86 L. Ed. e
680 (- '2); Porter v. United .
States, supra. Moreover, where, 20

as here, a substantial conflict

of interest is present, the matter
of adequate and effective repre=
sentation falls into a shadowy
area which is almost,impossible

to probe. We hold that in the
circumstances here presented de-
fendant did not have adequate and
effective representation at trial
in the constitutional sense and
that, irrespective of the question
of actual prejudice, his convie-
tion cannot stand.

Ebinger, at 27.




See also, Porter v. United States, 298 F. 2d 461 (5

Cir. '1962); United States ex rel. Platts v. Myers, 253 F. Supp. 23
(E. D. ta. 1966). ’
It is submitted, however, that even though a showing of

prejudice is not required, it is obvious in the case sub judice

§

defense were not vigorously pursued, no clear theory of del’cy’-f"'-

i

\

\

|

|

|

}' : from the record. As discussed in detail above, all theories of .
\

|

| y

| ever presented to the jury in openings or closings, and the long
\
|
\

aimless cross-examinations of State's witnesses never pointed

toward Squire's innocence at the expense of Chesimard. Most .10 .
telling;y, the unreasonable course of trying to pln;:e the murder :;;
weapon in the hands of the mortally wounded Costan, thtou-gh :4‘
examination of Lintott, Albano and Spain was followed instead .:i

of accua/i.n} the only slightly wounded Chesimard. All of this

7 must lead inescapably to the obvious conclusion that

risk of eliciting damaging iestimony which could possibly be

|

|

|

r“ ::'c'(uitver's attorneys were not prepared to defend Squiare at the
} later used against Chesimard.

\ . © The same situation existed in United States ex rel.
Platts v. Myers, 253 Supp. 33 (E. D. Pa. 1966). There the 20

court stated:

-""The testimony of the two con-
federates clearly implicated.the
relator, but the relator's plea
of not gullty clearly Lndlcatsd
his contention that- he was not
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involved in the robbery. The lawyer
was thus in a very awkward position.
-On the one hand his job was to pre-
sent the best -possible case for the
petitioner, and this involved the
impeachment of his other two clients
who were witnesses for the Common-
wealth. On the other hand, he also =~ S Y . .
{ - had the task of protecting them. - ;
% Since the Court had deferred their 10
sentencing until after petitioner's
3 trial, it seems obvious that the o
[ severity of their sentences de- ‘4"",

f . pended in large measure on their >

testimony against the relator and

their general cooperation with the

prosecution. 1If the attorney had

succeeded in impeaching these two
ot : witnesses for the relator's bene-

fit, he would have destroyed the . 20

effectiveness of their testimony

and thus vitiated the very factor

that would have weighed heavily

in their favor when they came up

for sentencing. No attorney could

have effectively advocated both

- these positions simultaneously.

* * *

Whether or not prejudice existed,

it is sufficient to constitute a 30
violation of the relator's con-

stitutional rights if the lawyer

is serving conflicting interests."

Platts, at 24, 5.

Likewise, defendant Squire, as do all defendants, had a right to.

s nothing less than the undivided loyalty of counsel. '1hus, al=

though prejudice need not be shown, when it is apparent, as in
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————N RN at bar, it is an even more compelling reason mandating
. »

" reversal. = ) :
. .
Finally, it is submitted that defendant did not walve 3
his right to effective assistance of counsel. -

As noted in Campbell V. United States, 352 F. 2d 359
™ (p. C. Cir. 1965), an {ndividual is rarely iophlstleated
. )
enough to evaluate the potential COM

“econsiderations of efficient judi-
cial administration as well as 3
{mportant rights of defendants are .10 Ser
gserved when the trial judge makes )
an affirmative determination that
. co-defendants have intelligently
B - chosen to be represented by the
gamé attorney and that their de-
‘cision was not governed by poverty
and lack of information on the un=
availability of assigned counsel."
Campbell, p. 360.

The right to effective assistance of counsel is a con=  ~ 20

stitutional right too fundamental and absolute to allow courts

to indulge in nice calculations as to the amount of prejudice

arising from its denial:~“®lasser, Supra, 62 S. Ct. 467.
Accord: State V. Ebinger, supra.
:

Moreover, not only will waiver not be presumed from a . ¥
silent record (Covernment of Vir in Islands V. llctnandei,
supra), but the Mew Jersey courts have clearly outlined the

p:dc-nlun to be followed ia the face of a possible conflict. : ;

In State v. Green, Supra the Court stated:

>



=

Whenever an_instance of dual re-
presentation :BBr:;;,_ic would be ;
. appropriate for the court to conduck ... ST
g -voir dire at the carliest con-
venient time to determine whether or
- not all defendants thus represented
: have been fully informed of the po- -
tential hazards of such a course.
1f they have been fully informed
and still elect to proceed in that 10
fashion, their willingness to do so
should be made a matter of record.l :
1f this procedure is followed it will o
be unnecessary for a:‘:%p-tfﬁte court
to decide on a silent cord whether
or not a defendant has been denied
his constitutional right to effective
assistance of counsel by joint re-
presentation. Green, at 162.

Not only was this ﬁ;SEEJUTe\noc Eollowe& in the case sub 20
judice, but to the contrary, when unsel pointed out the possible
conflict to the Court, the court simply replied that it was

not interested in the problem. (14T 19 to 14T 21, 13) The court

Wad appnfently felt that the matter had been settled by Judge Gerofsky -
in ordering Brown to be "supervising attorney" (14T 19), and that
since Brown could substitute a member of his firm, there would be 4

no conflict. (19T 3, 8 to 19T 5, 7) Both reasons are incorrect.

; “
v Judge Gerofsky's ruling was made when there was to be a joint

| trial. His rcasoning was no longer cogent after the severance.

. ’ i

1. See Code of Professional Responsibility, DR 5-105(C), for ; 30

the nature of the obligations imposed on the attorney electing

to represent multiple clients and see also Standard 3.5 of the -

ABA Project on Standards for Criminal .ustice, "Standards Re=

Jating to the Defense Function" (Approved Draft 1971).
‘ s
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Secondly, it is clear that a conflict would have remained even 1f

" Brown*had substituted an assoclate for himself.

In sum, it is clear defendant Squire was denied cffec—

tive assistance of counsel. It is obvious that a defense

attorney devoted solely to the interests of Squire would have

emphasized the absence of evidence against him in comparison to
4

that against Chesimard. It is also obvious that any e{ig,;ftﬂ“'
ve the inevitable re-

negate this evidence as to Squire would ha

action of focusing attention on Chesimard, Brown's other client.
By the very fact of his representation of both, Brown was 10

restricted in both argument and scope of questioning and thereby

prevented from maintaining a vigorous defense on Squire's behalf.

Sﬁsb'beins the case, reversal is mandated.




- ' . . * .
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POINT II

% COURT ERRED IN QUALIFYING CHIEF

} LIN AS AN EXPERT WITNESS AND N

R PLMITTING HIM TO TESTIFY OUTSIDE
THE SCOPE OF ANY ALLEGED EXPERTISE.

J

5
. . M‘a'd?,-v" ‘;ZQ
Deputy Police Chief Edward Mullin testified that feor 23 :
fears he had been a fircarms,instructoi and had extensive ex-
perience with firearms. (24T 405) He also testified that he had
observed injuries caused by the mishandling of automatic pistoié.

(24T 406, 15-24) Over an objection to his qualifications as an ) 10

expert, Mullin was permitted to testify as follows:

el “ Mullin stated that the most common type of injury one
receives from an automatic weapon is due to the slidé of the
weapon hitting the web portion of the hand due to an improper

grip, with the hand being too high on the handle of the weapon.

(241 28, 11-14) By the webbing, he meant the portion between

the ‘thumb and index finger. He testified further that when

chis type of injury occurs 1f algo slows down the action of the

slide and can possibly cause a jamming in the pistol. (241 29,

3-4) Mullin examined "P-109" and "P-110" (piciuros of Squire‘s' 20

“hand) and tesvificd chat he had o seen this injugf
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" resulting from holding a wcupm; with

__same type. Further,
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on persons who have mishandled or misfired an automatic weapon.

It was the classic type of injury that he had previously described)

the hand too high on_the

handle. (24T 430, 7-10) This testimony was admitted over objec—
tion. (24T 32) Mullin then testified that of the three weapons
he examined, the Browning 380 caliber automatic weapon is the one

most likely to have caused the injury shown in the photographs.

(24T 433, 14-15) ‘ :

: y ¢

o e

He admitted on «.ross-cx‘lmim\:ion that any OW ﬁi&
three guns, if held improperly, could inflict an lnjuty of the 10

cach one had a safety notch which is ‘the 3

part of the slide that would actually cause the injury to one's

hand. (24T 442, 2-14) He further admitted that he could not
say with certainty that that particular injury could only be_
He further

caused by the mlsusc of the partlculur gun, "p-43."

W g
. admitted that upon looking at the photographs he could not say

that the injury was caused by the gun slide to the exclusion

of any other source. (24T 449, 8-10) A motion to strike his
testimony was then denied. (24T 449, 17-19)

Defendant here submits that although it may have been

within the Court's discretion to qualify uuum as a Eitenm

expert, the Court errcd in permitting Mullin to teabify as to

the cause of the injury to squire's hand since this testimony




was outside the scope of Mullin's expertise and not properly the

‘subject of expert op!nion testimony.
- Generally, the opinion of witnesses possessing peculiar
skill is admissible in evidence whenever the subject matter of
 inquiry is such that inexperienced persons are unlikely to be
capable of forming a correct judgment upon it without such assis-

tance. Nesta v. Meyer, 100 N.J. Super. 434 (App. Div. 1968);

Pincus v. Sublett, 26 N.J. Super. 188 (App. Div. 1953):"Sh‘,¢—wf

decision as to whether a witness possesses expertise in a specific
area and whether that expertise is necessary, is discretionary
with the judge. State v. Griffin, 120 N.J. Super. 13 (App. Div.
1972). But it has always been the law in New Jersey that the
Court commits error when it allows a witness to express an
opinion where there is no evidence to show expert knowledge of
ghé/;:bject under inquiry. Riley v. Camden and T. Ry. Co., 70
N.J.L. 289 (E & A 1904). Similarly, it is error to allow expert
testimony in an area which does not require that expertise,

"In the final analysis the inquiry must of necessity be whether

the jury needs the witness' inference, either because of his

-

10

skill or because his 'observed data’ does not lend itsell to

adequate reproduction. Wigmore, section 1925." Priest v.
-
Poleshuck, 15 N.J. 557, 564 (1954). In the first instance,

AL

the error is that of incompetence. In the second instance,
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. the error is that of invading the province of the jury.

*

case sub judice, the determination that the defendant's wound

In State v. Sa(:hs, 69 N.J. Super. 566 (App. Div. 1961),

the court stated that the detective's expertise ended at the

nature and use of various items. Citing Cook v. State, 24 N.J.L. ¥
@3 (E & A 1855) and State V. Rabatin, 25 N.J. Super. 24 (App.

‘Div. 1953), the Court held that the detective's conclusion as to

who had custody or control of the tickets was one for the jury's

deteminntion. "Such a conclusion was not one which depended on

peculiar k.nowl.edge or experience, not: common to the world. State S

~ve Ledeﬁn_;‘lg_, 112 N.J.L. 366 (E & A 1933); Ranpfer v. Dearfield 10

Macking Corp., 4 N.J. 135, 142 (1950)." Sachs, at 577. In the -

was caused by a particular weapon is clearly not a conclusion e

which depénded on )mll}n"s peculiar-knowledge or experience. It

was an issue which could b scided by anyone with common

experience and further, was without the scope of expertise of
a firearms expert, being rather medical testimony. The fact
that the conclusion was drawn by an "expert" must have given

undue added weight to its conclusiveness in the mind of the

_‘t__(';_hl:}lf: poslcmn of the vi_ccx.m bct’ore and after ench shot;

ju!:y. 20

In State v. Vigliano, 50 N.J. 51 (1967), the State's’

wnncss, who had exnmincd the scene of the crime, testified as




whe\thar ;he victim was sitting or standing; whether the defendant
moved from one position to another between shots; and as to the
path of the bullets. The court held that these conclusions called
for spgculniion rather than permissible expert opinion, and con-
sequently invaded the province of the jury. The court stated
that the trial court committed error when iwm‘itted this testi-
mony. * In the present case, the officer was permitted to speculate
ml)r. only as to the cause ‘of the wound, but actually as to which
weapon caused it. The speculative nature of his opinions was_
clearly highlighted during cross-examination when Mullin admitted
that not only could any one of the weapouns have énused the injury
(24T 442), but ﬂls!; that he could not even say that the injury
could only be caused by a pistol slide as opposed to any other
source. (24T 449, 8-10) Thus, the very witness who placed, by
implication, the murder weapon in Squire's hand,was basing his
opinion on conjecture and surmise.

In Biro v. Prudential Insurance Co. o‘f Amcr-ica, 110

N.J. Super. 391 (App. Div. 1970), rev'd 57 N.J. 204 (1970), the

plaintiff related the facts 'surroundins the injury to the

Medical Examiner. Based on these facts, and a later examina-

tion of the body, the trial court pemittgd the examiner to
%gﬁlycr his opinion as t°,h°" death occurred; The Sﬁprm Court”

determined ﬂut. this was error.
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"An expert witness merely has

an expanded body of knowledge or

*  gkill in one or more particular
fields which are beyond the

» scope of laymen called for jury

sepwice. It is to help the
/ﬁgrs'thac he is permitted to
~ testify as to conclusions to be
drawn from the scope of his en-

larged expertise." Biro, at 10 .
404, ’ ;

But to allow the.ex.amincr to testify as he did here, continued ,;hd'/”
Court, woluld upset the delicate balance which is the fact-finding i
process. The jury was perfectly capable, given the medical and
physical evidence, to come to its own conclusion about whether the
death was a suicide. Biro, at 404-405. In the case sub judice,
the jury was perfectly capable of comparing the photographs of the
wound Hith}hs pistols ip evidence and drawing or not drawing a
conclusion therefrom. -
Likewise, in In re Hyett, 61 N.J. 518 (1972), the Court

rejected the testimony of a doctor as to Hyett's insanity because

the opinion was founded on the doctor's belief that Hyett, a

lawyer, would not have acted in the manner he did;-in.the handling
of a particular case, unless he was "insane." The court reasoned

that the doctor was not qualified to determine what ‘would be the

"normal” handling of a case by a sane lawyer, hence could not

assess Hyett's conduct as abnormal. lNyett, at 531, The court,

in describing the role of the expert witness statedt —




In the case sub judice, while Mullin may have been quali-
RN fied to state that such a wound could come from the improper
handling of an automatic weapon, he clearly overstepped the bounds

" of his expertise whea he testified that the wound came from a

An expert witness should distin-
guish between what he knows as an
expert and what he may believe as a
layman. His role is to contribute
the insight of his specialty. He
is not an advocate; that is the
role of counsel. Nore«is he the ul=-
timate trier of the facts; that is
the role of the jury or judge, as
the case may be. The trier of the
facts may be misled if the expert
goes beyond what he can contribute
as an expert. Hyett, g’fs31.

particular weapon.

o~

20
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. & ¥ ?
_ THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO CHARGE '
ACCESSORY AFTER THE FACT AS REQUESTED -
BY COUNSEL. ¢iéh
. : .
-
- 3
After the court's initial charge ;3V;h!‘sc;; an :veral i
i
i

tting, the

questions by the jury on the concept of aiding and abe

defendant requested that the court charge accessory after the fact

| as an alternate verdict. (271 27117, 1—8)2 The court refused and it

is that refusal which is raised here as error.

It is well settled.that the funétion of the trial 10
i

|
| Y court's charge to the jury s to inform the jury as to the law

» facts in such a manner that the jury
450 '

| of the case applicable to

may not be mislead. Hoffman v. Trenton Times, 125 N.J.L.

>(B & A 1940). 1t is equally as clear that the court must instruct

including

_ on every issue or theory having any support in evidence,

theories or grounds SE defense. Stevenson V. United States, 162

U.S. 313, 40 L. Ed. 980, 16 S. Ct.’ 839 (1896); State v. Butler,

27 N.J. 560, 594, 595 (1958) .

. In reiterating this mandatory duty of a t
b . <

{nstruct the jury as to the

rial judge to @ :

fundémcnthl principles of law in a g
3 oy v 9

¢ of charge; see Da-18 to 29




case, our Appellate Division has stated that, in a charge to the

jury,
-

", ..the classical practice 4
generally followed in criminal
cases is for the judge to out-
line the applicable law,
explaining and deflning the -

offense charged..." L ; ;i
State v. Thomas, 105 N.J. Super. 331, 337 (App. Div. 1 :"S:n:e 10 r;
v. Beachlor, 52 N.J. Super. 378 (App. Div. 1958). The issue to be 3
decided here then, is did the facts of the case require that ac- i

cessory after the fact be charged?

Initially, it must be noted that the crime of accessory

after the fact is distinct from the concept of atding and abetting.

N.J.S.A. 2A:85-14 provides, in rclevant part, that 2
el ' "Any person who nids, abets,
1s, i or ‘
procures another !:o commit a s
crime .|.s punishable as a prin- 20 i
cipal." b

State v. Fiorello, 36 N.J. 80 (1961); State v. Smith, 32 N.J.

501, 552 (1960).
There must be proof that the defendants:

", ..associated themselves with
a criminal venture [afid] partici-
pated in it with the express N
intention that it succeed. Nye
and Nissen v. United States, 336 ‘\)
) U, S. 613, 619, 69 5. Ct. 766, s : A
93 L. Ed. 919 (1948)."




As stated in State v. Sullivan, 43 N.J. 209, 237 (1964)

- "There can be no criminal respon-

sibility without that knowledge [of .
the planned criminal activity] and

the  necessary community of purpose."

Py

* The New Jersey Supreme Court in State v. Fair, 45 N.J.

77, 95 (1965) states:

“To render both defendants guilty, /"
it 1s essential that they shared

in the intent which is the crime's ' " - 10 &
basic element,and at least in-
directly participated in the com=
mission of the criminal act. Mere
presence at the scene of the crime,
however is insnffi(.lent to render a
defendant guilty."

It 15 well settled thnt
-~ -~
"One u an 'atder and abettor'
in“the commission of a crime
~“%here he was an active - ‘rtner in \ 20
the intent which was t! crime's
basic element. Co woalth v,
Strantz, 328 Pa. , 1954, 75
(Sup. Ct. 1937).,"

" ~ State v. Ellrich, 10 N.J. 146, 150 (1952) (other cites onitted). LA

e 3 ; It is the lack of this intent described in Ellrich

which distingulshes an aider and abettor from an accessory after &

’ the fact under N.J.S. 2A:85-2, Since an accessory does not take
;..ngg_in_t_l\p initial crime hence lacks the criminal intent to

commit it - he is charged only with aiding the perpetrators

_ after the crime and is not punished as a principal for the under—
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» .

lying crime, but rather for the misdémeanor of being an "a ssory

after g“-‘-"iact." N»J.S. 2A: 85-2; State v. Sullivan, 77 N.J. Super.

81 (196+). : =
It is submitted that under the facts of the instant case,

a charge of accessory after the fact as an alternate verdict

to the murder and assault charges was both proper and mandated.

¥
The theory of the defense, at least by implication, was M

»

Squire was a victim of circumstance of the attack scarte}l by ~
Chesimard; that he never took part in thesattack on Harper and
was merely defending himself from Foerster's reaction to . 10
Chesimard's spont;'ll;xcous attack. Thus, his only crime was that

of being an accessory in that he aided Chesimard and the wounded v

Costan to escape. This theory has some basis 'in fact as evi-
- ;
denced by the testimony of several witnesses, most particularly,

Harper. Harper had testified that prior to the shooting,

Squire had cooperated with him completely; that he never saw
~»-:-:'"Squire with-a weapom-and particularly stated that Squire had
~_not been firing at him (19T 542, 13-14); and, most celltlngly,

that Squire had not communicated.with él;e occupants of lthg car

at any time during the occurrence, especially after Harper's‘ e 20

questioning of Chesimard and Costan, the act which precipitated

- the 'shooting. (19T 537, 1-14) Considering these facts, it is
e 2 .
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not possess the common intent with Chesimard and Costan to be
g;silty as an aider and abettor (Ellrich, supra), but could have
believed him gullt‘y of the lesser crime of accessory after the
gnct, had they been so charge

The defendant is not unaware of the rule in State v.

Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413, 438 (1968).. The court in that case held .

that ‘the refusal of the trial court to charge accessory afte &
‘the fact was correct as to the alleged getaway driver v(' ;
defense was that he was unaware that his passengers were

planning the robbery. The rationale was ..(1) that the defendant .
was not Indicted as an accessory, but rather as a principal;

and (2)7 the State's theory was of aiding and abetting - r.h;t the
defendant knowingly took part in the robbery as the driver.
&y%g, at 438, Defendant submits that the rule in Mayberry

is incorrect insofar as it conflicts with Stevensen and Butler,

supra. The charge should be tailored to fit the evidence in the case.
'{hlt is, the duty to charge all the law of a case, particu-
larly the law applicable to reasonable theories of defense,
:houtd ﬁot"‘depend on the technisms of indictment and procedure,
but rather upon the proofs as elicited at :rial..
In the case sub judice, although th’e accessory

theory was not charged in the indictment, it was proposed,

Thowever indirectly, as a theory of defense. As such, it was BARY R
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mn—dmtmm_ﬁnzberrx to the contrary"

notwithstanding. Stovgr\tg!_n v, United States, 162 U.S, 313, 16

T osoGt. 839 (1896); State v. Dutler, 27 N.J. 560 (1958). Fur- ;
er, it is submitted that Lf _Mazberrzlls correct in holding ;
at accessory after the fact cannot be mentioned In the

inotructiom if it is not specifically charged in the indict-

.lgnnt. then the .court in the present case should have charged

that if the jury only believed the defendant guilty as an

—  accessary after the fact,then they must acquit him of the

crimes charged in the indictment, since by definition, they 10 :

o are mutually exclueive theories. Failure to so charge, it B

is submitted, was error. ) o
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POINT IV
THE COURT'S CHARGE TO THE JURY

WAS ERRONEOUS IN THAT IT FAILED i
TO INSTRUCT ON MANSLAUGHTER. 6 5

Defense counsel objected to the court's charge to . the
jury on the grounds that it failed to include lnsggueti;ms on
manslaughter. (27T 237, 8-12) The court rcpli::l’chat it had
considered the matter but had d::cidcd that the case should go
to the jury on a "murder or nothing" basis. (27T 237, 13-23)

S— Defendant here respectfully submits that the court's refusal e R

to charge manslaughter was error requiring reversal.

It is well settled that the function of the trial

> court's charge to the jury is to inform the jury as to the law
‘of the case applicable to the facts in such a manner that the

jury may not be mislead. Hoffman v. Trenton Times, 125 N.J.L.

450 (E & A 1940). In reiterating this mandatory duty of a
T trial judge to instruct the jury as to the fundamental prin=-
ciples of law in a case, our Appellate Division has stated

’
that, in a charge to the jury, ] '

"...the classical practice 420
generally followed in criminal v
cases is for the judge to out- \
; " ° line the applicable law, ‘ -
i TR ~explaining and defining the . ; e B e
offenge charged...” [emphasis ¢ Ao
added] : :
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State v. Thomas, 105 N.J. Super. 331, 337 (App. Dlv. 1969); State
v. Beachlor, 52 N.J. Super. 378 (App. Div. 1958). It is equally
as clear that the- court must instruct on every issue or theory
Pavi;g any support in evidence, including theories or grounds of
defense. See discussion and citations, Point III, supra.

« It is the defendant's position that a plausible theory
of defense in the present case could have supported a mngilgdiﬁzé;

charge and thus fnllure to give that charge was error.

The court below based its refusal to chargc manslaughter

- on a reading of State v. Madden, 61 N.J. 377 (1972). In that

case the defendant was convicted of the murder of a police
officer, John V., Gleason, who was stationed at the perimeter
of an area in Plainfiéld, New Jersey, which had just experienced
serious racial rioting. In response to some movement by one
Wiuinnf: the officer fired his weapon, wounding Williams.
Thereupon a mob came at the officer. The officer tried to
escape, but after a pursuit Involving a considerable dlstance,
he was brought doun. Members of the mob inflicted a savage
b_ogl:v!:qg'w_h,lqh continued until he died. As to Maddcp, a woman
welighing about 300 pounds, there was te'stimony fr?m which it
could be found she j\;mped upon and siompcd the victim as he

lay prostrate on the ground. -

N e L s s A it e SRR R

10

20 :




A R e I o L BIEIAR bl 0 s BT

(—4
e r v -
Following Madden's conviction for first degree murder,
the Appellate Division reversed the conviction and granted a new
trial. Thercafter the Supreme Court of New Jersey granted the
State's petition for certification. 59 N.J. 287 (1971). Among
other issues, the Supreme Court considered the validity of the
( trial court's charge in which mnnslaughte:; was charged but .111-
voluntary manslaughter was not. The Court noted that the trial
court's charge in effect stated that neither a lawful arrest > o
" nor the use of necessary force to accomplish an arrest can um-// ;
) -
stitute reasonable provocation justifying a finding of man- 10

'é'laughcer as Op.posed to murder. Madden, at 398. While the

Supreme Court agreed with this, it did not indicate that an

awful arrest or excessive force could, not provide reasonable

uni
provocation sufficient to reduce murder to manslaughter. To'
the contm/r;y‘, in fact, the court discussed in detail the ‘
relationship necessary between the victim of the unlawful
arrest or unnecessary force and the purderer in order for the
murderer t.o claim that he was incensed (thus provoked) by the ¢

treatment accorded to the other. Madden, at 402, And, al-

though finding that on the facts of Madden a manslaughter '. 20

theory would not hold, the court did state:

A claim of provocation could be

; understandable in a close relative

Y [to the victim of the unlawful ar-

rest or excessive force] who is on
the scene.... Id.




It is clear that the Court was primarily concerned
with the issue of whether a defendant may claim as reasonable
provocation 111 treatment of a third person by a police officer.
But it is equally clear that the Court did state that an.tl-
légal arrest or“excessive force by a police officer could be
-
reasonable provocation. Id. Tt is this theory that the Court,

im the present case, failed to grasp.

In the case sub judiee, the Court stated that it did
#

not believe that a charge of manslaughter could be sustail £
under the facts and in light of Madden. (27T 237, 13-23)

Clearly the Court was in error. The incidents of the night

»
in question, particularly after the gun battle started,

“could have supplied reasonable provocation to Squire, who o

———did not participate in the shooting at Harper, if Foerster

attempted to subdue Squire through unnecessnrf force. The
Jurycould have believed that Squire had been wrestling with
Foérﬁi;r, after the sﬂoocing started, in an attempt to re-
sist an ﬁnlawful arrest or excessive force, especially
since Squire had clearly exhibited a cooperative mnnn;r

with Harper prior to the shooting. Hence, since Madden

 can only-be read to require a close or family relationship

in order for one to claim recasonable prnvoéatton from the
111 treatment of another by an officer, the facts in the

,
present case arve distinguishable since the facts could be

10




construed to show that the provocatian arosé from Squire's own
treatment at the hands of Harper and Foerster. This theory
‘ woul{ clearly fall within the ambit of Madden dnd require that
'the manslaughter chargé be given.
Furthermore, Madden is factually élsslmilar from
the present case in another way. In Madden, regardless of the
h fttansferted provocation" issue, the Court did not bellev?

that any provocation existed, noting that the cr ‘had chased -

the officer some distance from Williams (ﬂho? the officer had

shot and wounded), hence thf subsequent actions of the crowd 10
were not spontaneous acts committed in a "transport of passion"
—————4n-an-attempt to p:o:ectﬁﬂilliums. but rather were done to
"punish" the officer, who was, at that point, only trying to

escape from the mob. Madden, at 402. In effect, then, the

court found a "cooling off" period had occurred. Such was

not the situation in the present case. The jury could huve

believed that reasonable provocation existed in the inter—

action between Foerster and Squire after the shooting had

“started. The jury should have been instructed that althpug& .

one may not resist even an illegal arrest by one he knows
to be a police officer (State v. Mulvihill, 57 N.J. 151 s
4(1970)) and hence a defense of self-defense would not lie,

Squire's actions might have been provoked by Foerster's

-




.

actions and thus a "dcfensg" of manslaughter ;rould lie. Failure
ﬁo so 1patruct on a viable theory of defense was error. Steven-
son v. United States, 162 U.S. 313, 16 S. Ct. 839 (1896); State
v. -Bﬁtlet, M, at 594-5' (1958.). The conviction for murder,

therefore, must be reversed.
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POINT V

ADMISSTON OF A FINGERPRINT CARD
- VIOLATED R. 55 OF THE NEW JERSEY
RULES OF EVIDENCE AND THE NEW
JERSEY AND UNITED STATES CONSTI~
TUTION. :

State's witnesses testified that the defendant's

]
fingerprints were compared with the prints of'gnaf'ﬂi"'chie

Gibson" on file with the New York City Poli:e Dei:artne’nt and =
found to be {deatical. (19T 61, 20-21 and 19T 97, 8-10) De- 10 |
fense objected to this testimony and to the admission into :;
. ~————evidence of Me New York fingerprint card on the grounds that ,,v,..ﬁ,_»‘..__w_'g

it violated Rule 55 of the New Jersey Rules of Evidence in

that the card would be evidence of other crimes. (19T 75)
W The court’ admitted the evidence, however, apparently on the

ground that it was offered to prove identity. (19T 75) It

is respectfully submitted that the court erred in this ruling
| ninc_a even if the evidence was offered as an exception to
L © - Rule 55, its possible prejudice to the defendant far out-
| ; weighed a;\y.probn'tivc value. Rule 4. It is submitted there-
§ fori.- that the admis ! of this ’evidencc,and-failure to

strike it or adminis: - a cautionary instruction to the jury'




concerning the proper use of the cvidence,was error.

Rule 55 of the New Jersey Rules of Evidence provides: .

Subject to Rule 47, evidence that
a person committed a crime or
civil wrong on a specified occa-
sion, is Inadmissible to prove

, his disposition to commit crime
or civil wrong as the basis for
an inference that he committed
a crime or civil wrong on
another specified occasion but,
subject to Rule 48, such evi-
dence is admissible to prove
some other fact in issue ins
cluding motive, intent, plan,
knowledge, identity or absence
of mistake or accident.

Clearly Rules 47 and 55 of the Rﬁl;s of Evidence re-

strict the use of testimony ég to prior crimes to specific

instances. In State v. Ascolese, 59 N.J. Super. 393 (App. Div.

1960) the court, echoing Rule 55, stated that evidence of prior

crimes is inadmissible except to prove motive, intent, plan,

knowledge, identity or lack of mistake. Ascolese at 397. None
‘,

of the enumerated exceptions were present in the case sub
Jjudice. .

It s conceded thit the evidence mny;hqvp hgd:qop,
relevance to the issue of the identity of-Squire and Gibson.

However, it is submitted that the prcjudicial‘effect of this

10




o

evidence so outweighed its probative value as to demand its ex-

clusion under Rule 4. The evidence possessed a high likelihood

of persuading the jury that the defendant had a ‘propenslty to

involve himself in violent crime, and that therefore he may have -
- participated in the crime charged, regardleﬁs of any contra

evidence in the case, and therefore sho_uld have been excluded,

The only value "of the evidence was to show that Squire was -

. 5 3
Gibson, ostensibly to explain the "Gibson" naw'ertain

documents fctund at the scene. However, such proof was unneces-

sary to the State's case. The defendant was identiffed by 10
Harper (an eyewitness) and tied to the scene through blood

tests, ballistics tests and a plethora of other evidence. It

made little difference to the State which name he had been

using. Opposgd to this was the obvious danger in presenting e

evidence of prior crime and the prejudicial effect of that
evidence upon a jury. 4
It may be argued that since the card and testimony

could only lead to the inference that the defendant was S

guilty of a prior crime, it was not prcjudlci:}. _However,
case law 15 contrary to that position. Th§ ;{;:porténce the
Courts have attached to theiprejt,dice inherent in a showing
‘of prior crimes, even by implicatlon, is obvious in State

v. Harcis, 105 N.J. Super. 319 (App. Div. 1969). There, the
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Court held that thé trying of several unrelated crimes at one
trial was improper since the knowledge of prior crimes could

prejudice the jury because it could infer that the defendant

was a "bad wan." Harris, at 322. Thus in Harris, the showing

of prior cruel, even by 1mp11ca:£on was condemned. ¢

Further, the fact that the defex!danr. later cross-—
examined the witnesses as to the fingerprints should be of
no account. It is probable that the testimony in this respect
was, in e:ffect..of a nccessity to attempt to nem’

" effect of the testimdny on the jury. After the Vtestimony was g 10

heard by the jury the defendant was left with two equally
distasteful alternatives: (1) attack the testimony through
cross-examination of the officers, or (2) hope for a reversal e
on appeal. He shr;uld not be penalized on agl;eal for choosing
‘the fomer of the altematives, for such a decision would,
for all intents and purposes, render Rule 55 impotent.

Morcover, the failure of the court to give a
cautionary instruction to the jury to disregard the evidence,
or to at least caution the jury as to the propelr use of this
evldenee, furthcr cohpounded the emr. Rulg 6- of the }_l_e_w_ -

Jcrlex Rules of Evtdence requires that.

When :elevnnt evidencé is admis-

sible as to one party or for one
purpose and is not admissible as
to_other parties or for another
purpose, the judge shall restrict ’

the evidence to its proper scope =
mmx,\xa the 3‘.“‘;525?&1‘6211 o



=

e
It is possible that limiting instructions could have cured the

e 'éfxot if r.hey\ha.d been given when the evidence had been intro-
:uced, s0 t'hal: the jury could have considered t_he evidence with
its lllliéad effect clearly in mind. Ot.he;;l:iu:?‘» the jury

J g thro::g_hout the trial could very well have believed that the

=5 ev:ldenc; was admissible to show a ﬁropensity towards crime ol

T 7y the .defetludant's patt: Since the trial jud‘ge' did no! - T

11mi:i§lg instructions, it is highly ‘possible'tl.mt the jury

conaidered -r.hnt the evidence was forsthe purpose of proving a

propensity r.oward crme on the defendant's part. Tbis is cleatly

what Rules 6 and 55 wewngy designed to avoid, -Failure to adherc %

to. zhe Rules was clearly error. : v




v . -
POINT VI

THE COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRET-ION
IN ADMITTING PHOTOGRAPHS OF. THE
VICTIMS IN EVIDENCE. (Partinlly
Raised Below)

PP i Defense counsel ohjected to the adﬁission‘into evidence

of certain photographs, to wit:

Re © (1) P-35 (21T 78)
(2) P-34 (21T 79) ' v /
. (3)  P-33 (21T 82) :
g (4)  P-43 (22T 374)
(5) P-68 (21T 804)
(6) P-37 (21T 125-127)
(7)1 P-72 (21T 831)- *
(8) P-73 (21T 827)
(9) P-38 (21T 115) (no objection)
' (10) P-78 (21T 844)
(11) P-176 (26T 546) 5
(12) P-134 (25T 379)

Exhibits P-35 and }’-37 were specifically objected to
as being 1nf1nmmntory, and all exhibits were objected to on some
ground, except P-38, raised here ;zs plain error. As to the
others, 1t is submitted that since the caurt's attention was
drawn to the exhibits by obje2tion, albeit improperly voiced,

the court, sua sponte, should not have admitted the photoita';;l_m..

3. Defendant has been unable to secure copies of the photographs
in quéstion and therefore requests that the Middlesex County Pro-
secutor make these photographs available he Appellate Court to
consider,and to the Attorney General. The photo hs are in the
r 's p ion and in the possesston of the New Jersey
State Police. Although copies were secured by defendant's trial
counsel, appellate counsel's cfforts to secure them

10

20




“ gieden gt Lrmi, /

B

‘ since it was obvious that the prejudicial effect of them clearly
)’. -outweighed their probative value. New Jersey Rules of Evidence, ) oA o
| ; ;
| ¢ ¢ Rule 4.
i e

"It has long been the rule in this

State that admission of photo-

ot gtaphs. of the-vietim of a-crime s B A
rests in the discretion of the % = "
trial court, and the exercise of

3 its discretion will not be re- ke

versed in the absence of a palpable . ‘ ] %

abuse thereof. [citations omitted] X

(42 : Such abuse exists only where the %
‘ 'logical relevance will unques-
' tionably be overwhelmed by the y

| y inherently prejudicial nature of
| - the particular picture.' State v.
| N Smith, 32 N.J. 501, 525, gert.

| den., 364 U.S. 936, 81 S.” Ct. 383, 3
e ; 5 L. Ed..2d 367 (1961)." .
| 5 State v. Thompson, 59 N.J. 396, 20

420-1 (1971).
It is submitted that In the pres;:l‘t. case the admi.asion

of the photographs was error, not only because of the inherent

o prejudiyteming. from the shocking photographs, but also be-
_ cause their admission was unnecessary. The victims' positlom
and condition at the time of dcath had already been amply described
il by testimony, and the defense never seriously disputed the
i mﬂu condition, position, appearance or wounds. Notwith-
utmdins that, it is clear that even if a given photograph may . e ¥ S BUAES AN .

poueu sone ptobntlve force, that fact alone is pot determina- 30

tive of its admissibility. Its relevance to an 1ssue may be . -

i




'

overbalanced by its prejudicial quality. State v. Walker, 33 N.J.

580 ({961); Evidence Rule 4. . Further, the‘gumuiative nature of
these photographs could play no significant part in assisting the
jurors in their deliberations. Their gruesome and horrifying

g nature served but one purpose: to unnecessarily inflame the
jurors. .

Admission of P-134 is an exampié of {ajqdice

inherent In the photographs. That phdtagf:;;‘:::j:i the wounds
found on Foerster's hands. THLE photographs was carta%nly,
surplusage as Dr. Albano had ﬁlready testified to where the

., wounds were found in his direct testimony, and thése facts
were not ;ontesced. But apart from thié, the picture, while
ostensibly showing wounds of Foerster's hands, also shows l’
pale body, obviously drained of blood, and a closeup of an
awegomely gruesome bullet hole in the abdomen. This»shockin'
and revolting closeup of the wound was clearly capable of
prejudicing and lnflaming'the jury. The fact that the picture
was totally unne;essary further compounds the error of its '
admission. The testimony of the 40cior describing Foerster's
voun;; did not require buctress{pg, and in ligh} ;f the
grucsomeness of the pictures of the wound, these pictures

should have been excluded, See State v. Walker, supra.




State v. Bucanis, 26 N.J. 45 (1958), cert. den., 357 U.S. 910,

78 §. Ct. 1157, 2 L. Ed. 2d 1160 (1958);-State v. Coleman, 46
N.J. 16, ?6—7:_@_1'&. den., 383 us 950, 86-S. Ct. 1210; 16 L.
Ed. 2d 212 (1966). Defendant subnits that this case 1s one in ; ¢
which l:he pzobauve vnlue of r.he photographs wn outweighed
slgnﬂicmtly by their inha:en:ly 1ni1nmtory pocentm.

4 Thus, the pictures,possessing a ptob;i;l;;::;}:aclty A“‘“»“;“-—--.-
l:o divert the minds of the jurors from a reasonable an
evaluation of the evidence; should not have been itted,

S 4
Reversal is warranted.




" POINT VII

A THE PROSECUTOR'S REMARKS DURING
3 SUMMATION WERE IMPROPER AND
v PREJUDICIAL TO THE DEFENDANT.
< (Not Raised Below)

In the present case, the prosecutor madée certain remarks
during his summation which the defendant contends were Improper
and prejudicial, The complained of commen e as follows:

(1) He didn't see 820. That is the
marked car. Are you surprised that
4 wan shot at, .people jumping out of
a car shooting at him, can run by a
car without” seeing it? Would you?
People jumping out of a car, running,
shooting at you, you'd walk by an
elephant and you wouldn't see {t.

Is 1t so surprising or is it pre-
cisely the kind of -recollection you
would expect of a man being shot at,
‘people trying to kill him. Do you
understand that, trying to kill Him.
How would you react if I pulled out -
a gun now and started pointing it at
you and shooting, how observant would
you be? (28T 7, 16 to 28T 8, 1)

-(2) There are fifty some rounds of
ammunition in the trunk for the
+380. You heard one of the offi-
cers testify that he looked in the
trunk and there were extra rounds

of ammunition for the Llama pistol,
¢xtra rounds of ampunition for the
dLuger. Take a look at that ammuni-
tion, it's not standard ammunition,




super-vel, lead nose, hollow nose, de-

signed for one thing, killing; killing.

-

When Clark Squire-Archie Gibson got
out of that car he knew the license
was phoney, the guns were in the car,
and what do we know, Mr. Costan in the
back had identification in the back,
he was Mr. Williams. They were nice,
they were polite. They were going to
take any kind of traffic ticket they
were going to get, because that was
all right. But they couldn't afford
to be arrested. Because he's only
going to get booked as Archie Gibson

s0 many times beforé they find out he's

Clark Squire. If they pull him out
of that car and find those guns, they
will all get arrested. They were not
going to be arrested no matter who
stood in their way, and I underline
"who." Not just these particular
policemen, but any policemen, any po-
licemen who would have been there who
would have blocked their road to
_ffeedom would havé been dead. (28T
11, 10 to 28T 12, 6) N

(3) Down the road they go, the three
of them. Trooper Palentchar comes.
You know, it's amazing. Mr. McKinney
likes to pick apart--when a witness
says something he likes, that must

be gospel. If the same witness says
something he doesn't like, he says

it must be wrong. On the one hand
he says, Bob Palentchar, there's a
good fellow. She [Chesimard] opened

..that door and got in and he never

did anything. He's lucky that there




#

_ wasn't anothe¢ ,un in that car, because
“if there was Lie same thing would have
happened to him. It was that same
trusting attitude of the police that
got him into trouble. (28T 17, 1-11)

The first remark is objected to because it asks the jury

what "they would do" and how "they would react" rather than to
judge what did happen. The second and third remarks are
clearly objectlonablﬁ on two grounds: they were per se highly
projuﬁiéial, and also improper on evidential grounds, since
the aéntemenrs are rcfeten;ea to other crimes not ged in
the 16dictment. The prosecutor repeatedly stated that more -
killing would have taken place ifscircumstances had been
different, He clearly wanted to view the defendant, who, of
céurle, did not testify, as an evil man by implying tﬁa: he
would have taken part in still more'killing if he could have.
‘(aud, inferably, v;uld continue killing if acquitted). This
is preciusly ;ha: the law forblds. ¢

Clearly Rules 47 and 55 of the Rules of Evidence

‘restrict the use of testimony as to prior crimes to specific

instances. In State v. Ascolese, 59 N.J. Super. 393 (1960) ,

the codit. echoing Rule 55, stated that evidence of prior
crimes is inadmissible except to prove motive, intent, plan,

knowledge, identity or lack ‘of mistake. Ascolese, at 397.

10

e




#

None of the enumerated exceptions were present in the case sub

jgg;gg.‘ Furthermore, it is submitted that remarks of a prose-

cutor referring to other crimes is a more serious infraction gf s
the law than testimony from witnesses, since a remark by the

former, ch;rged with a knowlcdgeizf’the law, can hardly be '_ 5

considered inadvertent. Furthermore, our court has clearly

stated the principle that: X v ;é
. %
...the average jury, In a greater " :3

) or less degree, has confidence 3 v
'y that these obligations [of falr . Lo 10 B
play], which so plainly rest {

upon the prosecuting attorney, . :
will be faithfully observed.

state v. D'Ippolito, 19 N.J. 540, 546 (1955); Berger v. United
states, 295 U.S..78, 88, 55 S. Ct. 629, 633, 79 L. Ed. 1314,
1321 (1955). . . . i
Where his [the prosecutor's]

' conduct has crossed the line and i .
* resulted in foul play, we have

not hesitated to reverse the de- 20
cision below and remand it for a &

new trial. ' D'Ippolito, at 550. ;

; Not only were the comments improper as being violative of
y gg;g 49 nhd Rule 55, and per se inflammatory, but also bgcauac
nhny were clourly comments on facts not in cvidence.
“The bounds of propriety of a prosecutor' € summntlon have

traditionally followed the general proposition that:




So long as he stays within the
evidence and the legitimate in-
' ferences therefrom the prosecutor
is entitled to wide latitude 1in
.- x his summncion.

State v. Haxbe:gx 52 N.J. 413, 437 (1968), State v. Hill, 147

N.J. 490, 499 (1966) However, in State v. Bogen, 13 N.J. 137.
<
140 (1953), Justice Brennan clearly stated the rule that:’
...every statement of the rule
[concerning proper comments] in /JT
our own reports emphasizes that #
comment must be restrained within
the facts shown or reasonably
suggested by the evidence adduced.

. Clearly a prosecutor may sum up his case forcefully and graphi-

cally. State v. Johnson, 31 N.J. 489, 510 (1960), cert. den'd.,

—~—nt e g

36§ U.S. 933 (1960). However, while he is allowed wide latitude

in his comments, he may not comment on facts not in evidence or

~f@asonably inferrable from the evidence. State v. Farrell, 61

N.J. §9, 102 (1972). Doing so is grounds for reversal. State

V. Welsch, 29 N.J. 152 (1959); State v. Siciliano, 21 N.J. 249

(1956). The State cannot be permitted to deprive the defendant
of a fair trial by mcans of Jnsinuations and 1nnuendoes uhich
plant in the minds of the jury a prcjudiciql belief in the
existence of evidence which is otherwise,lnadmissthle. Locken

v. United States,” 383 F. 2d 340~(9 C. C. A. 1967).

10
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- Hence, the remarks that the defendant had committed past
crimes, Snd, if not apprehended, would still be committing -
crimgs, were doubly impermissible and prejudicial béihg comments
on prior ctimeé and on facts not in evidence. As such, the re-
marks were improper and constituted reversible error.

It is true that no objection was made to these comments,
thus they are raised here as plain error. State v. Macon, 57 .

N.J. 325 (1971). However, it is submitted that even 1&6@‘

tions had been offered, the remarks were of such a prejudicial

nature thet no instruction from the court could have neutralized 10
their effect. It is submitted that any instruction that the
court might give to the jury to disregard the remarks would

be inadequate to erase the impression the remarks must have

made on the jury, It would be a denial of a basic trait of
2 il . . .

human nature to believe that a juror could ignore the remarks

because of any instruction from the court. State v. Roberts,

86 N.J. Super. 158, 168 (App. Div. 1969). It is fallacious

. to believe that strict judicial impartiality could be main-

,tained by the jury after hearidg Such a remark. The occur-
rence could only lead to groundless conjecture and foundation— .- 20
less surmise as to the character of the defendant. As auch,' .

the remarks were incurable even by the most dc:aileé,gon;

* scientious of instructions, and thus aré reversible error. 5 i R




19 N.J. 540 (1955).

: Nfﬂlptlurc. it is untenable, in considering_:iie comments
“to believe that counsel could have seen any possible advantage
in l;:t objecting ﬁo the comments. ,chce,\nny faiJSuu r.? object
must have been :Lnad.vortex'\t. The defendant ahml!dﬁwt suffer .
from coqnul'a errors. State v. anén, ﬂ?l-!: Thu,, reversal,

based an tho remarks, as plain error, is warranted.




POINT VIIL ;

v L LA

¥ ; & THE AGGREGATE OF LEGAL ERRORS AT *
; THE TRIAL CREATED AN ATMOSPHERE :
\: 2 S0 HOSIILE AND PREJUDICIAL TO
2l THE DEFENDANT AS TO PRECLUDE THE
RENDERING OF_A FATR AND-THPAR- : :
TIAL VERDICT. (Not Raised Below), ey - -~y

-* " 1n the case of State v. Orecchio, 16 N.J. 125 (1954), the %

Supreme Court of New Jersey stated:

“Where, however, the legal errors
are of such magnitude as to preju-
dice the defendant's rights, or, in

i o i their aggregate have rendered the .
trial unfair, our fundamental con=
stitutional concepts dictate the
granting of a new trial before an

impartial jury. Orecchio, at 129. o oL
It is urged, in the present case, that the defendant's trial 'Q

i als ~was wrought with ]_.3&_1 errors as discussed above which,in the aggre=
gate, resulted in creating an atmosphere of hostility and distrust - 20
towards the defendant, thus precluding him from receiving a fair and ‘

impartial trial. Such being the case, reversal is mandated.




s v. Reyes, 50 N.J. 45’0, “59
; (1967). B

=

POINT IX

IT WAS ERROR FOR THE COURT TO
DENY DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR
JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL ON THE

- ROBBERY COUNT, SINCE ON THE
EVIDENCE PRODUCED NO REASON-
ABLE JURY COULD HAVE FOUND
GUILT BEYOND A REASONABLE
DOUBT.

At the close of the State's case defense moved for a judg-

ment of acquittal on the ground that the State failed W:f

prima facie case. The court denied the motion as to the robbery

-

count, among others. (27T 77)
The test for determining the sufficiency of the evidence

when a motion for judgment of acquittal is made is: i R

"whether, viewing the State's
evidence in its entirety, be
v that evidence direct or cir-
‘. cunstant!.pl, and giving the
State the benefit of all its
favorable testimony as well
as all of the favorable in-
ferences which reasonably
could be drawn therefrom, a
reasonable jury could find
guilt of the charge beyond
a reasonable doubt."™ State

- The defundant here submits that the. State t'ailed co pre~
7

sent evidence from which a reasonahle jury could find the

N

s defendant guu:y of robbury. The defendant submits here

B T SN - i ; o
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that although the State's theory was that the defendant robbed

-

Foerster's pistol and then murdered him with it, (27T 55) the-
State failed entirely to present any evidence of intent to
tgb‘, o any evidencé from which such an intent could be in-
ferred. As such, the motion for judgment of acquittal, as to
the robbery, should have been gmnted. _ )
Robbury( like all criminal offenscs, requires proof of
intent to do the act. However, robbery also requires t Ao

he-—*
specific intent to steal and to permanently deprive the {{(

of his- property. State v. Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413 (1968), cert.
- - —

den'd., 393 u.s, 1043, 89 5. Ct. 673 (1968). It is respectfully

submitted that under no reasonable interpretation of the evi-
danc':e could any intent to rob be found. The ‘;'uld.ng and usjlng
- of Foerster's revolver was done with the same intent that any
“available weapon would have been used - with the intent to .‘B
- the re\gl'ver. not to steal {t, Not :gvcn-’u tortured view of
the evidence can support a theory that any independent intent

to steal existed, A theory that all the events of the night

°°€'!f”d as a result of the defendant's (jcs{re to rob Foerster

] Iil:;_ayogvor,ia almost to.ludicrous to mention. Clearly =

the taking and use of the revolver was ah integral part of the
. . . N

murder and not the product of any independent ‘intent to steal,

20

10




'duéb; it was clearly error to deny defendnnr.'s ‘motion for a

judmuﬁ of ucqulccn as to the robbery count. Since the State, .
not hn.vtna shwn any facr.s from which a reasonable jury, giving
:he Statd’ r.hc benefit of all- favotable 1nt’erences, could have

3 mfernd my intent to rob, “the motion Qﬁﬁﬂd havc been granuﬁ.

R u, supra. Failnte to do S0 wWas error.




2
§tltt v. Bucanis, 26 H.J. Y/05 (1958), cert. den., 357 U.S. 910,

:
;78 §. Ct. 1157. 2 L. Ed. Zd 1160 (1958);-8::‘ v. Coleman, 46
N. J. 16, 26-7, cart. den., 383 U S. 950, 86'S. Ct. 1210, 16 L.

','“- 2d 212 (1966). Defendant submu:a that this case Is one in e E e

‘which th- ptohative vnlue of the photoguphs was outweighed Z
by -

' ‘tigniﬁcmtly ‘by their mlwunc].x 1nE1amntory pocentul.

Sl . Thua, the pictures,possessing a probable capacicy

i:o divert tha minds of l:he Jurors from a reasonable and fair

evaluation Qt'&lé evidence, should not have been admitted,
ok 4 L

R&q:nl u warranted.
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& * POINT VII

THE PROSECUTOR'S REMARKS DURING
SUMMATION WERE IMPROPER AND
PREJUDICIAL TO THE DEFENDANT.

~ (Not Raised Below)

#

In the present case, the prosecutor madé certain remarks
during his summation which the defendant contends were improper
and prejudicial, '*he complained of comments are as follows:

(1) He didn't see 820. That is the

marked car. Are you surprised that

a man shot at, people jumping out of
< a car shootfig at him, can run by a

car without” seeing it? Would you?
& People jumping out of a car, running,
e AR O L SR R shooting at you, you'd walk by an

- elephant and you wouldn't see it.

Is it so surprising or is it pre-
cisely the kind of recollection you
would expect of a man being shot at,
‘people trying to kill him. Do you
understand that, trying to kill him.
How would you react if I pulled out -
a gun now and started pointing it at
you and shoo{{:g, how observant would
you be? (28T 7, 16 to 28T 8, 1)

-(2) There are fifty some rounds of . A TN
ammunition in the trunk for the Fhe
-380. You heard one of the offi-
cers testify that he looked in the

trunk and there were extra rounds , 30 3
“of ammunition for the Llama pistol, y S
' extra rounds of ammunition for the v
: 4duger. Take a look at that ammuni- ; 3

tion, it's not standard ammunition,




super-vel, lead nose, hollow nose, de-

signed for one thing, killing; killing.

When Clark Squire-Archie Gibson got
out of that car he knew the license
vu! phoney, the guns were in the car,
and what do we know, Mr. Costan in the
back had identification in the back,
he was Mr. Williams. They were nice,
they were polite. They were going to
take any kind of traffic ticket they
were going to get, because that was
all right, But they couldn't afford
to be arrested. Because he's only
going to get booked as Archie Gibson
50 many times beforé they find out he's
Clark Squire. If they pull him out
of that car and find those guns, they
will all get arrested.. They were not .
going to be arrested no matter who
stood in their way, and I underline
"who.” Not just these particular
policemen, but any policemen, any po-
licemen who would have been there who
would have blocked their road to
freedom would have been dead. (28T
11, 10 to 28T 12, 6) §

(ﬁ;— Down the road they go, the three
of them. Trooper Palentchar comes.
You know, it's amazing. Mr. McKinney
likes to pick apart--when a witness
says something he likes, that must

be gospel. If the same witness says
something he doesn't like, he says

it must be wrong. On the one hand

he says, Bob Palentchar, there's a .
good fellow. She [Chesimard] opened

.. that door and got in and he never

did anything. He's lucky that there




. wasn't anoth¢ un in that car, because
“1if there was tle same thing would have
happened to him. It was that same
trusting attitude of the police that
got him into trouble. (28T 17, 1-11)

S

The first remark is objected to because it asks the jury
what "they would gy" and how "they would react” rather than to
judge what did happen. The second and third remarks are

clearly objectionable on two grounds: they were per se highly

-A(\ pteju@lciﬂl. and also improper on evidential grounds, since

the uéatcuents are refetenécs to other crimes not charged in

the 1ﬂd1ctment. The prosecutor repeatedly stated that more -

killing would have taken place if circumstances had been

different, He clearly wanted to view the defendant.tho, of
: course, did»not testify, as an evil man by implying tﬁat he
would have taken part in still more.killing if he could have
(and, inferably, w;uld continue killing if acquitted). This
is precissly what the law forbids. ’

Clearly Koles 47 and 55 of- the Rules of Evidence

‘restrict the use of testimony as to prior crimes to specific

instances. In State V. Ascolese, 59 N.J. Super. 393 (1960) ,

the coﬁit, echoing Rule 55, stated that evidence of prior
© crimes is inadnissible except to prove motive, intent, plan,

Ascolese, at 397..




None of the enumerated exceptions were present in the case sub

judice.\nhemore. it is submitted that remarks of a prose-

cutor referring to other crimes is a more serious infraction of

the law than :estimon& from witnesses, since a remark by the
fotnar.'cha:;ed with a knbwledguabf'tﬁb law, can hardly be

considered inadvertent. Furthermore, our court has clearly

u‘%ted the principle that:

...the average jury, in a greater
or less degree, has confidence

> that these obligations [of falr
play], which so plainly rest
upon the prosecuting attorney,
will be faithfully observed,

tate v. D'Ippolito, 19 N.J. 540, 546 (1955); Berger v. United
5;5 295 u. S..78 88, 55 S. Ct. 629, 633, 79 L. Ed. 1314,

—

1321 (1955).

M Where his [the prosecutor's]

) conduct has crossed the line and > X
resulted in foul play, we have

not hesitated to reverse the de-
cision-below and remand ‘it for a

new trial. ~D'Ippolito, at 550.

¥ Not only were the comments improper as being violative of

Ruln 49 ahd Rule 55, and per se inflammatory, but also because
i :

they were clenrly comments on facts not in evidence.

*Che bounds of propriety of a prosecutor's numnnt!on have

traditionally followed the general proposition that:




e s e

)

w

\‘ : So long as he stays within the
evidence and the legitimate in-
' ferences therefrom the prosecutor 3
*is entitled to wide latitude in
_his summation.

*  State v. Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413, 437 (1968); State v. Hill, 147
N.J. 490, 499 (1966). However, in State v. Bogen, 13 N.J. 137,

3 ; . A .-"

( 140 (1953), Justice Brennan clearly stated the rule that:’ :z

’ 4 : ...every statement of the rule v
5 p [concerning proper comments] in

S

our own reports emphasizes that
comment must be restrained within
the facts shown or reasonably
suggested by the evidence adduced.

\

. Clearly a prosecutor may sum up his case forcefully and graphi-

cally. State v. Johnson, 31 N.J. '489, 510 (1960), cert. den'd., =

36q U.S. 933 (1960). However, while he is allowed wide latitude

in his comments, he may not comment on facts not in evidence or
rea‘aonabl} inferrable from the evidence. State v. Farrell, 61‘
N.J. 99, 102 (1972{' Doing so is g'rounds for reversal. _Sﬁ;ta
v. Welsch, 29 N.J. 152 (1959); State v. Siciliano, 21 N.J. 249 10

A e SRR TNy

(1956). The State cannot be permitted to deprive the defendant
of a fair trial by mcans of .nsinuations and lnnuendoes which
.'pw in the minds of the jury a prejudicial bellef in the

existenca of evidence which is othenlisc inadmissible. Locken

4

v. United States, 383 F. 2d 340~(9 C. C. A. 1967). 3 » ;‘g




less ?uinllb as to the character of the defendant. As such,

3 Hence,\- remarks that the defendant had committed past
crimes, And. if not appfchcnded,_wopld still be committing
crimes, were doubly impermi;sible and prejudicial béing comments
on ptiﬁr ctimeé and on facts ndt.in evldencc: As such, the re-
marks Qere improper and constituted reversible error.

lé is true that no objection was made to these comments,

thus they are raised here as plain error. State v. Macon, 57

vN.J. 325 (1971). However, it is submitted that even if objec-
s}qns had been offered, the remarks were of such a prejudicial
nature that no instruction from the court could have neutralized
‘:heix;eE;Lct.- It is submitted that any instruction that the
court might give to the jury to disregard the remarks would

be inadequate to erase the impression th; remarks must have
made on the Jury. It would be a denial of a basic trait of
human nature to believe that a_juror c;uld ignore the remarks
because of any instruction from the court. State v. Robert;,

——= . O NS)

86 N.J. Super. 158, 168 (App. Div. 1969). It is fallacious

. to believe that strict judicial impartiality could be main-

‘tained by the jury after heari g such a remark. The occur-

rence could only lead to groundless conjecture and foundation-

the remarks were incurable even by the most detnileq_pon‘

scientious of instructions, and thus are reversible error.

10




il Q9 M. 540 (1955). ' 3

5 G ; Ntﬂwrﬁbﬂ‘, it is untenable, in considering the comments *
to believe ‘that counsel could have seen any possible advantage A

R m;t objecting to the c‘bmgnts.‘ .llence,_any faliure l:? object

. % must have been inadvertent. The defendant should ‘not suffer .

from counsel's errors. State v. Macon, supra. 'mu’, reversal,

based on ;he remarks, as plain error, is warranted.

v




; \' POINT VIIL 3
3 & THE ACGREGATE OF LEGAL ERRORS AT
; : THE TRIAL CREATED AN ATMOSPHERE
e . . S0 HOSTILE AND PREJUDICIAL TO
. s THE DEFENDANT AS TO PRECLUDE THE
. RENDERING DF_A FAIR AND-TMPAR- .
i e 3 TIAL VERDICT. (Not Ralsed Below),

gn the case of State v. Orecchio, 16 N.J. 125 (1954), the

DA N

Supreme Court of New Jersey stated:

“Where, however, the legal errors

are of such magnitude as to preju-
dice the defendant's rights, or, in

1 % their aggregate have rendered the .

e VO o v AR trial unfair, our fundamental con- _

e stitutional concepts dictate the '

granting of a new trial before an
{mpartial jury. Orecchio, at 129.

It is urged, in the present case, that the defendant's trial

St yag wrought with legal errors as discussed above which,in the aggre-

gate, resulted in creating ap-atmosphere of !;os:ilicy‘ and distrust

towards the defendant, thus precluding him from receiving a fair and

impartial trial. Such being the case, reversal is mandated.

20




‘in. : : POINT IX

IT WAS ERROR FOR THE COURT TO ©
DENY DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR
JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL ON THE
ROBBERY COUNT, SINCE ON THE
“EVIDENCE PRODUCED NO REASON-
ABLE JURY COULD HAVE FOUND
GUILT BEYOND A REASONABLE
DOUBT.

At the close of the State's case defense moved for a Judg-
ment of acquittal on the ground that the State failed to prove |-~

prima facie case. The court denied the motion as to the robbery

count, among others. (27T 77)

b i - - .

 The test for determining the sufficiency of the evidence

when a motion for judgment of acquittal is made is: T
"whether, viewing the State's
evidence in its entirety, be
that evidence direct or cir-
« 0 cumstantipl, and giving the = - ;
—State the benefit of all its 20
favorable testimony as well ° . ke
as all of the favorable in-
ferences which reasonably
could be drawn therefrom, a
reasonable jury could find
: guilt of the charge beyond
L i e a reasonable doubt." State :
T R AR ey oo aonen Moo ROV @B, SO Nos 454, 459 AR SVARE. v
g (1967). 2 E T e

* The defendant here submits that thg State failed to pro- fdi G
lent evidence from thch a rcasonabln jury could find th.

= defendant gun:y of robbcry. The defendant subuits here : 3



-

that alth‘ough the State's theory wa.s that the defcndant.robbed
ster's pistol and then murdered him with it, (27T 55) the-

State failed e_ntitely to present any evidence of intent to

rqbv. or any evidence from which such an intent could be in-

ferrezjl_. As such, the motion for judgment of acquittal, as to

the robbery, should have been granted.
Robbery! like all eriminal offenses, requires proof of

i.ntent to do the act. However, robbery also requires the

specific 1nte‘nt to steal and to permanently deprive the victim
of his property. State v. Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413 (1968), cert.
den'd., 393 U.s, 1043, 89 s. ct. 673 (1968;: It is respectfully
submitted that under no reasonable interpretation of the evi-

daﬁcc could any intent to rob be found, The .l:aking and using

- of Foerster's revolver was done with the same intent that any

available weapon would have been used - with the intent to use
the revolver, not to"steal it. Not' evene‘a tortured view of

the evidence can support a theory that any independent intent
to steal existed, A theory that all the events of the night

océurrcd as a result of the defendant's desfre to rob Foerster

BT h!l mvoj,yot is almost to.ludicrous to mention. Clearly

the ukl.ng and use of the revolver was an integral part of the
. v " v ~

murder and not the

product of any independent ‘intent to steal.




bt

(

e Sh : i

Auwh. it was clearly error to deny defendant's motion for a

judgment of acquittal as to the robbery count. Since the State,
not having shown aﬁx facts from which a reasonable jury, giving

the State the benefit of all- faworable inferences, could have

 inferred any intent to rob, he motion should have been granted.

Reyes, supra. Failure to do so was error. .




4 % . POINT X

DEFENDANT'S CONVICTION FOR ROBBERY
_ MERGED WITH HIS CONVICTION FOR
MURDER. (Not Raised Below)

~
.

The defendant was onvicted of, among other thihgs, the

‘ ( murder of Trooper Foerster. The State's theory apparently was el
| that after wounding Foerster, Squire then took Foerster's pistol 2 3 ‘i
and killed Foerster. (27T 55, 15-25) Based on this theory, the ; : é
Sta‘:e also charged Squire with, and won a conviction for, the / 3 ‘

| ; robbery of Foerster's plstol. It is here submitted that the _r‘ 10%% v

v ‘= . conviction for robbery merged w}.th the conviction for murder,

i hence the robbery ccnviction, and the sentence based thereon, f'*-"

mua’t be vacated. - & E

___The doctrine of merger of offenses which prohibits g
; iractipnnlizatlon grows out of the constitutional prohib'itton : s
¥ against multiple ﬁ;secuuon ory pu;lishment for the same of-

~fense; popularly known.as 'double jeopardy." U. S. Constitu-

tion, amend. V; State v. Currié¢, 41 N.J. 531 (1964); State v.
T Cooper, I3 N.J.L. 361 (Sup. Ct. 1833). The AEEFICyIty has o e

""“""nerm'ﬂitamtnmg'mm offenses dre "the same." ifat’a 2 g

Currie, pugi‘n. New Jersey Courts in attempting to meet this




2

* «  problem have at times devised different criteria or "tests" to o
simplify ﬁhe tésk.

The ear]:iest of these originated in State v. Cool er,
Supra, in which the defendant, previously tried and convicted

for arson, was again brought to trial on a charge of murdering x

a victim of the same fire. The defendant interposed a plea of

autrefois convict., The court (Drake, J.) said: "If the whole

offense in the eye of rcason and philosophy is one...we oug :
not to presume that the legislature mcant to punis as two...

In this case the arson is a necessary constituent of the murder."

1d.
This was the birth of what became !'mownAaa the "included

offense teu.;' and it enjoyed. a long if not prolific, 1life.

i ~-Soe, eig., State v. Dixon, 40 N.J. 190 (1963); State v. Midgely,

| /J.S N.J. 574 (1954). Eventually, however, there arose the need

for a clearer exposition of the principles of Cocgar; In 1918
| - ‘the old New Jersey Supreme Court had occasion to re-examine the

problem of double jeopardy. That court, without citing Cooper,

8 et il

determined that if the facts essential to prove guilt on the
second indictment were identical to the facts ‘proven at the

first trial, the plea of nutr.cfoia convict would bar the second

conviction. ‘State v. Mowsér, 91 N.J.L. 395 (Sup. Ct., 1918),

e

_rev'd, 92 N.J.L. 474 (E & A 1919). On appeal the Court.of




Errors and Appeals rejected this "same facts" test as propounded
below, saying "the unsoundness of this reasoning lies in as-

s:ming that the offenses must have legal identity in al]: cases, -
and in ignoring a most'essential factor, tha® is, whether or not .
‘the offenses grew out of ;:hé same tr;'msaction o;.' were the product
of the same criminal act." State v. Mowser, 92 N.J.L. 474, 483
(B.& A 1919). This court did cite Cooper, and embroidered upon -
it what became known in tl;e many cases which followed the

"same transaction test." See, e.g., State v. Pennsylvania R. R.

Co., 9 N.J. 194 (1952); -State v. Wings, 47 N.J. Super. 235 (App.
Div. 1957); State v. Hoag, 35 N.J. Super. 555 (App. Div. 1955),

aff'd, 21 N.J. 496 (1956), aff'd, 356 U.S. 464 (1958);
i

However, the old Supreme Court's "same facts test,"”

criticized :houghi it waAs,r fégﬁpéh}e»éwi:‘nusx:atié v. “Di'.-(*}ﬂi&s"aw;' O

= o (1950). In this reincar;gation‘ the test was "...whéther the

« idence ary to support the 1id indictment would have
been sufficient to secure a legal conviction upon the first..."
1d. at 419. The case went on to point out that though an
, accused may be convicted of a leSser o_t'fensg when bygqght to
trial upon a greater, once an accqsed has peen acquitted or
_convicted ‘of' the greater offense, a subs‘cquent trial for the

lesser offense is barred, Id., thus restating the principle

10




3

This "same evidence test" was rather easy to apply and

vas widely used. See, e.g., State v. Mark, 23 N.J. 162 (1957);

AL R4 11

" State v. Liebowitz, 22 N.J. 102 (1956); State v. Shoopman, ‘11

N.J. 333 (i953); State v. Labato, 7 N.J. 137 (1951). However,
even this test was not absoluté and in each of the cases men=-
tioned reference was also made to cases in which other tests

were used. The time. came when the court recognized t

he
futility of efforts to formulate a precise "test." In/(»

= v.“Roller. 29 N.J. 339 (1959), Justice Jacobs speaklné for a

unanimous court said:

Neither test (“same facts" or "same
transaction") has been considered
absulute nor has either test proved
to be entirely acceptable; the fact *
is that while the court has been
seeking the elusive ideal test it .-
has in each instance endeavored
fairly to protect the State's vital
interest in bringing the guilty to
T Justice while at the same time
fairly protecting the accused from
multiple trials and punishment
where in all substance and reality
there has been but a single wrong-
doing. Id. at 346 (citations
omitted).

Identical sentiments were expressed by the'Justiée five years
later n State v. Currie, 41 N.J. 531 (1964), where, again

speakiné for a unﬁnimous court he stated, "In a}plying the‘pry-
hibition aéninsc double jeopardy, the emphasis should be on

underlying policies, rather than techaisms. The primary

20




- #

\considerntions should be fairness and fulfillment of reasonable

~e=.. . expectations in the light of the constitutional and common law

goals." 1Id. at 539. 2 s
It is te'spcctfully submltted. therefore, that under any

and all of the tests outlined above, the conviction for robbery,

s beililg an i:m:egral part of the murder, should have merged with

the murder. Clearly the taking of Foerster's pistol was a

‘necessary step in accomplishing the murder, not the fulfill- » )
ment of an intent to rob. Certainly no one would advance the /
theory that the events of May 2 were for the purpose of robbing 10

Troo;l)'e’r Foerster of his weapon. Not only was- the robbery not

a separate offense, but moreover, it was actually a step in

i » the murder. It is submitted that under any of the tests out=- v

lined above, the fair fulfillment of the reasonable expectations

of the law requires that the conviction for robbery be vacated.

A ! .
Currie, supra; Conviction for the robbery as well as the

murder clearly violated defendant's constitutional protection

ag:ainst double jeopardy.

The case of State v. Fitzsimmons, 60 N.J. Super, 230

(Aﬁp; Div. 1960), deals with the issue at bar. " In that case, S | Se—

a police officer attempted to arrest defendants, Eugene and ST

KPP s 15 Fitzsinmons, for breaking and entering. Eugene picked

- up a pistol and a struggle ensugd between Eugene and the

T gy e ;




. ) \ »
officer. During the Struggle Paul "robbed" the officer's service

.. Eevolver from him and murdered the of ficer wIth It. Defendants
”'iiéui‘é'vvrfhdiékédwfdr-m::t'r;i'ewtv”[7‘I'7r"\~diutmcn: No. 467-57] and convicted on

the above theory. Fitzsimmons, at 232. Following this, defen-

—— S

e dants were then indicted for armed robbery [Indictment No. 518-57] *

and breaking and entérlng. Id. Defendants moved before the

Appellate Division to quash the indictments. Id. Althouﬁh the

charge of breaking and entering was sustained, the robbery count

¥
was dismissed, the court stating: /
The transcript is clear that the

two indictments refer to the {den- z
tical robbery. Based upon the same ; =
e evidence test, the same transaction
test, or any other test to deter-
mine double jeopardy, the motion to :
dismiss Indictment No. 518-57 for
armed robbery should be granted.
- : The conviction of the defendants
for murder under Indictment No. :
467-57 is a bar to further prosecu- 20
tion under Indictment No., 518-57. -
"Where the accused may be convicted
. of a lesser offense included in the g ;
greater laid in the indictment, an 4 ¢
acquittal or conviction of the
greater offense 1s on grounds of
former jeopardy a bar to a subse-
quent trial for the lesser
' offense." State v. DiGiosia, 3
~ N.J. 413, 419 (1950). See also
State v, Labato, 7 N.J. 137, 144
(1951); State v. Mowser, 92 N.J.L.
476, 479 (E & A 1918); State v.
- Cooper, 13 N.J.L. 361 (Sup. Ct.




Squ!te removed ("robbed") Foerster's revolver and killed him
question is, if Squire had been éharg'ed and convicted only of
murder, and then re-indicted at a later date for robbm

. count, but also iz is clear that, failing to dismiss the count, .

; erro)‘

¢

1833); State v. Rosa, 72 N.J.L.
462 (E & A 1905).

This [ was c]:early the factual situation presented in the

present cue. The State s theory was that during thc struggle,

with it. S ee, e.g., 27T 55, 15-25; and Dr. ‘Albano’s testimony) -

As such the case falls squarely within Fitzsimmons. 'Tile crucial

“
pistol, could the latter indictment stand or would it violate

double jeopirdy rulesmat'ly, under Pitzsimmons, the indict-
ment could not stand. Therefore, not only was it error to deny

detend-nt s motion for a judgment of acquittal on the robbery

the conviction must merge at sentencing. Failure to do so was
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: POINT XI T
i : ; THE VERDICT BELOW WAS AGAINST . ' 3

. THE WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE AS

TO THE ASSAULT AND ROBBERY .
COUNTS .

On May 3, 1974 defendant's motion for a new trial was heard

-before the Honorable John E. Bachman, J.C.C.

(Da-10) It is submitted that it was error to deny this

motion
to the assault and robbery counts. - /‘J

The standard to be applied in determining whether the ver-

t/a, and was denied.

10

dict was agalnst the weight of the evidence'must be distinguished

from that whieh is applied upon a motion ‘for Judgment of acquittal.

p -See Dolson v, Anastasia, 55 N.J, 2, 5-6 (1969). On a motion for

Judgment of acquittal, the Judicial function is rather ",

mechani-

cal" and ‘5 not concerned with the worth, nature or extent of the e

evtdence/«.ut only with fts existence,

the State. 1Id.

viewed most favorably to

Upon a motion for a new trlal, however, a process

ot ovldence evaluation and weighing is requlred which "calls for a

htgh degree of conscientious effort and diligent scrutiny. The

object 1s to correct clear error or.mistake by the jury." s
6.

upra, at 20
~ Such a motion may properlysbe granted even though the state

of the evidence may not Jjustify the granting of a motion for judg-

mnl; of ncqult:nl. Id.

The standard to be applied was concinef f 2
ur. torth by Justice Hall in Dolson,

SUE!‘E




el

‘. /T/he trial judge shall grant the
motion, if, having given due re-
gard to the opportunity of the
jury to pass upon the credibility
of the witnesses, it clearly
appears that there was a miscar-

- riage of justice under the law,
- Id. at 7.

An appellate court is duty-bound to reverse a conviction

( > if there was plain and obvious failure of the fact-finder to 10
b & .

perform its function. St'atc v. Butler, 32 N.J. 166, 196, cert.
denied, 362 U.5.984 (1960); State v. Williams, 39 N.J. 471 » Y
cert. denfed, 374 U.S. 855 (1963); State w. Landeros, 20 N.J. _ 3

76, 83 (1955), cert. denied, 351 U.S. 966 (1956); State v.

Haines, 18 N.J. 550, 565 (1955); State v. Monahan, 16 N.J. 83,

93_, cert, denifed, 348 U.S. 889 (1954). A verdict must be set
aside as against the weight of the evidence where it "clearly
o and ynequivocnlly appears that there was a manit‘e# denial of
Justice tlé!‘m'~ the law. y_a;'t ence v. Grouleff, 15 N. J. 545,
549 (1954). It 1s submitted that there is surely a miscarriage. 20
of justice under the law-when a verdict of guilty is rendered on
thl basis of evidence which is manifestly insufficient to prove

‘each element of the offense charged beyond a reasonable doubt.




To warrant a coaviction of crime,
the testimony should prove the
suilt of the accused beyond a
* reasonable doubt, If it fails
to do this, i.e., if it be of such
~ a nature that, when fully and. . o
e ~fairly consideved, it will not
v - satisfy any thoughtful mind,
; beyond a recasonable doubt, of the
guilt of the accused, then a con-
< viction does manifest wrong,
according to our system of ad- ¥ Lo
* ministering criminal law.

R : “
. Kohl v. State, 59 N,J.L. (30 Vroom) 445, 445-46 ( 1896).

f The defendant respectfully contends that the verdict of the

Jury below was against the weight Qf the evidence as to the ag- :
sault and robbery charges as to give rise to the in'escnpable con-
clusio_n that the verdiét was the 'pro‘duct of mllutake, passion,
prejudice or partiality. See Hager v. Weber, 7 N.J. 201, 210
(1951). : ;
o Defendant submits that there was no evidence that he
participated in the assault on Harper either as a ptiﬁcipal or
an aider and abettor. There was no evidence of a conspiracy to i
assault or that the defendantshad ever conferred with each
other after being stopped by Harper. The theory that ‘8qu1re
- 'niéod-by—inuplcitadng' ‘tster is based solely on:grouhdlebl

conjecture and surmise. ::quire uight haye just as eas;ly been

10

20

defending himself from Focrster's highly predictable reaction +




to the shooting of Harper. There is no evidence to the contrary.

4s to the ;ob'hry ;ﬁar‘.. clearly there was no evidence before

the ju:y from which it eould have found the neceasn:y intent to -
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POINT XII

‘THE DEFENDANT'S SENTENCE 1S Ao ;
e e AL SN R MANIFESTLY EXCESSIVE AND
mﬂrlvz T ————

~

-

It is settled law in New Jersey that an "appellate court
has the power to review any'exercise of the trial couft'a dis~

cretion, including the power to revise a prison sentence where

)‘ it 1s ma.nifestly excessive, even though within statutory
Limits." State v. Bess, 53 N.J. 10, 18 (1968); State ¥. PRty . :
Montague, 55 N.J. 387 407 (1970); Szate v. Provoid, 110 N.J.

10 -
R
» Super. 547 559 (App. Div. 1970)

‘l‘he defendant respectfully submits that hls sentence is
manifestly excessive and unduly punltive, particularly its
consecutive natura.

-~ Our systém ;f.cgiminnl law, which is humane in its out-
look and policy, graduates the pt.mishmenc according to the 3 : ; ,.,Q

magnitude of the crime and tries to protect the defendant from ! Shi I

A punishment which is so disproportionn:e to the crtme as to

‘ahock our sense of juscice.

g J

State v. Johnson, 67 N.J. Super. G

P41, 420 (App. Div. 1961). Expressed in other terms, "...the 20 :
: xlllng thene is that punlshment should ﬂt the oftender as Seois ¢ i

wull as the offegse " State v. Ivan, 33 N.J. 197, 200 (1960);




State v. Ford, 92 N.J. Super. 356, 361 (App. Div. 1966) State v.

ﬁard, 57 N.J. 75 (1970) at page 82, stated, "sentenc;na.judm
should d!.tect the pnniehmnt they impose to the goal of reforma-
tion. Too -kvére a punishment will do. litth towards advanc,ing
“this- gul. N

e Dct'andant raapectiuuy submlts that the consecutive

nature of the sentences imposed is manifestly excessive und

unduly punir.ive and :espectfuny requests that the; made to
run concurrently with his life sentence. s ;
N
b R : _ .

N,
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. CONCLUSTON

.

For the foregoing reasons defendant respectfully requests

that defendant's conviction be reversed and the case remanded

for en:fy of a judgment of acquittal or for a new trial, or, in

the alternative, that defendant's sentence be modified.

STANLEY C. VAN NESS
Public Defender
Attorney for Deandant-Appcllant

%//f R

- JQUN A, SNOWDON, JR.
sistant puty Public Defendet

Sl




MURDER, :

PELONY MURDER, .
ATROCIOUS ASSAULT & BATTERY,
A3SAULT & BATTERY ON POLICE OFFICER,
AGSAULT W/DANGEROUS WEAPON,

ASAULT W/T TO KILL, NEW JERSEY SUPERIOR COURT

ZGAL POSSESSION OF WEAPOM,
£ ROBRERY ; MIDDLESEX COUNTY

LAW DIVISION
(CRIMINAL)

’ : File Yo. 73-1134 /

THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

.

va. : INDICTMENT No..1436-72.,
First Grand Jury
CLARX EDWARD SQUIRE, a/k/a May 1973 Stated Session .
James Henry Walker, a/k/a : y
Archie Gibson, September Term 1972
R - Defendant.
Y o .

'THE GRAND JURORS of the State of New Jersey, for the County of Middle- -
sex, upon their oaths, PRESENT that CLARK EDWARD SQUIRE, a/k/a

James Henry Walker, a/k/a Archie Gibson, on the 2nd day of

May 1973, in the Township. of East Brunswick, in the County of -
Middlesex aforesaid, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, .

did unlawfully, willfully, feloniously and with malice aforethought ;
kill and murder Werner Foerster, a New Jersey State Trooper then Wl
and there. acting in the performance of his‘duties while in - **°
unifori,”contrary to-the provisions of NJS 2a:113-1 and NJS 2Rz 4t
113-2, -and against the psace of this State, the government and °
dignity of the mme, ‘ . . o

" .




P A

SECOND_COUNT j e

THE GRAND JURORS of the State of Mew Jersey, for the County 0f =~ .
Middlesex, upon their oaths, PRESENT that CLARK EDWARD SQUIRE, a/kfa’
James Henry Walker, a/k/a Archie Gibson, on the 2nd day of May 1973, !
in the Township of East Brunswick, in the County of Middlesex - : ¥
aforesaid, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, did unlawfullys
willfully, feloniocusly and with malice aforathought kill and nurder
James Coston, a/k/a Zayd -Malik Shakur, contrary to t ovisions

of NJS 2A:113-1 and NJS 2A:113-2, and against th ace of this

State, the government and dignity of the same and to the form af

the statute in such case provided.

THIRD COUNT

THE GRAND JURORS of the State of New Jersay, for the County of
itiddlesex, upon their oaths, PRESENT THAT CLARX DDWARD SQUIRE,

a/k/a James Henery %Walker, a/k/a Archie Gibson, on the 2nd day

of May 1973, in the Township of East Brunswick, in the County

of Middlesex aforesaid, aad within the jurisdiction of this Court,

did commit an atrocious assault and battery upon James M. Harper, =~
by a iously and willfully wounding, maiming and injuring him,
contrary to the provisions of NJS 2A:90-1, and against the peace

of this State, the government and dignity of the same. b

e




FOURTH COUNT

THE GRAND JURORS oF the State of New Jarsey, for the County of
."-iddlesex,kpon their oaths, PRESENT THAT CLARX BEDWARD SQUIRE,
a/k/a Arch Gibson, a/k/a James Henry Walker, on the 2ndéd day
of May 1973, in the Township of East Brunswick, in the County

| of Middlasax aforesaid, and within the jurisdiction of this Court,

| 1id commit an assault and battery upon James M. Harper, a New

| Jersey §State Trooper then and there acting in the parformance of
Auties while in uniform, by unlawfully, willfully wounding, maiming 2

and injuring him, the said State Trooper, contrary to the provisions ’,_l‘.

of MJS 2A;90-4, and against the peace of this State, the govern-

ment and dignity of the same.

B FIFTH COUNT
THE GRAND JURORS of the State of New Jersey, for the County of
Middlesex, upon their oaths PRESENT THAT CLARK EDWARD SQUIRE, a/k/a 23
James Henry Walker, a/k/a Archie Gibson, on the 2ad day of May 1973, a

-« in-the Township of East Brunswick, in the County of MiddlLesex >
aforesaid, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, unl awfully, i

R

willfully and maliciously did commit an assault upon James M.
Harper with a certain offenSive weapon or instrument, to wit,
" a handgun, then and there had and held, contrary to the provisions
. of NJS 2A:90-3, and against the peace of this State, the govern-
ment and dignity of the same. e ¥

SIXTH COUNT /
THE GRAND JURORS of the State of MNew Jersey, for tne Coumnty of
Middlesex, upon their oaths, PRESENT THAT CLARK EDWARD STUIRE, a/k/a
James Henry Walker, a/k/a Archie Gibson, on the 2nd day of May 1973,
in the Township of East Brunswick, in the County of Middlesex
aforasaid, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, willfully,
maliciously and feloniously did make an assault upon Jame:s M.
Harper with a certain firearm, loaded with gun powder and metal
bullats, with intent willfully, maliciously and feloniously then
: and there to kill the said James M. larper, contrary to the provisions .
—of -N§3J5 2A:90-2, and against the peace of this State, the government
- and dignity of the same. = - i : :

B

e




SEVENTH COUNT

"gdﬁlesex, upon their oaths, PRESENT THAT CLARX EDWARD SQUIRE, a/k/a

James Henry Walker, a/k/a Archie Gibson, on the 2nd day of May 1973, °

in the Township of East Brunswick, in the County of Middlesex
““atoresaid, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, unla Yy

carried and possessed and had under his custody and con 3

certain weapons, to wit,

(' THE GRAND JURORS of the State of Mew Jersey, for the Couﬁty of

%
A, :

s

one (1) 9 Milimeter Bergman .38 Super Automatic Llama
= Pistol - Serial #24831 °
“and/or one (1) 9 Milimeter Luger Browning Automatic Pistol
and/or one (1) .330 caliber Browning Automatic-Pistol
Serial #71M12237

without having obtained the requxsite pazmit to carry the 'said
‘irearms,contrary .to the provisions of NJS 2a:151-41(a), and against
e peace of this state, cne government and aignity of Ehe same.

/



EIGHTH COUNT

“HE GRAND JURORS of the State of New Jersey, for the County of
iddlesex,supon their oaths, PRESENT THAT CLARX EDWARD SQUIRE,
a/k/a James Henry wWalker, a/k/a Archie Gibson, on the 2nd day

of May 1973, in the Township of East.Brunswick, in the County of
and within the jurisdiction of this Court,

widdlesex aforesaid,

while armed with a firearm, to wit, a handqun, then and there -

4id unlawfully, £forcibly and feloniously take from the person \ ﬁf
r, property of the -

of Werner Foerster, a NeWw Jersey State Troope
said Werner Foerster,  to wit, a .38 calibar Smith & Wesson .
revolver, by violence, to wit, by shooting, slaving, and e
%illing the said Werner Foerster, contrary to the provi s g
of NJS 2A:141-1 and NJS 2A:151-5, and against the p of this 8
State, the government and dignity of the same. -

~
A True Bill:

N
T By, roremS_ P diiiler s




L Y 4
! goles. runntHay
o idd ex County Prosecutor -
il County Administration Building
A" New Brunswick, wmew Jarsey 08903
Telephone (201)- 246-6300
A x
i b & ~ "
STATE OF NEW JERSEY, 2 HIDDLESEX COmiITY Ccoury
g C LAW DIVISION (CRI!!IN.\I.)
B X ¢ INDICTMENT NO. 1436-72
Q:LRRK EDWARD SQUIRE a/k/a ‘s
JANES HENRY VIALXER a/k/a -~
ARCHIE GIBSON, 2
\ Dafendant. H
il STATE OF nEW JERSEY, : HIDDLESEY COUNTY COURY
, LAY DIVISION (CRIHIH.'\I’.) B

~vs- : THDICTHENT 1O. 1437-72
JOANNE ‘DEBORAN. CHESINARD, ’
e ORDBR SRR IS SN X T 2

fea e e e Pefondant, .

This mattoi/:;ming on befére the Court upon application
! of the attorneys . for the defendants, Paymond A. Brown, EQquire
; and Evelyn A._Hilliams, Esquira, eppa2aring on behal: 0f the

i dafandant Chesimard and Charles T. tielinney, Bsquire, appaaring

on behalf of the dafendant Squire, and in tha vresenca of

C. Judson Hamlin, lst Assistant Prosecutor of iiiddlanat: County "
* o

i for the State for an Order granting a changa of veaud, or in the |




!

s
% :

~tively implament the summoning of ‘the panel shall be issued by

'patties.

-t

gltcrnativa, for a forzaign jury, and a request £or continuancg
baixig withdrawn; ;md ‘ ;
Tha Court having considerad the affidavits and
pleadirgs on fxle, the Briefs and argunents of counsel, and
for other good cause shown;. -
T6 1= on this 2 day of ) emanRun o a0
ORDERED and ADJUDGED Yhat:
=~ 1. Dpefendants' motion for'a foréign jury sha{l be and
heraby is granted. g
- 2. The County of Morris is hercby d s:.g"ateq' for mu:poses
of jury selection pur uant to N.J.S.2A: 76-2. .
3‘,‘ Upon coznplet:.on of ‘Ju;}@tion, the cause shall
be returned to Middlesax County’for trial:
4. The trialsof the cause shall be continuad for such
reasonable p=r10d of time as i.. nééeasary to select and summon

an appropriate panel of vcnlre'ﬂerx., SRR

5. Such fur..her Orders. as are neccssary to adnini.stra-

the Court sua sponte and shall be se:ved upon counsel for the

Lr.O‘I G;2’0~‘5’(Y ’

Ve har"oj ron.—.ar‘t _to_the f»:;z;r,n,and entxy of tne o

* DATMOSD"A . BROWM =
J\‘-"oznﬂ_y for. D--:nda'\ts




- withioe futiog
PEENTRIED with A JURY AND A verdict OF .

NEW JERSZY. SUPERIOR COURT
MIDDLESEX COUNTY

LAW DIVISION—CRIMINAL
,. EILED MARCH 15 1974 . ¥ lndidm-n)_yo. 1435':’2
-

Ac:uulicn"No.
THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

5 i Jup T
: ; ND
LARK ECHARD. SQuIRE ORDER FOR COMMITMENT
/' /a APCHIE GInson
Defendant, . :

Tt defendant on ... May AR dRzsy. <l

t plea OB i ~Hok Guilty to a1l counts
'+ Indictment —xAwvsien L e 8 17 Juc P Murdex.........
L ek - Murder = 3pq ct, Atrocious Assoult & Batt

; 2ry on Trooper Harper - 4th ct,
:»z.ul..s...l.‘s...B.,es.'.;g.xx..qn..wmopax..n.ame:..:.,.s th. Count, -Assault.on.Trooper. Harper. with.......
-“ensive weapth,

Assault on Trooper Harper w/intent to kill - 7th
(11, -8.W8apon_ and. 8th_count. - Armed “Robbexy....................
w0l the defendant having on ... ~Janvary. 2, 1974 to Magch 11,.1974. ..

SETRACRED PLEX ORNOT CUIKTY ANDENTERED R

count

6 (S1. AAYBY.crivcriirnris

Guilty to 1st, 3rq, Siabehe o0

o SRty TEH GO0 o




~

It is, therefore, on .. March 15, 197‘ TR : Y
Ordered and Adjudged that the defendant be and is sentenced . £0 the New Jmey State Prison
on 1st qq;gg: = Life Il:prhonmont, 6th Count - 10 to 12 years - 7th .eount - 2 to 3 vears

nd 8:{\‘ count 12 to 15 years - Sentences to be sarvad consecutively ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, :
[2nd count dismissed on motion on March 7, 1974) 3xd count merqed wi 7
“th count mexged with 6th, Sth count mexged with Sth....

X L
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT THE 'SHERIFF DELIVER THE DEFENDANT TO THE
AFORENAMED INSTITUTION TO SERVE: HIS SENTENCE.

/Co:;n:yCleﬂ:" : e

Ubisadl. o /772/ "




i tiaad\ GEEs GRSt

i JOHEN S, KUHLTHAU

J'HdelGSeY County’ Prosecutor

a.county Administration Building

New Jersey 08903 . 3
246~6330

|New Brunswick,
Telephone (201)
STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
~VS=

CLARK EDWARD SQUIRE,

Defendant,

MIDDLESEX COUNTY COURT
Law DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
INDICTMENT NO. 1&36 72

¥

et

This matter being opened to the Court on notion of

Charles T. lMeXinney, Esquire, and Raymond A, Brown, Esquire,

‘attorneys for defendant, for an Order gyranting defendant a
ynew trial, and C,~Judson Hamlin, 1st Assistant Frosccutor,

appearing on behalf of the State; and

e

The Court having con51dered the proceedings on file,

.the arguments of counsel and for other good cause shown;

{

It i5 on this.

/Jiﬁ day of 524244,
J

. 1974

: ha and ‘the same is hereby denied in its entirety.

ORDERED and ADJUDGED that defendant's motion for a new trial

o

(e cba

.

J JOIT E. DACHIAN, J.5:C.




{ORIGINAL FILED

MAR 23 19m

& G HEGY

STANLEY C. VAN NESS N
PUBLIC DUFENDER i SUPZRIOR COURT OF NEV JERSE

10-12 Horth Stockten Street LAY DIVISION
Irenton, lew Jersey 08625 MIDDLESEX COUNTY
(609) 292-7087 £ (Criminal)
Plaintifi-Respondent ‘

ITHE STATE OF NEW JERSEY :
: Indictment No. 1436:12w r

vs., .
: NOTICE OF APDEAL v
Defendant~Appellant .

CLARK LDWARD SOQUIRE | o

BB 4 e v e 8 s a4 t8 & se @

TO: KORORABLE JOILl S. KUHLTHAU
Prosecutor iilddlescx County
Adninistration DBuilding
Hew Drunswick, Hew Jersey

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the above named defendant-

SIR:

nppellanﬁ hereby appeals to the Superior Court of New Jersey,
Appqllﬁte Diviaion, frdm the whole of the judgment eu?ored in the
Middlesex Cnunty‘Coq;t, Criminal Division, on the 15th day of
March, 1974, as hereia nore purticﬁlarly gét‘!opth:

The name and address of.the defendant-appellant =

s CLARK EDVARD SQUIRE, New Jersey State Prison.




- \:>The names and addressea of the \ttorneys for
defendnnt-nppcllant are: Charles T icKinney, Esq., 401 Bré\hpay;
New York, New York, and Brown, Vogelman & Ashley, Esqs y 26

Journal Squnrc, Jersey City, New Jersey.

The offenses charged agailngt ‘the defondant-ap-

pellant upon whieh the Judgment is eantered aro: First Count =

violation of N.J.S. 2A:113-1 ané—y,dT§; 2A:113~2, nurder; Third

Count - violation of N.J.S. 2At§0-1 2troclous assault and battery;

Fourth Count - vlolution of N.J.S5. 2A:90-4, nssnult and bnttery,

Fifth Count - violation of N.J.S. 2A:90-3, assault; Sixth Count -
violation of N,J.8. 24:00-2 assault with firearm; Seventh Count -~
violation of N.J.S. 2A:151~41(a) possession of firearm; ¥Eighth

Count” - violution of N,J.S. 24:141-1 gyd N.J.8, 2A:151-5,

A i The sentence inmposod by the Court on the 15th
day of larch, 1974 was as "follows:

First Count - Life Imprisonment

Third éount ) :

Fourth Count ) e
=~ Merged - 10 to 12 years
Fifth Count )

Sixth Count ) . ; 2
i Seventh Count - 2 to 3 years
Eighth Count -212 to 15 yoarﬁ

Fron Third to Eighth Count to. run consoputlvoly.




an

County Court.

~

Sat Below - lionorable Joha E. Bachman, llddlesex

Sentencing Judge - Honorable John E. Bachman.

r

- STAULEY C. VAN NESS -
PUBLIC DEFENDER .
2

- By CUARLTS 7O MCRIWNSY

ClAnLis %, MesINNEY
Attorney for Defendant-
Appellant

“BROV, voanuAn 0, ASHLEY
Attorneys for Dotendnnt-Appullnnt

By BAYMOSD A. BROUN
TAYLoun A, DROWHN !
A llember of the Firm




The Public Defender's representation of defendant--

_|lappellant Clarl Edward Squire, at this polnt is provisiopal uader

Rule N.J.S.A. 2A:158A-14.

STANLIEY C. VAN NESS
PUBLIC DIFENDER

7

; Bg*—":;;;Lms T, HeKTNARY
Sy , CIARLES 1, Hek (LY
Attorney for Defendant-
Y ! - . Appellant

BROVN, VOGELMAN & ASHLEY
Attorneys for Defondnnc-Appellant

5o ; 3 RAYLOHD A. RROWN
Y 04D A, BROWH
A lembor of the Firm




B Trenton; Mew Jersey 08625

JOHN S. KUHLTHAU

Middlesex County Prosccutor .
County Administration Building

Mew Brunswick, lNew Jersey 08903

Telephone (201) 246-6330

-

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
APPELLATE DIVISION
DOCKET NO.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, % ' J—"’_,,;

Plaintiff-Respondent, :

G- ) s MOTICE OF CROSS APPEAL

CLARK EDWARD SQUIRE, :

Defenflant-Appellant. ¢ =

T0: Stanley C. Van iNess, Public Defender
Attorney for Defendant :
10~12 torth Stockton Street

&

Raymond A. Brown

Attorney for Defendant

26 Journal Square :
Jersey City, New Jersey i

Charles T. McKinney %
Attorney for Defendant
32 Court Strecet
Brooklyn, New York

GENTLEMEN: 4 e
1

© PLEASE Y7.KE NOTICE that pursuant to R.R,2:4-2, “the




the Superior Court of New Jersey, Aupcllatn Division, from the
Order of the lionorable John E. Bachman, J.C.C., dismissing
the Sgeond Count’of the Indictmant in the within matter, on

the 7th day of March, 1974, at the conclusion of the State's

’

above named Plaintiff-Respondent hereby crm;s—unp-ﬂals to

S

case-in-chief during trial of the above captioned matter. »%

Dated: 4/1/74

i

JOHN §. KUILTHAU y .5 3
Cou Pro7ecutV éi i
/fl M, / -

-+ -y Jun.,c,. 1:.\..r, o e
~lst/Assistant Prosecutor
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N \;“ Yy
MOTIONS/PETITIONS

SUPERTOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
APPELLATE DIVISION
a DOCKET NO.- A-1882-73

STATE OF NEW JERSEY : MOTION NO. . N-1401-73
, : ‘ BEFORE PART D

vs. :
JUDGES ~KOLOVSKY -3
CLARK EDWARD SQUIRE - ’ : FRITZ :
: - CRANE
k] —
GRIG! INAL F"-ED |
% 4 ’e % 4
“OVING PAPERS FILED APRTL 22, 1971 T 1m ‘
ERING PAPERS FILED “APRIL 25, 1974 g :
UATE SUBMITTED TO COURT - MAY 3. 1970 T Tonei MelAUGHLN 5
\TE ARGUED AT 2
ATE DECIDED 1Y 6, 1974 : 34
ORDER ik : -
THIS HATTER HAVING BEEN DULY PRESENTED /’rg)ﬂe*bqum,_ IT IS : «”g
..... AEBY ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: . ' :
GRANTED * DENIED __OTHER
Y0 TON/PETLLIONKINR TO
DISMISS CROSS APPEAL X X
SUPPLEMENTAL: ‘ . . o G 2

—~Btate advises 1t does not oppose motion.

I hf"_‘-b'/ czitity that ha f)rf"'"lng
o 0“ :j:’;;n/f' the original en file : i
C?G;%‘C‘Eu WM £ +FOR THE COURT: . 2
F—— - _ Hapip Kﬂmvw L

...... L s o A e v 1
D xomvsx\' :




x h
CHAELES, 7. McHINNEY,
34 Caurt Strect -
Brooklyn, New York 11201
EROWN, VOGULMAN & I’\SHLE\" SUPEKIOR COURT OF NEW JENNEY
26 JOURIIAL SQUARE LAW DIVISION-MIDDLESEX COUNTY
| JERSEY CITYV, N. J. 07300 : (Criminal)

(201) €3-2301 2
atrorievs FOR  Defendant

Plaintiff _
THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

' : Inds omﬁft(r:o. 1436-72

Defendant
CI:ARK EDVVARD SQUIRE

.

It 18 now respactfully rcquested thst {he Court -

irftruct the jury ag follovia:

A s
1. A person charged with crimc is presuned to be in~

‘nocent until proven guilty. Tids presumption abldea with bim
through the trial. Therefore, when the jury go from the bar of

the court te their room to deliberate, they enter tbe Jury room

- with the presumptlon of innocence still protecting the defendant. |

I,u the various montal conditions, rnnglng frOm thnt in which the

Jury think the dorondant innocent to that 1n which they are con-

vinced beyond a rcnsou-\ble doubt of Nts guilt, he is entitled to G o2

* the benefit o.t thoir uncertainty. it

. V8. s REQUESTS TO CHARGE ‘

A




¥

A l’hsrge mnde in the 1nd1ct:tn"nt, boyond 2 rer=onable devht and thst

birdon, never phifta. 2 L

p*'eacnt-;d o tm the lack ox want of cvidcncc-.

4. Cvirminal intent neccscary to complete ihe

3

yond 2 vrezsonable douht.,

tier upon the evidence in {his case. X
tg}’J

(j; congidered in support of any charge ageinet tho nccus_ed.,

vrem&puon' of 1nnocenco aloac i sufﬂcient to acquit a

the de..end..nt 's guilt frowm 3ll tho evld.,nce in the com..
A ru-aonahlc doubt is 2 fair doubt bused

.. 0 Y
. such as you would be willing to rely and act upon in the most im-~

port:mt of you.r own :-ffnirq A dncﬁdint 13 not to be coavicted
o m-suspiﬂowox conjecture, = :

2. The buarden is vpon the prosecution to prove the-

3. A xua"—mn‘b"c dovbt may arisc frow the evidence

crime

clarged zgainet the accucsd muat bo Pzeved by thc progecutlon bee

1

‘,.-

5. Tho indicimont is nut :,nc‘cnr.r agains{ the dc fen—~

dzapt and iz not te be considorsd am fgg./lr{dﬁ'ring the Jury'a delibara

6.. The Jaw prosunecs a dafez:d'-n.t to be 1nnoc§nt of’a
cxige. Thus a dcfondant, although 1ccuscd begins the trial with
AN JS ; clean elntr" - with uo evidonce against him. And the law poy-

A nite notbing but legzl) evidence presented before the Juxy to bc
So. the

defen~

dzot uoleon the ;j\.rors are salizficd bzyond a x‘ezsona.ble doub(. of

upon

reason and cowuon senso and arising from thc state of the c%#nee.
It is rarely possible tc prove anything to an n::solute certalnty. |
Proof beyond a ;cn"on‘\ble‘ doubt is establiﬂhed. :l.t the evidence is




: sny ovideuce.

A racecnoblo da’v.‘,t way syisc nol only Tom the

cvidanoe producnd, buc alae fyow a Jack of evidepce. Since tlo

b_rden is upon the proqc-uﬂon te prove thc acevsed guilty bayond,
s eons?

msonsh)m dosbt of every ezscniizl elemant of the crime cherged;

o defendart hag t).\o »iglht to roly upon failure of ths proscuution

ta eetsblinh such procf, A dcfendaot mRy alse rely upon evideice
taeought out on cro"ﬂwxmm.natlon of vu,unesoc foxr Lbe prozccution..

The law duvee not lmpouse upon a dsfenddbt the duty of pxodusing-’

A renzonable doubt existis in 2py cawn, aftor
-

carefuw) nnd ixm srtiad consideration of the evidoncr the Jvrorz

én pot fecl amviuced to o xrsrl.l crxtninty thet o defeunds \nt is
e oo o ] pe
guilty of tho chnrge.

7. Tho credit apd bolief to be given to rempective

witnozzes, both for the State and for the defensc wuct be deter-

n.lnei‘by you and you alene. Any rewerks mode by the Cousrt to &

conpeel or counsel te the Ceuxt or between counssl shovld not Lo

conoidered in your deliborations. Visile the Couri is not awire

of any cvtward reactions oun 1ts part to any toetinony gi\_mn by

tho witneseas, I do, howover, instruct you tfmt if such resciions:

dlad occur, that you disrcgard the sams, an

thercforn, bccuuso, as 1 stated before, the credit and belief to

be given to the zespcctiva vlltncsnue, bhoth for thc Stn,te and tho

defense, should bo deternined by you and by you alone.
L

(Da-20)

d not draw any 1‘nf¢rcncc 4




#

gwaliedng the te,uin-ny of g witncosm, therc

8. Im apy

sre corinim guides tbet you may uee to aesist you. You. may talk.

into accopat the éoxsmnu c:‘r:,‘xicm‘e-’o! menkind, You mz;y’ test

wiother the tectiwony of thw v.'rw es is cithey iphercently p¥ ohable

o ipbervatly irpyrobable. Yon ney examinz the dewsenor ofl tbc'

vitoees o2 thoe stand as he o sho teetified, that 1ls tha way .tn

wiideh the witness reacted lo quentions and so foxtik, =nd you mey

of courso, take into considerstion the questions of wheciher

y fact which hes beon testificd

2lgo,

thexe 1 apy motive to migotate an

I tbis connociion you mant also coosider the

to.

juterest tlnt the witneosos may have 1o the final ovicome. “You

w11l pote that sll of the witneaosee tectified for the State with

the cxception of Mr. Silverman, which Wwere e} ther New York City pol

fiste polico, other law enforcement officers or division perscnacl
caploysd by the State Police or the State of New Jexsey and LaDY
. . e

of these wlineasses were friends, acquaiptances or co-viorkers of

#4n nechleving for the State o conviction,

Tyoopere Fosrster and Hayper. It is therefore ‘most important that

you welgh the interests that tbheee particular witnesges nay have,

‘9. Tho defendant docs pot have to prove m tnno"once.
The

The x_stnto wmuat prove his gul.lt beyond a reasonnblc doubt.

cornerstone of our system of Justice i the de:cndant's preaunp—

Ve are bpund under the law to respect this

tion of 1moccncq_;

presumption. 'The defendant )l:ia beon eloaked with -this presumption

>




o mueas .or approprizte ar objoct te hisnelf

L [[the defe®

o Bt o T TR o A SRCSMU LA

of inpozenes throvghout big eullve triz) and he yeuring so

elo:!.od at this very mi;ment. You muct crr:ry this pmﬂwpuo" of

ilwooenea- VALR your throngh Lhe (’cﬂr cf the jvrj_ VS znd it iz to

contines to shrund the de fecadeat uuzing your deliboration, urnifl,

tuch tind an thoe Jury unegirow: 21y deciden, if it evor dozz, that

d2nt has been preven erty by the State bcyond a
Yeaszons . . doubt,

10. Keoy constantly in nind that it weuld be a vigla-

tion ot your sworz duty to base o, verdict of ity up(m anytb!ng

othor than the evidence in tho casc; and ;mﬁﬂbor ar well that tihc

law never iwpozes upon o dofendant in 2 eriminal cang, the b“) den
oy duty of calliog any witnecwou o produeing any evidcnco.
Remonbar alze that the question befaye you cuii
nevexr besr will thc ..Lx:tc win ox lece the cn..c? The State alwaye

wins whou Ju.ztice ie done, regurdless of whether the verdict be -

eullty or not gwllity.

11. Fithin the x.-*zning of tle law,
=
pum.\cs»ion of a woapon w

a poyeon de iw
Len be hee an inteniional dowinion and
conlxol of the wonpon accoupanied by a knovledge of 1ts charsotcr.

Fbavcosiou Eoene the moatal attitvde of a pcx'aon to- :lnteutim-a]ly

s coupled with effec-
ttvu reallzation of this” attitude,

v"l}.‘ffect.lv? realization of.
this attitude”

means that the objgct ls pooscssed to the exclurion

ol others by the Porson or persons intending to pocsess it,

'l;o constitute pocscssion of a weapon, the dominlon

1




o coutyold must b accospenied by krowledge on the psri of the
p'u:oc!:a;or of the prosficnca of @& woepon. Witbeut sueh i{nowlcdg&
theore cap be no ponsicoslon wltb,).n_ the meaning of the law. :

s : I\muec\sloﬂ x'cqt:!.x'c:: botb inteot and knowledge, and
Rhove ear be no ponuscelon witloul both baing precent.

Intent moans a pm porg to do something, a recolue

'ion to é» & particulsy act or aceumplish a certsin ihing. For

to find possesaion on the part of the defendani, you x:};st first
ind istont, that i2, thet ho intended to cxer.cl.v.g control over
ke weapen. And, in addition to intexﬁ, eeszion yequires hknowe-
ledge, that 18 knovledge by tho dcfonaﬁt):d the character of that:
mwlkich be possezced. It is poazible to poszecs soncthing \!’L}.hout
lmowing it, but suech po:zt:'ccalon is not pocsogsion within the nean-
ing of tho law.

Romembsyr that boih iotent aod knowledge are conw

Mdttione of the mind which canuot be secn. .

- 22, I you bocune 'can;'inced bayond a rczsonsble dovbt’
>h: tethotrfendant is gullty of the unlawful taking of the 1life :
ot(\ Trognon Nesxgfor)such an unlewful houleide would be murder in

o L NR AN
the sccoad uo{'rce. Then and only m that owmt 20 unlawful homi."'
cido is prezunod to ba rurder iun thc sccond dr»grea. The‘buxden
bhcn tho States to prove facts which elevate the- offense to murdor

n the first degree. State v. \‘:illlams, 29 N.J, 27, 44 (1959)

./ﬂN.J.é. 2A%113-2 specifles what murders are in the firet _degree.




72 aye hore c-)nccr;xcd with tho category deaeribed ar 2 "willful,
relitiorote and promodinted killdng™.  The stztulory Jangusnge ig
netuslly an inpverye stotermoot of the patural se quonce of the: yee-
:x'.:irc:.*. mautel opordtions. As scitled by judicisnl conrtrustion,

tbo Liret elemont im preomcditstion, wilch consists ef thes conasgs

tatutory word "daiibforato" do2s not here moen "willful™ or "ine-
entional” zgz the wuxd if frequontly uced in daily parhnca.\
uther Lt imports "“dolilbiorstleon™ and requires a roc«n.udnntian of
..ho design to kill, a woighing of ﬁ;}{o« and cove with roopags t.
1e it. Firally, tho word "™ill£ul" signifies an{ntianal eX—

Festion of tho plan o k113 wiiled beas been concelved and Ggl3 ey

13, Circomstantiz) evidence 1 of two kinds; nanely,
'eortain’, ox that fyom whish the consluslon in questiion nccaaénr«-
1y followz; and "umccrtain®™, ox that frow ‘w!.tch the cc-nc]uslo_n
" dozs ot ncesssarily follow, but 18 probuble only, ond is obtained

RY a procens of reaconing. Ju cyininazl cazca, bacause of the

imrge fnot bolng proved by that high depree ot evidcncs whl.cb tho
m.&-nw
rw/ demands. It is not sufficlent if the evidence, on the whole,

pgrees with and supports the ‘»\lppouition whick 1t is adduced to

tion of the dm:ig;s ox plan to li.'d).. Next comss delibrration, Tho

‘rtod upon. i 3 C g

ot




rutionsl supposition but Ahat of the geili of the aecused, and if

it doso nat do so he muul be acquitted.

it 14. The carvlessvecs ox supeyileiality of obecrveri,
the variety of povcre or graphic deseriplion -and the c\u‘fcrcnt
fareco with which tho ‘pcculiari.ty of forw or color or expres ceion
sirikes different porccone, wakcs recognition or i stification one
o iba least rcliable frets tesotifled te .by netunl xritxmsccs who
hove secen the pertics in qucnt:ioﬁ; 5
15. Muxdzy is tho unlawful ki llin/gt sanether human
biing v.'iﬂ. volice =nd wzthcut reuconable pf’ocation or juztifiable
ci.uce or oa.c.xso,_. Iu New Jorscy, by enant weat of the legis Jaf}ure,
llthe crime bas been divided into two degrees, first dogree and
socond dogree. It is presumed that every unlawful killing of
xxra‘!.hor~ huxan boing is nurder ie the éccond dcgree. Fowever, bos
fore such o progunption 'arines an ~un:law.'tui k11llng muat be cotab~
liehed. The mere prosf of a killing doog nol give rise to a pre-
{u:.:ption of apy kind. .‘ %
Mzlies, as I have used ihe word, mﬂz.m: that thexeo:
[muet be s concurrencs of on evll meaning mind with an evil dczitng
Mzlice means elther one or both ot thc !onovd.ng
stntoa of mind p1m.ed1ng or co—-cu..tlng with tho nct or on.lsr'ton
by which death is caused, and it my exist even where that act is

m; preneditated:

o

P




(8) Am iuteaticn to canes the dzsth of, o gricvour budily
here to, any paxgon, vhcthSr euel porgon e the psraon actuzlly
Rille2 ox:not; oxr :

(h) chrlbdgu that tho zet which causes d*.th will probebly
chugs the de2tlh of, ox gricvous bodZly hnr? te, sons person,
whather such porsonm is the porscn actualily killed or not, altheugh
zuch kno;ledge in accewpanied by indifference whdthor‘deatb or
grievouws bodily hare 1o enusod or not, or by a wviab ihat it mey
Dot be cavsed, . ‘,,f”ﬂ
16. Tie clermants ccaﬁiitnting {ic crine of mupdes ayrc
revediintion widch congists of the eonceplion of tbhe deolpgy or
wing to 2111, Next comes dolibas: ‘on. The statutmry word d:1i-
b:rﬁte dsas not hore mean "willfol” or "intentionsl" ng the word
in frequently used in daily conversation or parlance. Rather it
coavoys the meaning of."doliba:ntion“ and requires a reconsiders—
tion of Lhe demign to ki}), a weighing of the proz and cone with
recpect to it., Finally the werd "wlIliuJ" significe an iptoner &
tional execution of tho plan tc Lill vh(ch hee beon conccivcd ang
deliberated upon, - -

%y Whothvx thezb mental operations which I have justi
dcncribod vere performed by dcfendﬁnt are quections of rnct for
the jury. Y e P

¥ The defendant in this case chose not to bo a wit-

:wllent I ckharge you that you are not to congider for any purpose
Fl 7 Y

mess, It is tho constitutional right of a dorend\nt to remain \




o im 2Ry poanor in airivlnr at your wergict,

E-:fcnd_m, ¢l nﬂ. tostify nox eborld t' ot

the fact that the

Lat fret onics into your

libzrations op dizous salons Ir any miencr at any tine, Tho des

fendnnt ig entitlod to havo tho Jury consider all of ihe evidence

nud hc i entitled to the presunptlon of inuoconcc even if he doop

pot tertify as o witnoss,
1%, Morw precence at or nzar the sccne of 2 erine. doge
pat make one a participsnt in tho crime; nor do

22 the fadlure of
# Spectator to intesfore make bix 2 poytd edpant the crime. It

g:, bowover, a clrewstancs to ba considered with the other gvie.

nee ip dﬁtr-mluiun' whnlhc- he was™®

wat 1t {e pot in 11. ©¢1f conclusive ov sidence of the fact.

titete goilt thore mugt cxist & commuity of pRrpose and actual

articipaticn--an 2lding and ebetting in the crine cornitied,

19, 1In c-**x—y erinlual case thc burden i& on the Strto

rC pro/; all of the csqﬂntial eloncats of thc erime charged to- -

yeur satisfzction boyond a reaconsble doubt, In this cege there

aTC three such escentlal elovonts withk respoet ta ntta ocioua

\weault count which muat ba 50 provod by the State bci‘ore you nuy!

rind the defondant guilty.

They are:
Pirat: Tbat the defendant 4n f.nct‘tou»ltted':\n asgault nnd
puttery.

'An asssault is an aLtcxrpL to offer vrith unlawzul force

br violence to do a ‘bodily huxt or phyzical injury to anothar. No -

)a"tic‘ular degree of force or viclenee or injury 13 necessary to

:onm:ituto an asanult and battery.
- P A .

pregent ag an odder oy olx tior,

T6¢ con= - -

£
3




o2 the totality of the clrounstadecs not ncccc'sai;_lly out of con-

i
Scecrd: That tho assoult end Ledtery war comrdtted upron o

atnte, county ox nunlcipal p.» )
pfficer..

. Third] Thot tho ssid. 1nv cnforcenent ollicer wap the vietdn
of an acczult and Lattexry whilo ci thor;
" fn) Actleg in thy e foresnes of bis duiles whide in
unlfor, or
(b) Acting in tho pozformance of his dytses while e
hibiting ovidanee of Iis gu»ﬂS;;:;f :

I you find thet aby of" tbenc thyes comential

lexents of this crime hoa not beso proved by the State beyond 2

:e‘iz?mb)n d¢eubt, 1t s your dsty te roturn a vurdlct of noe
[eedlty. Hewever; if you aro zatizfied boyond a reavonable doubi
M2t the defendant did viclato the statute and @)l the elements
creof, yau must £ind the dafendant guilty.

20. Ik:par'ﬂ!:fe Irom the scone after a cyime has been
tted, of itsels, doss vot warvant an inference of guilt,
l_wiowxly thcre. w2y be facls eniively legitinate connected with
h a depzriure which r:c.uld not support such an info rcnco at nn.
uch facts may include fooxr of belrg falsely accuzzed, fear of

njury, fear of deatk or fenr of bédily haric or panic arising ovt

'sciousness of guilt, '

~

21. . A acceesory after the fact is one vho Bas know-

hdce of anothexr's cogniision of a crime, reeeivad, rclicnd,-




—

re&;urted, ox assisted {ha folon in esdii to hinder bis approhenst
ios, trink or punistwant. Undow the fictis in this cacee, 4F you

:u:e now sr‘ti..zb':l thaty the p*a..“-cnti,ou bas entablisked by proof

csused ths desth of, nox aar.alod,in bringing skoui the doath of -
'h!oopor Pozmter, bat did sqse\,im’" thersefler with Fnowledge of the
ileormission of .a criwo upon Tivopers Foorster snd Harpor assist
other persons presont at the sce_ne-.of the alleged offepsea in
1lecving the 2cepne such ag to Wadex thoiy approhension ;A;t

r
Hhen £ind that dofondant Suulres was ar nececzory sfter the fact

> fand may not be found guilty of apy criuc upon the persons of

¢

Ifroopaers Fosrater and Horper, .
: -22. An zcocsgory afacxr the fact is oba who has hnove-
ledge-of :\nothf:r's couniscion of a crime, roceived, relieved,
conforted, or sesistod the ;ﬁ:lon in oxdex to hinder bis apprchens
leion, tzizl or punishment. If you fing Undexr the factz in thie
cu'c: that the defcudant Sqt...ns acted ag an acceseory after the'
fect within the ccntcxt 2 this deofipition then you may not find
Hhmmltyu a principzl in the murder ‘ot Tr‘oopm' ¥oecrster; in
tho robbery of Mocrster or with regpaet to {u;y aszzult upon

Trooper Harpsr.

v o .’.' -
D.c::pcctfully Submltted,

bcyoné a reanan!b]o da.tb“ thnt defendant Squireg ncitber pevaonslly n
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* N.J. Turnpike

. Negative

.t{:ao ; Negative

14:00 Negative
15:42 . Bruns 886 stoéping. i

; 3 GP 886:

All right, just south of station Vermont Reg. Hold on.
1166 Able Vermont, 2 black males, 1 female.

817 from Brunswick. .

45134 Didn't get the 28, what was it? #'—‘,,—-“’
336335 Just south of the station. % :
Y 28 - Right. I'm at 73 - South now. -t . P

50 Receive Bruns.
15:53 Re: .ved, just head up this way. x
03 I*tm heading up there. o : A

Bruns 823. I'm at 84 southbound. I'll be right up there.

All :igﬁt, you head down this way.-

i1 Mest you at the pass, partner ~t?
23:00 Negyative il ' : 3
‘;Biqnﬁ'!~” Neyative »;

50:000 dsgative :

5i:00  Negative

_iioo  Negative s

53:42 o L) ;tom Bruns and 820 from Brunswick.

3t 50 820 and 817 from Brunswick.
%3 N - b i




Radio Tape g i Page 2

817 go.
817, that car that Harper ;tppbed, they just shot Trooper
ll;arpez.'
820,. be on lookout for this car.
What kind of a car is it again, Bruns?
Bruns, what kind of car is it again? I'm at a U-turn.
Just down from 73. Wh.at kind of car ybu qot?.
It is a Pontiac, one tail light, Vermont reg. Jl66‘Able,
Vermont Reg. One tail light, one tail‘wiiqht?

- Right. 2 black males, 1 black female.

. Received. I'm at a U-turn, I'll be waiting for him - Is i

that northbound or southbound?
.Southbound.

Negative.

Brunswick to all cars. Brunswick to all cars and patrols:

o'/‘_ That's a V;::rmont Reg 1166 A, Vermont, white Pontiac, 2

black males, 1 Slack female headed south on the Turnpike.

2 of the subjects should be hit. ‘ f
057:36 : Bruns, whst nxlepost was t‘xat at? L TR G
3.:3.‘:33 —?kjrh;ls was Milepost 83, about txlepost 83, just below the

; station, Mxlcpbst 83, but they headed south.

053:10 817 Bruns. - : .
053:24 ' 817 right. I'm stopped at a AU—turn. -Hothing of that type :

car coming up this way. I'm just up from .. « I'm in East |
“UBrunswick. —I-guess l'm right up from 79. I haven't s
‘nor.hinq much gone south of me.




N

» 2
Radio Tape : 5~-2~173 i st Pahe 3
: '
518130 : Not necessarily, Bob, they may make a U-turn. Last seen
: headed south..
B ﬁight.
355 : 34 o Okay, Bruns. I've got a white Pontiac on a shoulder just
across from the service area. I'm going to have to nake
a U-turn and go back. It's all dented ué on one side. ' I :
don't know what we got yet, but it's w&iﬁe. ?i
10 0% _That's a yhite Pontiac, Bob, wa it, they are armed and E
b there's ‘two of them are pnﬁ(lyk:zt. %
;13 It's a Poatiac, looks like a Tempest. Right across from : 3
8 Nanc}. ' 'ST
115 _ Right. ) :
59317 Brunswick cars, 817 has a white Péﬁtiac parked across from
Service Area 8 Nancy there.
2:30 ° 820, 88l, Bruns. ;
30934 Southbound. I'm pulling up on 79 now. I'll let you
'F"know - it's a Pontiac. ; - :
200:06 - 881 from Bruns. _ : a
;GS:QS  They're in ‘the woods, Bruhsink,_they're>inlthow e
‘ It's a Pontiac, chmoﬁt Reg. green tags. Stand b&. A
109: 30 _ Okay, Bruns, that does it, they're taking off; I'm firing, 4

at them, they're in the woods. >




¥

Radio Tape

PO & *
, Moorestown from 8 .
820 from Brunswick.

881 from Brunswick.

822 from Bruns.

They're going in the woods right across from 8 Nancy, Brupl;

_fI‘m not going up to the car yet, until a couple cars ébm..
one black male got out of the car and went into the woods.
I fired at him, he took off. The window's out on this :
‘car 1166 Able. /

That's it, 1166 Able.

820 from Brunswick.

822 from Brunswick.

¢ .82i from Brunswick.
822, 881 from Brunswick. s
i . :
Come on, Bruns, get some cars. This guy's iu the woods

somewhere, I don't know what's in that car yet.

820, 881 or 822 ftom Brunswick.
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S e eI DIVISION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE jpuoms: Arsex "
vert J. Del Tuf B iy JOMN DI EICED i
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June 15, 1976 . [T U ﬂ ‘? ;
i
o © N 1D g0 Yo
Ms. Florence Peskoe = 4 |
$ i 3

Clerk, Supreme‘Court of New Jersey %% . i
State House Annéx | ' : LL;
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 CLERK i

¢ r/ : !

Re: State v. Clark E. Squire
Docket No. 12,746
.

Dear Ms. Peskoe:
vl

We are in receipt of the petition for certification
in the above-captioned matter.

The State opposcs the petition and relies upon its
brief below and the opinion of the Appellate Division. Please
find enclosed herewith nine copies of the State's Appellate
pDivisioen brief in-the ‘above-captioned matter.

“‘In the event that this petition is granted the
State would request SQ;opportunity to file a brief supple-
menting its brief be pursuant to R.2:12-11.

Respectfully submitted,

o 0. BRI | 2 WILLIAM F. HYLAND
: ATTORNECY GEMERAL OF NEW JERSEY - -
- : ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT

By: ("\\CC\(‘»Y\ \0)000
William Welaj

j Deputy Attorney General

g wWiep. =

/ Encls.

" Mon. Stanley C. Van Ness -
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1 " COUNTER-STATEMENT OF PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Middlesex County Grand Jury filed Indictment No. -
1436-72 charging the defendant as follows: in Count 1 with thé
murder of ﬁerner Foerster, contrary to N.J.S.A.2A:113-1 and 2;

. in Count K with the murder of James Costan, contrary to N.J.S.A.
2A:113-1 and 2; in Count I1I with atrocious assault and battery
upon James Harper, contrary to N.J.S.A.2A:90-1; in Count IV
with assault and battery upon a law enforcement offic}a} (James

10 Harper),. contrary to N.U.S.A.2A:90-4; in Count V with assault
with an offensive weapon (upon James Harpcr).';ontrary to
N.J.S.A.2A:90-3; in Count VI with assault with intent to kill
(James Harper), contrary to N.J.S.A.2A:90-2; in Count VIT with
possession of a gun without a permit, contrary to N.J.S.A.2A: ‘\
151-4(a); and in Count VIII with armed robbery, contrary to
N.J.S.A.2A:141-1 and g;i;§;é.2h:151—5. (Da-1-to Da=5). 1In a
separate }ndictment, co-defendant, Joann Chesimard was charged

_with the same offenses. On November 1, 1973, the Honorable Leon

Gerofsky, A.J.S.C. granted defendant's motion for the impaneling

20

of a foreign jury. (Da-6 to Da-7). During the jury voir dire,

co-defendant Chesimard became pregnant and was severed from the lj

trial. . :
Trial was held before the Honorable John E. Bachman,

J.C.C., and a jury from January 2, ,1974 te March 11, 1974.

After the trial court dismissed Count II of the indictment, the

defendant was found guilty of all remaining counts. (Da-8 to
Da=-9). On March 15, 1974, Judge Bachman sentenced the defendant

to life imprisonment on Count I (murder), and to consecutive
*




1 terms of 10. to 12 yeara. on Count VI (assault with intent to
kill), two to three years on Count VII (possession of a gun with-
out a permit),and 12' to 15 ;ears on Count VIII (armed robbery).
Counts III, IV and V were found t:.o merge with Coun£ VI. (Da-=9).

On June 18, '1974, Judge Bachman denied defendant's
motion for a new trial. (Da-10). A Notice of .Appeal was filed

B on March 25, 1974, (Da-11 to Da-14), followed by a cross-appeal

by the State. (Da-15 to Da-16). The defendant's unopposed
motion to dismiss the cross-appeal was granted by the Appellate

10 Division on May 7, 1974. (Da-17).

- »

20




kill), two to three y

out a permit) ,and 12

Counts II1I, IV ang v ,

for defendant Chesimard

> courtroom.
’ simard would \~/)

\nd then when Che
| be required to do that, too?

Prior to
On June 18,

due to the physical

made a motion for a ;
motion for a new trial

hat's right. fThat's right.

state of his client. (14’1--:-34 to 5-12). The prosecutor opposed S
on March 25, 1974, (Da

3 Your Honor, =-

al as to defendant Chesimard

the motion by requesting a m
x 2 by the state. (Da~15 ¢

ou're still on the ase, yes.

and a severance as to defendant Squire. (14T6-6 to 9-25). The 7 :
motion to dismigs the |

:  Your Honor; it seems to me

licit in your Honor's statement
L1ity here of -- of conflict

trial court, after E;wn'n:vv; oral argument on the issue, granted

10 Division on May 7, 197

the prosecution's motion of an indefinite continuance as to defen-

wn has sponsored the admission B : . s
o E 2 10 dant Chesimard and ¢ ) f lndictments which had pre~
; viously beenh cons ldated for trial. 14T50-24 to 55-18). During
== I won't even listen to Y ol . rial. (14 4 horel ) J
oral argumen , de el for defendant ¢ hesimard argued .

even listen to that.

f you ever have to file an 3 .
= T . - @ severance would > pr udicia to -defendant Squ 2, Slnce
t that in the briefs, in the that a severar woul be pre ial 1¢ 1dar quire, since

Judge Gerofs

Y.

J as a team in relation
f f This will
no longer be true there would
be a severance. It certainly at this point
work to his disadvantage and at the same
time places upon him an extreme burden of,
at this point, having to again go through
a variety of defense postures, aliases,
\;!mrncterlzutiuz’m, other kinds of necessary
defense activities by himself on his own,
when they have been done "in conference and
jointly,

of the case is that Mr. Brown
both of you., I don't want to
about it. I'didn't set it up.

- to hear a single, solitary

Well, may I --

the conflict of interest

COURT: No, that -- that -- that doesn't

THE
disturb me at all. 1 still have -

Your Honor, may I just say

r Honor at least consider,

a decision on the Prosecutor's
both --

it disturbs defen-

MRS. WILLIA

dant Squire.

THE COURT: Mr. Mck
Brown -- Mr. Broy
attorney responsible a
McKinney here, we would
and/or one of his assc

if -~ let ne say this: if
3s1bility of conflict of
Lt's almost incumbent upon
Prosecutor *s motion.

€ over. You just said there's
conflict of interest. If
have no choice but to grant

MR. BROWN: You mean Mr. would be

required to be a pParticipant?

T COURT: Mr. Brown w
the motion is g

Your Honor, it is my very
ion that Mr. McKinney, Mr.
ion hefore the Courts of

4~



s based on the sponsor-

3rown, who is retained by
. Chesimard to represent

* has it been my understand-
11so represented defendant

simard would
do - that, too?

Prior to tri
made a motion for a on

state of his client. (

THE

COURT : You're s 1 on the case i
) You're still on the case - the motion by requesti

lell, --
it :
and a severance asg to

Ljvl LLIAMS: Your Honor, it s to me
Just implicit in your Honor atement
1s the possibility here f -~ of conflict

O 1nterest. )

: Except in that role.
trial court, aft-uz- hea)

e'll let you read Judge =--

t of Judge Gerofsky's ruling.
J % J the prosecution's moti

: I have it.
10 dant Chesimard and seve

Viously been consolidat

HE COURT: _d*f -- I won't even listen to
I

11 right. He's re sponsible,
hat. ZL.Won't even liste n to that,

Jersey attorney responsible
ou and, as such, mu have a
t8rney in the courtroom at-all
N a separate processing, and
uestion about that." (14T18-

oral argument, def en

1f you ever have to

put that in the by

an
the

that a severance would

Judge Gerofs

We have be
O the defe;
no longer b
be sever
WOrks to k
time places
at this poir
a4 variety of
characteriza
defense ac
when they h
jointly.

£ 4 >as that Mr. Brown
both of you. I don't want to
about it. 1’didn't set it up.

nirg stateménts, Raymond Brown, Esqg.,

it since he had originally been retained

I don't want to hear a single, solitary
word about it, --

on behalf of defendant Chesimard, he

WILLIAMS: Well, may I --

of interest as a result of the sever-

THE COURT: =-- the conflict of interest

permission to withdraw from the present
problem

20

f interest situation; in addition, he

MRS. WILLIAMS = Your Honor, may I jus say
this: would your Honor at least consider,
Prior to making a decision on the Prosecutor's
motion, having both --

/» Esq., was an extremely able and

3 to 3-7). The court denied the motion,

dant Squire,

And if -- let me say this: if
be any sibility of conflict of

t, then it's almost incumbent upon
me to grant the Pros cutor s motion.

THE COURT:

Brown -- Mr.
attorney resg
McKinney here
one of

his permission to practice
n this State granted by

+ who set up the original
etween counsel and the admis-

e and Mrs. Williams, certainly
hat there be a New Jersey
think Judge Gerofsky's mind
Jersey lawyer, present in

at all times.

that one over. vYou just saig there's
2L conflict of interest. If
I have no choice but to grant

C

this motion.

MRS. WII
distinct

. Your Honor »
Sion that Mr. Mck

ion beéefore

the motion is

rstanding that the confli
tuation was aired fully be

G



s o i S S Tl S Viga i : o= SAAY Vi

¢

< New Jersey was based on the sponsor-
ship of Mr. Brown, who is retained by
the family of Chesimard to represent
her.

R "At no time has it been my understand-
1 ing that he also represented defendant
: Squire.

. THE COURT: Well, --
MRS. WILLIAMS: Except %n that role.

THE COURT: We'll let you read Judge ~-
the transcript of Judge Gerofsky's ruling.

MRS. WILLIAMS: I have it.

10 THE COURT: * All right. He's responsible, 5
he's the New Jersey attorney re sible
for both of you and, as such,sflust have a
New Jersey attorney in the courtroom at-all
times, even on a separate processing, and
there is no question about that." (14T18-
, 17 to 21 -12).

Prior to the openirg stateménts, Raymond Brown, Esq.,
indicated to the court that since he had originally been retained
by Evelyn Williams, Esq. on behalf of defendant Chesimard, he

felt there was-a conflict of interest as a result of the sever- o
“/‘ance. Thus, he requested permission to withdraw from the present ‘
case to avoid a conflict of interest.situation; in addition, he
20 noted that Charles McKinney, Esq.; was an extremely able and :
>

competent attorney. (19T2-3 to 3-7). The court denied the motion,

. stating, in part: bl

"Now, however, his permission toa practice e
‘Pro hac vice in this State granted by

Judge Gerofsky, who set up the original
*arrangements between counsel and the admis-
tion of both he and Mrs. Williams, certainly
contemplated that there be a New Jersey
lawyer, and I think Judge Gerofsky's mind

a specific New Jersey lawyer, present in

the courtroom at all times.

It's my understanding that the conflict el
of ‘interest situation was aired fully before




10

20

Judge Gerofsky, and ‘at which time it was
represented to him that there would be no .
conflict of interest and, therefore, he
allowed you to sponsor both of these .
lawyers in this State. I have varied
Judge Gerofsky's ruling somewhat in that
last week.I told you I did not think it
<) - was necessary for Ray Brown personally to
f . sit in with Mr. McKinney; that you could
« send someone else from your office. I
still so rule. I think I have varied
Judge Gerofsky's directions to that degree,
but I do not want to vary what he originally
contemplated that much by excusing the 5
obligation to have a New Jersey lawyer /:]
present during the course bf this trial."
(19T73-25 to 4-22). .

The prosecutor then made an offer foof, stating

that he intended to present testimony concerning the defendant's

arrest in New York City under the name of Archie Gibson on May 1, -

1973, and that he was bcokeé, fingerprinted and then released.
The defendant displayed the same‘iicense (Archie\Gibson) to
Trooper Harper the following day. The proseéutor indicated his
intent to demonstrate that the defendant and Archie Gibson,weré
the same individual by comparing fingérpxints, stating tiat.such
evideéce was admissible under Evidence Rule 55 to establish
identity. (19735-15 to 38-9). The trial court denied defendapt's
objection to the pfesentation of thié evidence. (19T39-13 to
40-8) .

The first witness for the State was New York City

Transit Policeman Michael Sullivan. (19T15-19). On May 1, 1973,
he arrested an individual who identified himself as Arthe Gibson
and showed the.ofi@ce: a New York driver's license. (19T41-5 to
12; 19T42-6 to 19). The witness, who was ?n the individual's-

presence for three hours, identified the defendant as tﬁa "Archie’

Gibson" he arrested. (19T44-10 to 17; 19T47-7 to 22). He then




1 ddentified the license shown him by the defendant. (19T48-9 to

49-1) fﬁ\ ;

»
Charles Christiano of the Identification Section of the
s = i .

New York City Police Department feviewed the section's files

with respect to the arrest of Archie Gibson. '(19754-6 to 55-24).
* He foLnd a card in the file corresponaing'to the person and date

arrested. (P-2). (19T755-25 to 56-11).

‘““\\v,,_~a
Ronald Manaker of Bronx Central Booking (19T57£5//)N

23) acknowledged his signature on P-2, xndlcatxng that he had

10 taken the fingerprints on the card. The i:gpature of the indivi~

dual fingerprinted was the only other writing on the card. (19758-
‘10 to 59-10).

B Détectiye Casmir sﬁereéki of the Middlesex County

Prosecutor's Office was qualified as an expert in criminal identi-

f;cgtion, particularly with regard-to fingerprinting. (19T59-19

to 61-2). When P-2 was offered into evidence, defense counsel

objected because (1) it was not an officia{ record and (2) it con-

tained inadmissible information on it. (19T61-22 to 63-19).

Officer Manaker was then Feca;led and, on cross-examination,

20 jindicated that he was nog the official keeper of P-2 and other
similar documents, that he did not £ill out the entire card, and
that when he handled the card it had ﬂot been completely filled
in. (19T66-23 to 67-10). Defense counsel's quecﬁion to the
admission of P-2 was overruled; the Court indicated that the ‘top
and back of the card would be sealed, so' that only the finger-

prints and the officer's signature were visible. (19T67-13 to 21).

In so ruling, the Court noted that Officer Manaker had testified. |
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1 that he took the fingerprints, and that the record keeper, Officer
Christiano, had indicated that they came from the dentification
bureau ‘hNe\v York City. Consequently, the court was satisfied
as to their authenticity. (19T67-25 to 68-7).

Detectivé Smerecki then testified that he compared P-2
with tpe defendant's fingerprint ;ard (P-3) from the Middlésex
County Sheriff's Office. (19T70-9 to 73-7). Defense counsel again
obzéctéd to thé admission of the fingerprint evidence, arguing
that it violated the provisions of Rule 55 since (1) the evidence

10 1qv61ved an arrest of the defendant not resulting in a convic-
tion and (2) it implied that the defendant had been found guilty
of a crime in another state. (19T74-12 to 86-2). The court again
gvergulgd the objection, noting that since the arres£ testimony
could infer to the jury that the defendant committed a crime,
and since it was nevertheless probative of identity, its intro-
duétion"into evidence was proper-under Rule 55. (19787-19 to 89~
5).

i :

Lawrence Golec of the Identification section of the

* Middlesex Cqunty‘sheriff's Department then identified P-3 as the

20 éard upon which he took the defendant's fingerprints. (19T89-

15 to 90-14), P-3 was then admitted into evidence with certain
extraneous material deleted from view. (19T791-3 to 94-8).
b!tice: Smerecki, who compared the fingerprints found on P-2 and

" P~3 on Jan;.lary 18, 1974, then testified that the fingerprints’

v were of the same individual. (19T96-3 to 97-10).

Trooper James Harper testified that on May 1 and 2,.1973,

he was assigned to patrol the Woodbridge Township to the Carteret

Borough ar®a of the New Jersey Turnpike in an unmarked car. <




1 His shift ran from 10:00 P.M. to 6:00 A.M. (19T97-17 to 99-24).
At approximately 12:45 A.M., he noticed'a 1965 Pontiac heading
‘south at Mile Post 85; the right taillight was out while the

zedulens covering the left taillight was broken. (19T;01-2 to

103-1). 1In passing the car, he notited that it was a shade of
white, Laving Vermont license plates and Eontaining three indivi-
duals. (19T103-2 to 24). He then allowed the car to pass him
on the left before maintaining an even speed with it. Shortly
thereafter, the trooper pulled alongside and to the left of the
10 Pontiac, and motioned it to pull over; the driver of}phﬁ“éar
acknowledged the signal and pulled to the side of ;he road by
Mile Post 83. (19T103-25 to 106-1). Qoth vehicles came to a halt
200 yards south of fhe Turnpike Administration Building. (19T106-
1 to 3). The driver of th; Pontiac then exited and.approached
the trooper's vehicle; the trooper noticed that he was a black
male wearing a Pafati jacket, a flop hat, and dark pants, and
having a_.goatee with blemish marks-on his eye and cheekbone.

(197106-6 to 107-4; 19T133-7 to 14). In addition to the artifi-

cial lighting in the area, the officer had put on his high
20 beams, which focused on the Pontiac. (19T131-22 to 132-6).

Trooper Harper, who had exited his car, met the driver

(subsequently identified as the defendant), midway between the

two cars. (19T134-7 to 18). After informin§ the defendant that

7 his taillights were not functioning prope;ly, the officgz asked

io see his registratioﬁ Qnd driver's license:. He produced a j

New York license and a Vermont reqistfation bearing a female's o
name. (197155-3 to 136-4). In response to questioning, the :}.

. . -
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1 defendant indicated that he had borrowed the car from a girl in
hew York City and was headi;g to Philadelphia. (19T136-20 to
137-5). The trooper told the defendant to remain there while he
.checked the registration with the car's serial qumSer. He theg
opened the driver's door of the Pontiac and shined his flashlight
off the inside panel to obtain the serial number. (19T137-6 to 19).
“As he did so, he noticed a black male seated in the rear of the

car and a black female in the.right front passenger seat. (197

138-8 to 139-24).

10 ] After verxfylng that the serial numﬁ—;pCSFresponded
with the registration, Trooper Harper asked the two occupants
who owned the car; the male replied that he had borrowed it from
someone in New York City, while the female added that thgy were
headed to Washington, D.C. At this point, the officer asked %

both occﬁpahts for some form of identification. (19T140-2 to 16) .

The female movéed her right hand d;wn along her leg and began ;

moving it around; the officer assumed she was looking in hg: B
G\k ‘pocketbook for some identification. (20T558-16 to 559-16). As ‘ ‘:
: - the male gave him a‘plastic hospital card, the officer heard :

20 someone call his name; turning toward the rear of the Pontiac,

he saw Trooper Werner Foerster standing by the defendant
to the right ‘front of Car 886. (19T140-17 to 141-17). Foerster ®
said, "Jim, look what I found," and held up a clip for an auto- “
matic weapon. (19T141-18. to 142-22). ‘The witness immediately

focused his attention back to the two passengers, ordering them

! to put both of their hands on their laps. While the male co@-

plied, the female did not., Rather, she remained in the same

) position, sitting at an angle facing the officer with her right

-10~-
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~14; 19T150-12 to 151-24). As Harﬂér oBserved this, he heard

hand out of sight on the side of her leg. (19T142-23 to 143-25).
! As the officer repeated his earlier command, the female
made a "gritting face" and a loud sound and began moving her right
hand’. (19T144-4 to 345-3; 20T560-8 to 25). The trooper Raitaa
out of the car and beq;n to run to the rear of the cér; as he
turned he heard a shot being fired and felt pain and a burning
sensation in his shoulder. (19T145-4 to 15). The witness con-

tinued to run to the rear of his patrol car and crouched behind

it. As he did so, he heard several shots being fired. (19T146-

37 %0 23). Reéching for his revolver, he looisﬁvifaund the corner
of the car and saw the female exiting the Poﬁtiac on the driver's
side. she had a pistol in her {ight hand which she was firing

at Harper as she exited the car. (197146-24 to 147-15).

The officer returned the fire; after his third shot he
heard the female scream and faIl_to the ground, the gun still in
her h%nﬁ. She continued to fire at the officer, who again moved
behind the bumper of his car. (19M.47-18 to 148-3). When the
shooting stopped, the trodper stood up to see where Foerster
was; he‘saw the defendant engaged in a struggle with him. The
defendan@ was above Foerster during the struggle, the latter

apbarently being in a slightly crouched position. (19T14§f5-go 4 -

more shots being fired although he did not know_By whom. Moving
to the left of his car, he saw the male passenger kneeling

beside the female on the ground. The male began tiging at the
officer, causing him to duck behind ﬂ;s car. (19T152-2 to .153-1).
The officer heard two-shots being fired as he did so; thg f;rng

shot was a loud popping soundibut the second, which.followed

-11~-
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o On ézoil-qxanination. Trooper Harper indicated that
after he had signaled to the driver of the Pontiac ;d/ggli to
the side of the road, he radioed the police barracks to advise

them of hihocation, that he was stopping a car, and the

description of the car and its occupants. (20T417-21 to 419-14;
20T422-19 to 423-3). Front’ the time he initially met the defen-
dant between the two cars to his leaving the scene to run to
the police barracks, the officer did not ﬁeat any conversation
betwee{ the defendant and the occupants of the car. (207536-14
to 537-14). After being ﬁit in the shoulder and running to the
rear o_t the car for protection, he heard several shots being X /
fired; these shots came from the area of the Pontiac he had just
left. (20T541-15 to 543-4). On redirect, the officer indicated
thaq‘he saw the defendant and Foerster struggling near the right
front fender of his car. (20T561-24 to 562-5).

: Robert Silverman testified that on the night in ques-

tion he was‘travelling south on the Turnpike at approximately

1:00 A.M. when he saw the E;pshing light.of a State Police car.
(20T7568~-12 to 569-7). He;saw a policeman engaged in a fight with
another individual, as well as two other ca}s alongside the road.
(20T569-10 to 570~2). The two were struggling near the passenger

side of the middle car. (20T570-3 to 12). The policeman's back .

was to the witness but it appeared that the second participant,

who was wearing a white shirt, was tackling the officer while -

the latter attempted to push him away. (20T570-13 to 571-23).

The.man did not see anyone else in the vicinity. (20T572-12 to

14).

Sergeant Chester Baginski, in charge of the evening
4 v
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1 shift at the New Brunswick Station, arrived at work at 10:30
P.u..on the night in question. (21T2-7 to 3-14). “Shortly after
11:00 P.M., he sén(ﬁ;;¥ope: Foerster out on patrol in, Car 820.
(21T3-22 to 5-25). Shortly before midnight, he heard ﬁy radio
transmission that Trooper Harper was making a vehicle stop and
requestéd backup assistance. Soon thereafter, he heard Car
- 817 (manged by Trooper Palantchar) as well as Car 820 indicate
that they were responding as backup vehicles. (21T35-21 to 36-
% ; 12; 21T10-13 to 12-12). At 12:55 A.M., the sergeant observed
10 Trco;er Harper enter the station looking pale. (21T13-6 to 18).
He indicated that he had been. in a gunwinht and was wounded. As
quinskl examined the shoulder wound, Harpet described the
Poqfxac and its occupants. He added that during the gunfire,
two of the individuals might have been wounded, and that in the
gun battle he had lost sight of Foerster who. had been at the scene.
(21T14-1 to 15-19). The witness then issued a general alarm
advising all patrol cars and Turnpike stations of the incident.
| (21T15-20 to 22). ' 2
Trooper Robert Palentchar testified that he was on
20 patrol o% the Turnpike in Car 817 at approximately 12:30 A.M.
when he overheard a radio transmission from Trooper Harper dioien N
indicating to headquarters that he was stopping a white Pontiac.
. (21T45-7 to 46-14; 21T47-3 to 21). At the time Palentchar was
travelling south at Mile Post 73, ten miles south of Harpér.
(21T21 to 24). The witnéss then heard Trooper Foerster radio to
headquarters thaé he was aé‘ﬁlé Post 84, one mile north of Harper
and was heading tojthe area as a backup: (21T47-23 to 49-6).

When Palentchar was'advised to proceed to the same area, he made

i
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1 @ U-turn and proceeded north ;t milepost 72. After not hearing
any radio tranqm%;;iqrs for a while,.the trooper became concerned
and accelerated his vehicle. He reached Mile Post 78 when he
received a radio transmission from héadquarters; as a result of
the call, he pulled into the U-turn road, stopped, and waited
for the white Pontiac. (21T49-7 to 51-4).

After waitinq about a minute without seeing the car,

Palentchar proceeded north for approximately one-half mile at ™

* which point he observed a white éontiac to hig left on the shoulder

10 of the southbound road without lights. (21751-5 to 25). The

officer radioed this infBrmation ;p‘ﬁggdéuarters and made a U-
turn at Mile Post 79. (21752-1 té 16) . As he slowly approached
the Pontiac, he’ saw,a black male with a white jacket emerge from
the woods proceeding toward the car. When the man stopped,
'Palentcharrhit his brakes, turned on his red light, jumped out
of the car and yelled, "Halt." (21T52-19 to 54-7) . When the man

s turned and ran, Palentchar fired four shots at him from 50 yards

away. The officer did not think he hit the man, who disappeared
into the woods. (21754-7 to 55-11). :

20 The trooper immediately ran behind the driver's door
of his car while he reloaded his revolver. (21T58-17 to 59-22{.
After several minutes had passed, he saw movement in the woods ﬂf

to his right and south, about 25 yards south of the point where

the man had entered the'woods. He observed a red sweater move 3
in the grass area and yelled to the individual to put his hands
up. (21759-23 to 60-12; 21T61-11 to 20). Repeating his threat
tha; he would shoot- if the person did hot cbne up to the Pontiac,

the officer saw a black female appéoach the c;r. (21761-21 to ,;

~15~
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1 62-14). After she placed her hands on top of the car, the female,

10

20

who was apparently wounded, opened the door/zf“ﬁhe Pontiac and
RNat down. (21T62-15 to 63-22). -

After radioing headquarters, several troopers froﬁi
Moorestown and Newark arrived. (21T63-23 to 64-11). ‘The officers
then went up to.the Pontia¢ but found only the female, who was
then brought to the area between the cars and laid on the ground.
(21T65-4 to 14) . Several . more troopers who had arrived at the
scene went into the woods after the male while Palentchaf called
for an ambulance. Five minutes later, he went into the wooded
area where the female had emerged from. (21T70-9 to 72~20),1Jﬁ$;;
entering the area he saw a black male who appeared to be dead.
(21T72-23 to 73-3). ‘He also found a revolver ‘between the legs
of the deceased and red scarf to his side. 1In a depression in
tHe.grass nearby was a belt and an automatic pistol. (21T84-2
to 18).

Troopei Frank Dreyer was at Princeton Headquarters on
the night in qﬁgggion when he received a call at about 1:00 A.M.
indicating that u.trooper had been shot on the Turnpike. (2IT96-9 .to 97-13)
As 'he and Trooper Byrne proceeded to the area (Mile Post 83),
they saw a marked State Police wvehicle parked on the shoul@er of

the road behind an unmarked police car; both cars were still

_running and had their lights on. (21T98-5 to 99-9; 21T104-1 to

‘4) . Trooper Dreyer, in searching the area, found a trooper's

- ‘hat and flashlight between the two cars. (21T105-2 to 6). As

he walked up a dirt enbankment in front of the unmarked car,:he
found a New York driver's license (P-1) about 15 iﬁrdl away .

(2lT107-22 to 109-8). Continuing to 100k around the area, the
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1 officer found the body of Trooper Foerséer on the embankment &
lying ilonglide the/‘{?Rt rear door and wheel of the
unmarked car. (217112-2 to 113-6). The fallen
trooper was obviéusly wounded and appeared to be dead. (21T113-7
to 15). The>witness noticed that Foerster's revolver was gone,
but that there were sevgral automatic pistols in the immediate
area. (21T116-2 to 13).
Henry Comeau, a communications shift supervisor for the

'Turnpiké Authority Administration Building in New Brunswick (21T

10 235-1 to 236-1), was responsible for ope{ating‘a tape device
which ran continuously ané recordedw‘f{>incoming and. outgoing-
radio transmissions from State Police cars, as well as the time
at which each communiéation was made. (21T236-9 to 238-5). He
identified a reel of tape (P-39) as being the one which recorded
all such communication between midnight aﬁd 4:00 A.M. on the night
in question. (21T239-7 to 242-10). . Cornelius Sheridan (21T245-
1 to 246-8) and Sergeant Richard Kelly (21T248-1 to 25i-16) then
testified as to the chain of evidence of the tape, after which
it was offered into evidence. After argument was heard concern-

20 }nq its admissibility, during which time the tape was played in
an in camera hearing (21T252-15 to 299-3), the trial court ruled
that the radio transmissions of Troopers Foerster, Harper and
Palengchnz were part of the res gestae and thus admissible.
With respeqs to the transmissions of dispatcher Foster, the court °
held them to constitute an exception to the hearsay rule_undet

Rule 63(4), since they were excited utterances made while he was

in a stress situation. Subject to the preparation of a more

nd P




1 accurate transcript, the court ruled the tape admissibie. (21T
299-4 to 301-23). Both defense counsel and the prosec::lr agreed
upon a specific excerpt from the tape (Da-30 to Da-33), which was
admitted again over defense's objection. (21T312-7 to 315-12).
Pursuant to defense counsel's request, the trial court indicated
that it would charge the jury that the information o; the tape
Qas admissible only to show the actions of the troopers involved
and not to prové the truth of the statements contained therein.
(21T315-3 to 320-20; 21T329-2 to 7). :
10 Detective James Challender of the New Jersey State

Polzce, who was familiar with the voices of the idhr 1ndxv1duals

on the tape (P-39), explained how the tape recorder operated.

(21T341-1 to 343-17). Prior to playing the tape, the court

instructed the jury that the tape was being admitted into evidence
@ 4

for proof of only two things{ the time sequence of the events and

the actions of the troopers during the time period. (21T7343-22 [t

to 344-17). During the playing of the actual tape, of which the

jury had a written transcript,. the witness identified the voices
heard. (21T345-10 to 356-10). (Da-30 to Da-33).

20 Detective Carl Carabelli of Epe State Police arrived
at Mile Post 78 at 1:35 A.M. on the night in question and parked
behind a white Pontiac. (21T364-1 to 365-24). After conversing .
with Trooper Palentchar, he went into the grass area where the

'Qgéy'of the deceased black male lyxng on his back was located.

(21T366-13 to 22; 21T368-22 to 369-19). Under the right knee

: ‘-6f ﬁhé deceased was a..38 caliber‘Smith and Wesson revolver.

(P=52) . (21T379-4 to 5). About six inches_from his waist was

. ; a red scarf and eight feet sway was a three eighty caliber
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Browning automatic weapon (P-53) along with a black belt. A
brown button was also located a few feet away, while in the left
pdcket of the deceased was a clip containing 13 roundg of ammuni-
tion for an automatic weapon. (P-51). (21T379-6 to 17) .- When the
body was turned over, the officer observed a belt with a black
holstér strapped to the back. (21T383-24 to 384-24).

Trooper Charles Thom testified that upon arriving at
the scene, he was ordered to remain with the Pontiac having

Vermont license plates. (21T465-7 to 466-16). No one touched.the

vehicle while he was there; later that evening the car was towed
-

-

away. (21T468-7 to 469-14). -

Detective Chsllender was recalled, testifying that he
ar;ivéd at the scene (Mile Post 78) at approximately 1:38 A.M
(21T7509-6 to 510-8). After conversing with Detective Carabelli,
the two proceeded to the grass area off the road where thé>witne$s
was shown the body of the dead black male lying face up. Nearby
was a red scarf and the two weapons previously described. (21T
510-20 to 511-13). - Challender then went up to an ambulance parked
nearby, where he saw tﬁe wounded black female lying on a stretcher.
(21T7512-18 to 513-8). Shortly thereafter, he proceeded to Middle-
sex General Hospital where he saw Trooper Harper lying on a
stretcher as well as the black female, who was receiving medical
aftention. (21T514-4 to 515-5).. The witness talked with Harper

for 30 to 45 minutes to ascertain what had happened; durihg

~that time ho.lgarned of Trooper Foerster's death. (21T515-6 to

19). He then-telephoned the description of the driver of the .
Pontiac to police headquarters. (21T515-20"to 24).

After obéaining the clothes of the injured_bléck female

=10~




1 and securing them in his trunk (21T515-25-25 to 518-2), Challender

observed the body of Trooper Foerster. (21T518-6 to 19). His

\.ﬂace and hands wgre covered with dried blood, and there was a

10

20

great dedl of blood in the area of the right arm. There was a
hole in the back of the neck, a protrusion on the rear area of
the head, and @ lot of blood matted in the hair as well as
splatfered over the front of his uniform. Blood was on the
lower calf of his left leg, a long laceration existed in the
left throat area, and the knee part of his trousers were dirt.
Challender aléo noticed that his revolver was missing. (21T519-12
521-4). The witness then removed and secured the equipmenf’
and clothes from the body. (21T522-4 to 523-19).
Detective Louis Parisi of the State Police went to the
garage of the Administration Building on May 2nd and assisted
in processing the white'Pontiac. (21T645-21 to 646-10), along
with Detectives wilke and Demeter. When he opened the attache
case in the trunk of the car, he found various materials
Jéarinq the name "Archie Gibson" (21T647-4 to 650-19). In-
cluded were a torn telephone page with‘phe above name underlined,
a birth certificate for Archie Gibson, a—hospitaiization card and
and a Selective Service card, both for the same name, (21T653-2
to 11). : »
Detective Robert Conrad of the New Jersey State Police
arrived at the mile post 83 scene-at éilo‘A.H. and conferred with
Troopers Byrne and Dreyer. (21T775-8 to 778-15). He observed the

body of Trooper Foerster lying near the right side of car 886.

a
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(21T780-12 to 17). He waé given a New York driver's license
(P-1) by the two troopers with the name "Archie Gibson™ on it.
(21T789-18 to 781-20). Along the shoulder of the road hev
found a Social Security card (P-67) bearinq‘the same name. -
(21T7891?0 to 790-13). Between Cars 886 and 820 Detective
Conrad found a flashlight (P-69) and Trooper Harper's hat (P-10).
(21T792-2 to 793-5). by

Upon examining Foerster's body at the scene, the
detective saw an automatic pistol (P-71) with a ;helI stuck
in the bteAch lying between Foerster's rigps’ﬁ;hé and hip.
A clip (P-70) smaller than one which would be used in the above~
mentioned gun was lying by his right side. A green hat (P-26)
was found between his feet and a spent shell (P-130) was lying
by his right foot. (21T860-3 to 807-16). In addition, the
detective saw another automatic weapon (P-76) just south of
Foaréter's feet lying on the shoulder of the road. A shell
was also jammed in the breech of the gqun. (21T828-13 to
829-14). Between cars 886 and 820 the witness-found a spent
9mm shell (22 feet from Car 886), two similar shells 30 feet
and 12 feet from the car, and a 38 caliber .automatic shell
casing -along the right door of Car 886. (21T834-5 to 835-5).
In front of the car he found two black marks on the shoulder
of the road indicating that a car‘had "spun out" in leaving the
scene. (21T836-14 to 837-9). *

Sergeant Norman Demeter of the State Police,after being

qualified as an expert witness in the area of fingerprinting,

-




1 testified that he was directed to go to the Middlesex General
\ Hospital at 4 a.m. on the night in question. (22T17 to 4-6;°
22T727-22 to 8-8). .While there, he fingerprinted the injured
black. female and performed a neutron activation test on -Trooper
Foerster's hand. (2278-17 to 9-8; 22T13-1 to 16). He also
saw the same test performed on the female's hand. (22T9-19 to
25).
After Demeter was excused as a result of illness,
Trooper George Seitz testified that he arrived at milepost
10 83 at approximately 6:00 a.m. following the shootings .« i
(22717-18 to 18-18). Both the marked police car (Car 820)

and the unmarked unit (Car 886) were still there. (22T18~23

4 to 24). As he was talking ﬁo another trooper, he noticed five
spent casings about one foot to the right rear of Car 820.
He picked up the casings (P-84), which were eventually turned s
over to Detective.wilke. (22%19-8 to 21-22).
_~Sergeant Herbért Ulbrich of the State Police arrived
j at milepost 83 between 6:00 and 7:00 a.m., and was instructed
i to look for evidential items along with George Hickman.
20 (22732-5 to 33-11). Both police units (Cars 820 and 886)
had been removed by that time. (22T33-12 to 19). Ulbrich noticed
a large pool of blood on the shoulder of the highway (22T33-20
to 25), and an expended bullet (P-88) 50 feet north of the
puddle, lying tkhree feet into-the right lane of the turnpike.
(22735-16 to 36-24).

A Miranda hearing was then held outside of the jury's

¥




~-1 Ppresence to determine the admissibility of a statement obtained
« from the defendant. After hearing testimony (22T45-24 to 103-
25), and oral argument on the issue (227104-18 to 128-3), the
trial court ruled that the statement was inadmissible. (22T128-10

, to 131-20).
In the jury's presence Officer Frank Zygmund of the
East Brunswicﬁ Township Police Department testified that at
. 2:00 p.m._on May.3, 1973, he-took-part-in-a search in a heavily
wooded area off milepost 78 in an attempt to :gprehend the defen~-
10 dant. (22T133-12 to 135-1). He, along wifﬁrhumerous other
officers, forped a skirmish line and proceeded across the area.

During the Aearch, he observed a body lying face down covered

with leaveAd and mud. (22T135-2 to 136-2). The officer placed
his shotgun against the individual's back, while other nearby
officers were.summoned to assist in apﬁkéhending the sﬁspect,
who was identified in court as the defendant. (22T136-3 to 22).
~The defendant had been lying on top of a white jacket which he
had wrapped around his left arm. (22T137-2 to 8). The witness,
along with a Trooper Osborne and two other troopers, transported
2Q the defendant back to headquarters. A search revealed no weapons,
only a roll of money. (22T137-9 to 139-7). ‘ e :
< o Officer Randall Kluj (22T142-9 to 149-16) and Trooper |
Douglas Osborne (22T149-23 to 162-7) corroborated the testimony
of Zygmund. Osborne added that when he saw the'defendane in
the woods after his arrest, he observed a cut on. the web of\hi;4

right hand between his thumb and first finger. (22T152-24 to

153%3)4;
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Detective Norman Demeter was recalled and during
his tgstimonyvit was stipulated that the injured black female
was Joann Chesimard and the deceased black male was James
Costan. (22T165-3 to 13). Aafter leaving the hospital on the
night in question, the witnes; went to the administration
buildi;g where he dusted three automatic weapons and one .38
police weapon for fingerprints in the presence of several
officers. (22T165-17 to 166-9). Although there were ffaqmentgty
prints and smudges on the weapons, none were identif@abl?:: A
dusting of the three clips what were in the weapong~fesulted
in the same finding. (22T166-10 to 21). Demeter and Detective
Wilke then proceeded to the garage level in order to examine
the 1965 Eontiuc and the two patrol units. (Car 820 and Car 886).
(22T192-20 té 193-4). After dustiﬁq the outside of the Pontiac,
they were-unable to obtain any identifiable fingerprints,
(227193-13 to 194-10). On the inside of the car, the witness

found a red handbag laying in the front seat, a small pool of

blood,and a shell casing on the left front floor. In the back
was a black leather case housing a typewriter, a brown bag,
and several books, magazines and maps on the seat. (22T194-11 to

21; 22T206-20 to 207-2). The witness found three loadedwaptpf'w

~-matic clips in the handbag. (P-95, P=96, P-97). (221213-24 to

214-24). )
On one of the four maps found, the officcf was able
to obtain a partially identifiable latent print. (52T215{2

to 216-24). On. the rear seat of the car Detective Wilke found

-24= *
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an expended shell. (22T217-14 to 218-12). Inside the trunk
\re two suitcases, a br‘own attache case and a brown duffel

bag. Inside one of the suitcases was an Alabama license plate,

, as well as shotgun shells and two boxes of .38 police super

vel ammunition.” (P-104, P-105). (22T218~13 to 220-19). During
the examination of the unmarked police unit (Car 886) ,the witness
discovered a bullet head (P-107) protruding from a piece of
molding near the rear of the car, as well as a piece of lead
(P-106) from the front headlight compartment. (227221-10 to’,,f“
223-1; 22T226-8 to 227-22). 5
After completiné the examination, Demeter went éo
Perth Amboy General Hospital and,along with Détective Wilke and
Trooper St;achensky, witnessed éhe autopsies of Trooper Péerster
and James Costan. During the autopsy, he saw certain bullet heads
removed from Foerster's body by Dr. Albano. (22T7228-15 to 229-9).
The next day, hg(wen%ito the Administratioﬁ Building in New
Brunswick whet;/he saw several detectives gring in the defendant.
(227231-7 to 223-1). At that time, Officer Demeter photographed
the defendant, administered a neutron activation test to his
hands, took nail scrappings and a hair sample and watched
Detective Wilke finqerpfint him. In addition, the witness
photographed (P-92, P-109, P-110) the wound on the defendaqt's
hand.” (227233-2 to 234-23). A comparison of the aefenﬂang s
fingerprints and. that taken from the map found 1A the Pontiac
indicated that the map print was from the defendant's left

-2
middle‘f}nqer. (227235-11 to '239-11).
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1 On cross-examination, it was acknowledged that the
result of the neutron activation test was negative. .(22T288-20 v
to 289-3). " On redirect, the officer efplained that the results
of a neutron activation test would not always be positive for

.an individual who had fired a gun, since there is an 18 hour
limitation as well as numerous circumstances affecting the test.
In fact, the witness indicated that he had never received a
positive result on such a test, nor had he ever obtained ‘an

identifiable. fingerprint from a qun. (22T312;:,59 19; 22T7309-17

-

10 to 310-13).
Detective Michael Langen of the State Police testified
that on May 4, 1973, he observed a blood sample being taken
from the defendant by a Dr. Lind at the Middlesex County Jail. ~
(227315~15 to 316-10). He took the vial contqining the sample
to the State Bureau of Investigation. (22T316-11 to 21).
William Gelder,a car repairman for the New Jersey
~Turnpike Authority, worked on a gray Oldsmobile during June,
1973. (227328-3 to 20). As he was replacing the headliner in
the roof, he saw a small copper bullet. (P-142) After he

20 had removed it, he gave it to a Detective Demeter on June 21.

(22T7328-21 to 329-9; 23T73-11 to 74-1). : J
Detective Sergeant Edward Wilke of the State Police

w&l tﬁan qualified, over objectjor,.as an expert witness in

identification procedures. (22T331-14 to 341-14). He arrived

at the scene (é?iepost 83) At apéroximately 2:20 a.m. on’ the

night in question, where he met three trooperl'alrcady present
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i 1 (22T341-17 to 343-21). He took §hotographs of the scene, in-

“~ cluding Car 886, Trooper éoerstet's body, and the various
evidence found. (227345-13 to 346-18). He noticed a jammed
automatic weapon (P-71) under Foerster's right hand, ; clip
(P=70) by his knee: a spent .38 automatic shell (P-130) near
his toe, and another jammed automatic weapon (P-76) about seven
feet from the right front of Car 886. In addition, there was
a trooper hat (P-116) and a "super flight" type of hat (P-26) -
btheen Foerster's feet, another trooper hat in back ggfcar‘BBG.

10 along with a flashlight found in front of Car 886. “e-83).
(227346-23 to 347-19; 22T350-7 to 353-3). A registration cer-
tificgte (P=82) in the name of Isabellé Johnson was found under
Foerster's body when it was moved. “ (22T7353-21 to 354~20). The
trooper hat (P-116) found at Foerster's feet was then identified
as belonging to the deceased. (22T359-16 to‘361-13). The jammed
automatic weapon (P-76) was found to have one jammed bullet and
nine otﬁ;; bullets in its clip. (22T366-25 to 367-15). The clip
found by Foerster's knee (P-70) was full and had six rounds
(P-117) in it. (22T367-23 to 368-16). The officer indicated :

20 that after completing his work, he found a spent casing'(P-IZI) %
to the rear of Car 886. (24T403-10 to 24).

] Detective Wilke then proceeded to milepost 78 where

he photographed the scene. (22T371-8 to 24). While he was
photographing the body of James Costan he noticed a Elip (P=51)

in tpo pocket ntaining rounds; the butt of a gun (P-52) partially
vloaded.waa also found not far trqm the body. (22T386-9 to 387-7).
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Deteftive Wilke, subsequently witnessed the autopsies
of Trooper Foerster and James Costan. He saw Dr. Albano remove
three fragments (P-139) from Foerster's right arm and body.

(22T429-2 to 431-14). He also received two pieceé of lead

~ (P140, P-141) from Dr: Albano which he had removed from the head.

(22T431-15 to 432-6).

On May 3rd, the detective fingerprinted the defendant.
Upon comparing the prints with the latent print obtained from
the map found in the Pontiac, he concluded that the latengff,-‘
print was made by the defendant's left middle finger. 7{27438-11
to 439-9).

Detective Vincent Peterson of the State Police then
testified that he, along with a Detective O'Donohue and a
George Hickman, examined the 1965 white Pontiac on May 7, 1973
for anything of evidential value, such as bullet holes and finger=-
prints. A bullet (P-149) with a lead core (P-150) was found
in the chanm@l of the rear window. (23T126-1 to 127-25; 23T141-22
to 142-10). However, no identifiable fingerprints on the car
were found. (23T156-9 to 157-12).

Detective Ronald Horstman of the State Police testified
that he was given four keys, which had been found on the dctendaht,
to check with respect to the white Pontiac on September 19, 1973.
(23T169~1 to 17). A gold-colored ke; fit the door lock on the
passenger side, while.two silver keys fit and operated the

ignition of the vehiéle. (23T169-23 to 171-4). Hov@ver, the - |

Pontiac was never started with the two keys, since the battery

. ~28~
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was reported to be dead; the keys merely fit and turned the
ignition. (23T177-25 to 179-1).

Sergeant John Lintott of the State Police was then
quélified as an expert witness in ballistics. (23T192-4 to
197-12). He explained the differencés between a revolver and
an autamatic weapon, noting that the two utilized different
types of ammunition. (23T199-1 to 200-19). He then identified

P-8 as a revolver. (23T198-14 to 199-1). Lintott was given

four types of ammunition to examine: 9 millimeter Lugerafalib;r,
'380 auto caliber, 38 super auto and 38 special. Tha’fi;st

three types are all designed for use in an automatic pistol

while the last type is designed for a.revolver. (23T207-1 to 11).
He also tested three type; of automatic weapons: a 38 super

auté Llama automatic pistol (P-71), which utilized 38 super

auto cartridges; a 380 caliber Browning automatic pistol

(P=53), which utilized 380 auto caliber cartridges; and a 9
millimﬁ&gr Luger caliber Browning automatic pistol (P-76), which
utilized 9 millimeter Luger caliber cartridges. (23T210-1 to 19).
None of the clips utilized in the automatic weapons could be inter-
changed. (23T213-18 to 214-11).

Detective Lintott examined and tested the weapons
mentioned above together with ;he various 'type of ammunition found
at the two scenes. With respect to the 38 super auto Ll;mi :
(P-71) which had been %ound by'Trooper Foerster's body, he con-
cluded that the following shells had been discharged fzcn'ltt
P-131, found gn the front floor of the Pontiac (24T15 to 220-1);

-




1 P-132, found on the rear seat (24T220-12 to 20); P-130, found
by Foerster's foot (24T222-12 to 20); P-128, containing two
shells .found on the ground in front of Car B86 (24T223—B to 16);

. P-157, found in the front bumper of Car 886 (24T223-23 to
227-15); p-88, f?und'on the highway at milepost 83 (24T230-21
to 231-11); P-106 , which were removed from the headlight com-

partment of Car 886 (24T233-9 to 17); and P-149, which was

‘removed from the rear window of the Pontiac. (247233-25 to  « '\
234-10). The Llama, when discovered,céntqined one jegmnd
10 cartridge and two cartridges in its clip. (24T312:55 to
313-11).
With respect to the jammed 9 Millimeter Luger Browning
automatic (P-76) found seven feet from the right front of Car 886,
near Foerster's body, the detective concluded that the following
shells were discharged from the weapon: P-142, which was found
in the headliner of the roof area in Car 886 (24T242-16 to 243-10);
and P-126, P-126-A, and P-127, containing 4 discharged shells
which wg;; found in front of car 886 (24T249-21 to 252-9);
In addition, khe clip (P-51) containing 13 rounds of ammunition
20 (p-125) found in Costan's pocket, and the ten .rounds of ammu-
nition (P-118) found in the clip jammed in the Luger Browning
were dg%ermined to fit the.above-mentioned weapon. (24T238-17
tp 24;-25). g y ¢
Detective Lintott examined the holster (P-48) found on

Costan and compared ¥t with the 9 mm Luger Browning. éecause

of the wear marks and stress marks found in the holster, which

red %30




cofrllponded to the protruding parts of a 9 mm Luger Browning,

he concluded that the same type of weapon had been carried in

that holster. (24T260-24 to 262-12): However, theoretically

-another type of gun could have been carried in the holster on

the night in question without altering the stress and wear

marks.\ (24T267-25 to 270-14). 4
The witness then identified the 380 caliber Browning

10 removed from that weapon as well as fromﬂpﬂézébmm Luger, although

the serial number on the former was chemically obtained.

(24T271-6 to 273-19). The clip (P-70) containing 6 rounds (P-117)
found near Foerster's body was found to fit the Browning. In

addition, the Browning itself contained one jsmmed discharged

shell (P-122-A)and a clip containing six bullets. (P-122-B). o
(24T274-4 to 279-22).

P-8 was identified as a 38 special caliber revolver
issued to Trooper Harper. The five spent casings found to the
rear of Car 820 (p-8), as we;l as the spent casing found to
20 the rear of Car 886 (P-121), were found to have been fired
from that revolver. (24T281-16 to 283-1). The detective then
identified the 38 special caliber Smith ;nd Wesson revolyer
(P-52) found betweenvCostaﬁ's legs as belonging to Trooper
Foerster. (247290-14 to 291-2).‘ Two expended shells (P-123)
were found in the revolver; the two bullets takén from Troopgx_
Foerster's body (?-139, P-140) were determined éo have been

fired from that weapon, (24T291-12 to 294-16).

=i
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Dr. Edwin Albano, the New Jersey State Medical
Bxamig;r, conducted an autopsy on Trooper Foerster on May 2,
1973 (24T367-14 to 22), and found the following injuries: a
bullet wound produced by a large caliber distorted bullet
which entered the left side of the neck and lodged in the

skull near the scalp-powder marks surrounded the entrance of

the wound; a second bullet wound caused by a similar bullet

10

20

which entered the skull above and in back of the left ear

which lodged at the base of the brain = no pQﬁder marks were

visible; a bullet wound in the right chndff#;ithout.powder

marks, but having a grazing abrasion or broad scrape just

below the entrance wound, with the exit wound being the out-

side of the right shoulder; and bullet wound in front of the
right.atm, with the exit wound being a£ the back of the right

arm. Fragments of a lead bullet were taken from Foerster's

body with respect to the latter injury. (24T372-23 to 377-17).

In addition, there were some abrasions on the left cheek, a

laceration at the top of the forehead, a laceration on the

left side of the head, on the lower lid of the left eye, in

back of the left thumb,in the mid forehead, and on the left 2 i
index finger, as well as bruises in back of the left index i eI o
finger and on the right, and scattered abrasions on back of
the right hand. (25T577—17 to }78-13). With respect to the '
neck wound, the doctor opined that the bullet was fired from ~
a distance of six to eighteen inches. (25T384-13 to 386-14).

Death was due to bullet wounds of the head Qitp lacerations

L.
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and hemorrhaging of the brain. (25T386-22 to 25). Death
occurred within mi;utes of the wound; the deceased would
not have been capable of movement after either head wound.
(25*387-15 to 23).

With respect to the autopsy he performéd on
James Costan, Dr. Albano testified that he found a bullet
wound in the chest area which passed through the lupg and live{,
and exited throﬁgh the lower back. (257394-18 to 396-14).
The cause of death was massive hemorhaging of the right chest
cavity caused by the bullet wound. (25T396-23’€/’397 1).
Upon receiving such a wound, the doctor opined that the in-
dividual would coiiapse and fall to the ground. (25T7397-2
to 399-13). :

Deputy Chief of Police Edward Mullen of Perth Amboy
was then questioned concerning his qualitications with respect

to certain proffered expert testimony. \(25T403~9 to 16). He

.weg.qualified as a firearms training officer by the F.B.I.,

ﬂﬁd taken numerous courses in fléeatms, and has been a fire-
arms instructor for over 20 years. (25T404-12 to 405-7).
During his military and pélice experience in automatic weapons,
he had observed over a hundred injuries received from the
handling of guns, about ten to thirty of which resulted from
handling automatic pistols. (25T405-}4 to 407-3; 25T412-5

to 16). However, he could not specifically say whether he had

ever seen an injury caused by a Browning automatic (25T414~

16 to 415-11), or any of the automatics (P-53, P-71 and P-76)




lnfonnd in the present case. (25T§1§-12 to 416-1). He stated that
if three individuals had sustained injuries from éach of the above
three weapons, he could not distinguish the injuries. (25T416-8
to 14). The officer had previously testified in a trial regard-

=
.ing 1niurieﬂ received from the handling of'a pistel. (25T417-15
to 418-3). -

After oral argument and over defense counsel's objection,

'f‘ChIef Mullen was permitted to testify concerning the cause of the
injury to the defendant's hand. (25T418-9 to 427-14). In so

10 ruling, the court noted that the witness was not testifying in a
medical capacity, but was,

"an expert on the handling of weapons -and
their potentiality for causing injury and
the fact that they do cause injury.... As
far as I'm concerned, the man who's been a
police officer for years is more X

4 qualified 'to testify as to the way a weapon
might injure you than any doctor in the
world, unless that doctor has been handling
weapons for 27 years." (25T427-6.to 14).

Chief Mullen then testified that the most common type
of }ndury from an ‘automatic weapon resulted from an improper grip,
where the hand .is held too high, thus engaging the webbing be=-

20 tween. the thumb and index finger in the operation of the slide
portion of the gun on recoil. (25T428-11 to 25). As a result,
the weapon can become jammed. (25T429-1 to 4). When shown photo-
graphs of the defendant's hand injury (P-109, P-110), the witness
stated he had seen the same type of injury humerous times
resulting from an improper hand grip on the handle. (25T429-5
to 430-15). He opined that of the three automatic heaﬁanl in
‘evidence (P-53, P-71, P-76) the 380 caliber Browning was the one

most likely to have cauéed the injury to the defendant's hand.

3 ' -34-
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left bucket seat in the white Pontiac (257515-5 to 516-21);

(257432-18 to 433-15). He c;me to this conclusion Because of
the weapon's design and conatruction) and its safety factors;
the other two weapons had such safety features that it would be
lesq likely that they would cause that type of injury. (25T433-
16 to 434-12). .

On cross-examination, Chief Mullen stated that each of

the-three weapons contained a safety notch which is part of the

slide that causes the hand injury resulting from an improper
grip. Thus, any of three, if held improperly, could inf}ict a
similar injury. (25T435-6 to 442-14). He added, however, that one
of the two weapons (either P-71 to P-76) wou}d’;::~:ave caused
as deep a gash or'as much tearing as the injury on the defendant's
han#. (25T443-2 to 9). He could not say thét the injury was
caused by the gun slide to the éxclusion of all other types of
injuries, however. (25T7449-4 to 11).

George Hickman, a Principal Forensic Chemist with the
New Jersey State Police, was qualified as an expert in the area
of“blood groupings as well as with'regard to bullet holes in
fabrics and metals. (257502-1 to 509-10). He examined wvarious
blood specimens, classifying and g;oupinq them as follows: both

James Costan and the defendant had type O, Joann Chesimard h}d

type B, and Trooper Foerster had type AB. (25T7509-16 to 513-2).
With respect to various items submitted to him for analysis, he
reached the following findings: type, O blood on the grips and
the slide of the 380 Browning automatic (P-§5), on the grip area
and, side plates of Foerster's ;evolver (P=52), én his holster

(P=56), belt buckle, pants and,ha£¢nﬂndqu‘tbawzightasidn_ot_zh.m--;



1 found in the present case. (25T415-12 to 416-1). He stated that.
if three individuals had sustained injuries from éach of the above
tﬁteo weapons, he could not distinguish the injuries. (25T416-8

Eto 1&); The officer had previously testified in a trial regard-
ing iﬁsuries received from the handling of' a pistol. (25T417-15
to-418-3). '

After oral argument and over defense counsel's obiection,

T Chief Mullen was permitted to testify concerning the cause of the

injury to the defendant's hand. (25T418-9 to 427-14). In so

10 ruling, the court noted that the witness was not testifying in a

medical capacity, but was, 4f"j
"an expert on the handling of weaponsﬁdﬁ"
their potentiality for ca051ng injury and

the fact that they do cause anury.... As
far as I'm concerned, che man who's been a
police officer for years is more

qualified 'to testify as to the way a wéapon
might injure you than any doctor in the
world, unless that doctor has been handling
weapons for 27 years." (25T7427-6.to 14).

Chief Mullen then testified that the most common type
of injury from an automatic weapon resulted from an 1mpfoper grip,
where the hand .is held too high, thus engaging the webbing be=-

20 tween the thumb and index finger in the operation of the slide
portion of the gun on recoil. (25T7428-11 to 25). As a result,
the weapon can become jammed. (25T429-1 to 4). When shown photo-
graphs of the defendgnt‘s hand injury (P-109, P-110), the witness
stated he had seen the same type of injury numerous - times
resulting from an improper hand grip on the handle. (25T429-5
to 430-15). He opined that of the three automatic head&ns in ™

evidence (P-SJ, P- 71, P-76) the 380 caliber Bzowning was thc one

most lxkely to have caused the injury to the defendant's hnnd




1 (257432-18 to 433-15). He came to this conclusion because of
the weapon's design and construction} and its safety factors;
the other two weapons had such safety features that it would be
1el' ikely that they would cause that type of injury. (25T433-
16 to 434-12). »

On cross-examination, Chief Mullen stated that each of

~————-the-three weapons ésntained'é safety notch which is part of the
slide_that causes the hand injury resulting from an improper
{gﬁip, Thus, any of three, if held improperly, could inflict a
10 similar injury. (25T435-6 to 442-14). He added, however, that one 5
. of the two weapons (either P-71 to P-76) would not have causeqé,t’ffl
as deep a gash or as much tearing as the injury on the defendént's
hand. (25T7443-2 to 9). He could not say thét the,.injury was
. caused by the gun slide to the exclusion of all other types of
injuries, however. (25T449-4 to 11).
George Hickman, a Principal Forensic Chemist with the
New Jersey State Police, was qualified as an expert in the area
of blood groupings_gs well as with'regard to bullet holes in
fabrics and metals. (257502-1 to 509-10). He examined warious
Zq blood specimens, classifying and g;ouping them as follows: both
James Costan and the defendant had type O, Joann Chesimard had
type B, and Trooper Foerster had type AB. (257509-16 to 513-2). .
With respect to various items submitted to h;m for analysis, he
reached the following findings: type O blood on the gr}ps and

the slide of the 380 Browning automatic (P—§5), on the grip area

and, side plates of Foerster's Qevolvgr (P-52), on his holster
- (P=56), belt buckle, pants and hat, and.on the right side of the ...

‘1;!t bucket seat in the white Pontiac (25T515-5 to 516-21);
. ) ;
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type AB blood on Foerster's shirt,, on the right rear hubcap
(P-144) Car 86, on the driver's license (P-1), and on the
steering wheel of the white Pontiac (25T517-2 to 522-7; 26T552-

14 to 553-1); and type B blood on the right side of the roof and

_the exterior passenger side, and on the driver's side handle.

(257523-18 to 20). AR

Although bloodstains were found on the clothes taken
frod:James Costan's body (P-45, P-46, P-47), the only identifiable
blood group found was type O on the sweater (P-46) (26T531-16
to 533-13), and type AB blood on the right leg and back left : ""’_
pocket of his trousers. (26T549-1 to 22). With respect to the
clothes worn by Joann Chesimard, the witness found traces of type
AB blood on hc; socks, the right leg of her slacks, a;d the right
cuft of her jacket; type B blood on the right jacket cuff and the
left thigh of her slacks. (26T533-16 to 535-4). Type AB blood
was also found on the green hat (P-26) found by Foerster's body
as well as on the rith/jront and rear doors of Car 886. (26T535-

6 to 536-21).

During his examination of the white Pomtiac, Hickman
found bullet holes on the roof and along the rear window mould-
ing. (26T537-16 to 25). The bullet hole in the regr'deck indicated
that the bullet had been fired from within the car and did not

exit it. (26T7540-20 to 542-2). The witness testified that the -

bullet (P-88) was found to have glass imbedded in if. (2B8T544-1
to lll.
~ The State then rested. (267581-11).
In response to various motions made, by defense counsel

.
(2772-4 to 73-15), the trial court made the following rulings:




1 that the motion to delete the ﬁayes of James,uggix/ﬁiiﬁer from the
indictment be granted, but denied as to the name of Archie Gibson
(27T73-14 to 74-5), that the motion to dismiss Count I (murder of
thopez Foerster), Counts III, IV, V, and VI (the various assaults
on Trooper Harper}, and Count VII (possession of a weapon) be
denied, and that the motion to dismiss Count IT (murder of James
Costan) be granteds (27T74-6 to 82-9). : :

b The &efense called as its only witness Dr. David Spain,
a physician and pathologist who had heard the trial teséimpny of

10 Dr. Albano and Depgty Chief Mullen. (27T83-21 to ngﬁrfﬁlwith
respect to the latter's testimony, after having examined tﬁe

photographs of the defendant's hand injury, as well as analyzing

the 380 Browning (P-53), the doctor opined that the weapon could”

not have-caused the injury. With respect to Dr. Albano's testi-
mony, he Qp?ned that Costan could have survived from a few minutes
to 3/4 of an hour with the type of injury he received (27T792-22

to 96i£;), and could. have been active during that time. Such an
individual would not collapse immediately but would only ¢ollapse
after a period of time during which he lost enough blood to cause

20 shock. (27T96-14 to 20).

3
s
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POINT I

1 ¢ THE DEFENDANT WAS NOT
y DENIED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE
OF COUNSEL.

———————pr1O¥ ‘to trial, the court granted the prosecution's
motion for a severance of the indictments against the defendant
and co-defendant Chesimard,which ha; previously been consolidated
for ‘;ial. During oral argument of the motion, defense counsel

“for defendant Chesimard argued that such a severance would be
prejudicial to defendant Squire: since, _ ,ﬂ‘

102 "We have been acting as a team in relation
to the defense of this case... This will
no longer be true if it means there would be
= : a severance. It certainly at this point

- - i g -works to his disadvantage and at the same
time places upon him an extreme burden of.,
at this point, having to again go through
a variety of defense postures, aliases,
characterizations, other kinds of necessary
defense activities by himself on his own, when |
they have been done in conference and jointly. |

THE COURT: NG, that -- that -- that doesn't
.disturb me at all. I still have --

MRS. WILLIAMS: I'm sure it disturbs defen-
dant Squire.

THE COURT: Mr. McKinney and Mr. Bgown, Mr. Brown
== Mr. Brown being the New Jersey torney

20 responsible and sponsoring Mr. McKifiney here,
we would still have Mr. Brown and/or one of his
associates.

MR. BROWN: You mean Mr. Brown would be e
required to be a participant?

THE COURT: Mr. Brown will be required, if the
moti®n is granted, to have a New Jersey lawyer
in the ‘courtroom.

S MH. BROWN: And then when Chesimard would be
S ttied, I'd be required to do that, too? ' :

Tﬂl COURT:. That's right. That's right.

T -38-
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MRS. WILLIAMS: Your Honor, =-
7
THE COURT: You're still on the case, yes.

MRS. WILLIAMS: Your Honors it seems to me
that just implicit in your Honor's state-

ment is the possibility here of -- of conflict
of interest.

Now Mr. Brown has sponsored the ‘admission of
Mr. McKinney.

. THE COURT: I'm -- I won't even listen to
that. I won't even listen to . that.

You know, if you ever have to file an appeal, -
you put that in the briefs, in the ruling

made by Judge Gerofsky. ‘df,f’*f

But the law of the case is that Mr. Brown~
has sponsored both of you. I don't want to
hear anything about it. I didn't set it up.

I don't want to hear a singlé, solitary word
about it, --

MRS. WILLIAMS: Well, may I --

THE COURT: -~ the conflict of interest
problem." (14T18-17 to 20-9).

Prior to the opening statements, Raymond Brown,

Esq., indicated that since he had originally been retained

by Evelyn Williams, Esg. on behalf of defendant Chesimard, he
felt there was a conflict of interest as a result of the
severance. Thus, he requested permission to withdraw from the
present case to avoid a conflict of interest situation. The
court denied the motioq, stating, in part, ’

"Now, however, his permission to practice
g{g hac vice in this State granted by Judge
erofsky, who set up the original arrange-
ments between counsel and the administration
; of both he and Mrs. Williams, certainly con-
- templated that there be a New Jersey lawyer,
~and I think Judge Gerofsky's mind a specific
New Jersey lawyer, presgnt in the courtroom
-t all times.
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It's my understanding that the conflict
of interest situation was aired fully

‘ 54 before Judge Gerofsky, and at which time

it was represented to him that there
would~be no conflict of interest and,
therefore, he allowed you to sponsor both
of these lawyers in this State. I have
varied Judge Gerofsky's ruling somewhat
in that last week. I told you I did not
think it was necessary for Ray Brown per-
sonally to sit in with Mr. McKinney; that
you could send someone else from your
office. I still so rule. I think I have
% varied Judge Gerofsky's directions to that
degree, but I do not want to vary what he
originally contemplated that much by ex- .
cusing the obligation to have a New Jersey "
lawyer present during the course of this ;
trial." (19T3-25 to 4-22). /

Judge Gerofsky's ruling apparently occurred dur}ng

the hearing concerning the application of the firm of Brown,

a s
~ Vogelman and Ashley to have Charles McKinney, Esqg. admitted

Pro hac vice for the purpose ‘of handling the present case.

As indicgced at that time, it was the intention of Mr. McKinney
to serve as chief trial attorney for the defendant Squife.
(TM4-1 to 4).* ~In addition, Mr. Ashley stated that,

"... Mr. Brown appeared and I was present
at the time, moved the admission of Mrs.
Evelyn Williams pro hac vice,, too. At
that time the understanding was, in the
event Mrs., Williams chose, for whatever
reason, or the Court chose that Mrs. i i A
Williams should not be involved in the
case any longer, that Mr. Brown, or my
. office, would undertake the obligation
: of trying the case with or without her
¥ presence. I submit to the Court that the .
same understanding applies in this instance.

Certdinly I don't anticipate in any way
that there will be any problem which would [
result ;n Mr. Charles McKinney not being

* TM refers to the transcript of the motion before Judge
G&ofsky on May 29, 1973. Pa-1l to Pa-4).
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able to try the case on behalf of Mr.

Sjuire. I submit to the Court that Mr.

Brown and I have been involved in other

cases where he has represented one defen-
\ dant and I have represented another

defendant. In the event that an eventuality

does create itself, certainly my office is

willing to undertake the obligation of having

myself defend Mr. Squire and having Mr. Brown

defend Miss Chesimard.

I also should say for the record, your Honor,
I have not consulted with Mr. Squire, I have
never met the man, but I submit in the event
that there is this emergent situation my
office will undertake the obligation which I
have already expressed to the Court. So I
don't think there will be any problem, your
Honor." (TM2-10 to 3-22). e

During the course of the trial, Mr. Brown handled,
various procedural motions and arguments, and conducted the
cross-examination of several State's witnesses. The defendant
presen;ly contends that the dual representation of possibly

adverse parties by the same attorney violated his right to the

k]

~ effective assistance of counsel. Specifically, he argues that

20

’reépeqﬁfully'disagrees.

while the dnly viable defense was to attribute the murder and
various assaultgég~;o—defendant Chesimard, (1) no clear theory
of defense was ever présented to the jury, (2) counsel
implicitly attempted to attribute the murder to Costan rather
than Chesimard, and (3) his attorneys were ndt prepared to
elicit dumagihg ev;dence on cross-examination which could
possibly have beén utilized later against Chesimard. Thus,
dqtendaﬁt contends that Mr. Brown's dllegiance to his retained
client prevented him from vigorously pursuing.his defense,and
that Brown's role as "supervising attorney” had a chilling

effect on the defense presented by Mr. McKinney. The State

—f)~
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Although it is possible in_some circumstances for a

conflict of interest to arise when one attorney represents co-

defendants, an examination of the teca,i indicates that such

a situation did not exist in‘the instant case. Whether or
not a defendant is deprived of hxs right to counsel depends

princxpally upon the facts of each particular case.
"For while it is fundamental that a defen-
dant is deprived of the effective assistance
of counsel, contrary to the sixth amendment,
where dual representation involving interests -
inconsistent with his makes his defense less
effective than it would have been absent such
- conflict of interest, Glasser v. United State$,
315 U.s. 60, 62 S.Ct. 457, 86 L.Ed. 680 (1942),
not every situation of common representation
is per se constitutionally fatal to a trial
of either or both defendants." U.S. ex rel
Smith v. New Jexsey, 341 F.Su upp. 268, 271
(1972).

Numerous cases have held that defendants have not been

denied effective assistance of counsel where they were £

_represented by the same attorney. See Sanchez v. Nelson, 446

Fe2d 849 (9 Cir. 1971); U:S. v. Moore, 424 F.2d 276 (4 Cir.
1970) ; Crow v. Coiner, 323 F.Supp. 555 (D.C. W.va. 1971);
People v. Curkendall, 36 App.Div.2d 979, 320 N.Y.S.2d 955

(1971) ; Combs v. Turner, 25 Utah 2d 397, 483 P.2d 437 (1971);
People v. Hughes, 268 Cal.App.2d 796, 74 Cal.Rptr. 107 (1969);

Davenport v. State, 70 Md.App. 89, 253 A.2d 768 (1969); State

v. Robinson, 271 Minn. 477, 136 N.W.2d 401 (1965), cert. denied
382 U.S. 948.(1965); Trotter v. Staie, 237 Ark. 820, 377
§:W.2d 14 (1964), cert. denied 379 U.S. 890 (1964); People v.
Welch, 212 Cal.App.2d 397, 28 Cal.Rptr. 107 (1963).

Defendant maintains that tb establish a violation of

- ’
the right;to effective assigtance of counsel, it is only

"




1 necessary that the accused ethblinh that his counsel was

serving possible conflicting interests at the time he was

‘h repx_‘elonting_the accused. U.S.. ex rel Platts v. Myers, 253

e B SUpp«23-(D.C. Pa. 1966); U.S. ex rel Watson v. Myers, 250
F.Supp. 293 (D.C. Pa. 1966). He relies on the recent United

States Court of Appeals case for the Third Circuit, U.S. ex

rel Hart v. Davenport; 478 F.2d 230 (3 cir. 1973), which
¢ rejected the approach that before relief Qill be considered,
the defendant must show some specific prejudice resulting
10 from a common counsel. Instead, it held that it woulg,;éﬁg}d
joint representation as constitutionally defective "upon a
showing of a possible conflict of interest or prejudice, however
remotg." This holding did not constitute a departure from
prior holdings in Third Circuit cases. See Walker v. United
States, 422 F.2d 374 (3 Cir. 1970), cert. denied 399 u.s. 915
(1970) .
’gpntrary to the holding in the Third Circuit, the
general r/ule appears to be that a specific instance of prejudice
~ or a real conflict of interest must be shown to exist before
20 it can be said that effective assistance of counsel hlsvbe;n_

denied. United States v. Lovano, 420 F.2d 769, 774 (2nd Cir.

1960). See Glasser v. United States, supra, 315 U.S. at 72-76;

Marxuach v. United States, 398 F.2d 548, 551-2 (1st Cir. 1968),

cert. -denied 383 U.S. 982 (1968); United States v. DeBerry,

487 F.2d 448 (2nd Cir. 1973); Sawyer v. Brough, 358 ¥.2d 70,

—

72-73 -(4th Cir. 1966); Porter v, United States, 298 F.2d 461,

463-464 (5th Cir. 1962); Craig v. dnited States, 217 F.2d 355,

™ 358-359 (6th Cir. 1954) ; United States v. Cozzi, 354 F.2d 637
’ s

-l
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(7th Cir, 1965), cert. denied 383 U.S. 911 (1966) ; Kurchten v.

Eyman, 406 F.2d 304, 311-312 (9th Cir. 1969); Eryar v. United
States, 404 F.2d 1071, 1073 (10th Cir. 1968), cert: dented 395 =

_\_. _______ U385 964 (1969).'

10

Cases in New Jersey have given little treatment to this

area, but seemed to have reached a similar conclusion. 1In State

-V. Ebinger, 97 N.J.Super. 23 (App.Div. 1967), the court dealt

with a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. There an

attorney represented two co-defendants, one of whom pled guilty

and testified on behalf of the State at the other's trial. Al- i
. » o

though he was not to be sentanced until after the_ytfgl, the

court noted that his cooperation with the prosecution might well have

. been a factor bearing on his sentence. The court found that be-

cause a real and substantial conflict of interest existed between
the co-defendants, it need not have additionally found a speciéié#“
showing of prejudice in order to constitute inadequate repre-
sentation. 1Id. at 27.

However, in State v. Smith, 59 N.J. 297, 300 (1971),
the Court held thaé there was no conflict of interest stemming
from joint representation of co-defendants since both defendants,

charged with drunken driving, sought to show that defendant

Barr was the driver of the vehicle in hope that defendant Smith

could avoid a mandutory jail term and ten year loss of driving

privileges. The Court found that defendants' argument failed,
not because they had one lawyer instead of two, but because
the police office;s were believed, not dqf;ndants.

- Ho?e recently, in State v. Green, 129 gég.ggggg. 157

(App.Div. 1974), co-defendant Guida, a hitchhiker, was given a
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1 the charges of murder and robbery in the instant case.
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In evaluating the merits of the defendant's contention,
it is significant to note thét prior to the severance, counsel
indicated that the two defendants and their respective attorneys

had "been acting as a team in relation to the defense of this

" case." (14T18-17 to 18). 1In arguing against the prosecution's

motion for a s;verance, it is evident that neither counsel felt
that a conflict of interest existed because of their common de-
fense. This is apparent from Mr. Ashley's statement that if Mr.
McKinne} and Mrs., Williams could not participate in the trial,
the firm of Brown, Vogelman and Ashley would regﬁpleﬁi both the
defendant and Ms. Chesimard at the joint trial.g

Consequently, it is apparent that had a joint trial
been conducted, there would not ha?e been a conflict of interest.
Yet, this could only have occurred if neither the defendant nor
ChesI;;rd would have attempted to attribute the various charges 4
to the other; rather both ;ould necessarily have had a common
defense (such as self-defense against Harper's allegedly un-
pro?g;ed Bhootiﬁg and Foerster's reaction to the initial shoot-
ing) or, at the very least, separate defenses which were in no

inconsistent with each other. It logically and necessarily

follows that if a conflict of interest would not have existed
at a joint trial, it could not have existed at separate trials.
Counsel might argue that at the severed trial, defendant could
have theoretically attributed the chazg@a to Chesimard which
he vbuld not have done at the joint trial because of the lack
of a factual basis. However, while a defendant has th; right

to present a viable defense, he does not have the right to

ey
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' connected Chesimard and Costan to the initial shooting, while -

claim that he could have fabricated a defense, but was precluded
from advancing such a tabticgtion because of an alleged conflict
of interest. Such a contention pre-supposes the right to sub-
vert the channels of justice and the legal system itself,

fAn examination of the record supports the State's

position that a conflict of interest did not exist in the

prdient case, and that the defendant was not prejudiced to any
deqree’as a result of the dual representation. Initially, all

of the‘evidence which could possibly have been presented con-
cerning the events on' the night in question was presented ;t
trial. Since the defendant voluntarily chose ngjffS»ZQutity, and
since Chesimard clearly could not be compelled to take the stand,
ihe testimony of James Harperland‘tht passing motorist was the
on}y evidence which could have been elicited from eyewitnesses.
All of the other evidence presented related to the various
demonsttnéive items found Qt the scene and the scientific tests
and analysis conducted on these items. The lengthy cross-
ekffigation by defense counsel, while failing to elicit excul-
pating testimony, was not "aimless" or ineffective in the sense v
that counsel was not prepared to elicit damaging testimony which e
could be utilized subsequently aqa;nst Chesimard. Rather, a fair
review of the record demonstrates that cros;-examinatlon could

not possibly have elicited anything further which the State

h;d not previously presented concerning the possible partici-

pation of Chelimaré in the various activitiea thatiniqht. Thus,

Harper's testimony as well as the scientific evidence clearly

various scientific evidence (Foerster's blood found on Chesimard's




1 sock and right leg, her pistol found by Foerster's boéy, and
an expended shell from her pistol found by Foerster's foot)
linked Chesimard to the scene of the killing. Since defense
counse} could not have presented any additional evidence,
the defense advanced by the defendant was necessarily limited
by the tesQimony elicited by the State during the trial.

The defendant argues that his only defense was to
attribute the murder to Chesimard, that his only viable theory
was that he had reacted in self-defense to Foerster's conduct

10 upon seeing Harper shot, that he had accidently wouﬁaegdlﬁg;;ter,
and that Chesimard subsequently killed Foerster with his’own
revolver. Instead, counsel failed to ever outline any defense
to the jury, and only implicitly attempted to attribute the
murder to Costan. Again, an analysis of tthfecord belies such

a contention. As indicated, counsel could not have elicited

any additional evidence than had already been presented. Thus,

the only prggedure counsel could have utilized to attribute

the murdet'to Chesimard, 6;‘at least to present a theory of

defense, was during summation. Yet, during summation counsel

20 did, in fact, attempt to outline in detail the only defense
possible. Thus, he told the jury that since Harper had panicked

in leaving the scene without attempting to locate Foerster,

- they could infer that he had panicked initially upon seeing
Foerster with an alleged gun‘clip and pulled his gun on Chesimard
= lﬁd Cbﬁfln. Counsel attempted to support this qontention by
: reference to various "inconsistencies” in Harper's testimony,
F e : as well as to the cooperative nature of the defendant withlnnrpcr,

“Counsel further argued that accepting the fact-that the defen-
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dlng and Foerster were engaged in a struggle, no conclusion could
be drawn as to its cause. It was just as reasonable to iﬁfer
that Foerster ﬁad attacked the defendant, possibly to handcﬁff
him, as to infer that the defendant had initiated the fight.-
While counsel did not; and could not, épeculate as to what
exactly had transpired, he emphasized that such uncertainty
weakened the strength of the prosecution's proofs. (27T154-19

to 156-1). In essence, counsel was precluded from explicitly
arguing with any success thaé the defendant had been provoked by
Foerster into battle, or that he had‘/rggly been an accessory

after the fact; the evidence clearly did not suppert such a con-

tention. (See Points III and IV, infra). Nevertheless, counsel

utilized the lack of eﬁewitness testimony conceznihq the struggle

‘in the only favorable manner possible. Rather than attempt to

present a express defense exonerating the defendant, which would
have carried little credence because of its necessarily specula-
tive nature, counsel pursued a different course. The best
defense under the circumstances was, in essence, to convince the
jury that the prosecution had not fullfilled its duty of proving
every element of its case beyond a reasonable doubt. This was
precisely what counsel attempted to do by referring to alleged
inconsistencies and inadequacies in the State's case.

Despite the evidence presented which possibly_lipked
Chesimard in some manner to-‘Foerster's death, attempting to
attribute the killing to Chesimard was not viable. Initially,
since no conflxct of interest would have existed at a jolnt

trial, it can be concluded that the dotendant never int.ndcd ‘to

"
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(27T179-1 to 180<5). The strength of the State's case precluded

interpose such a defense. Thus, he should not be able to

prevail upon the theory that he was prevented from presenting

a defense which did not exist and which he never interided to
utilize. Moreover, the crucial fact relating to the murder was
that twq bullets  from Foerster's revolver caused his death.

Yét, since type O blood was found on the grip area and side

plates of the revolver, as well as on his holster, belt buckle,
panis and hat, tﬁ; inference is inescapable that the "execution?r'
had the same blood type. As such, it would appear to pe.more
feasible to attribute the killing to Costan, who had'€§;; 0

blood, rather éhan Chesimard, who did not. While Chesimard

could have been shown to have been in the immediate area, the
above testimony and evidence would have virtually eliminated

her as the principal. In short, since the individual who

aciually committed the murder (and, thus, the robbery) undoubtedly

had type O blood, counsel's attempt to attribute the act to

Costan thfough Dr. Spain's testimony was thus not orly not
unreasonable, but seemingly was the only avenue of defense
available. to the defendant. Further, this theory was expressly
advanced during summation when counsel emphasized that the 380
Browning and Foerster's revolver, both bearing O type blood,
were found next to Costan's body. Thus, it was logical to argue
that the blood on the two weapons was that of Costan rather than
the defendant. As such, it presented a much more viable theory

of defense than one in which the blame was shifted to Chesimard.

'f‘




1 this or any other course of action.*

- - In summary, the State submits that the defendant has
failed to demonstrate that a real conflict of interest or an
instance of prejudice resulted from the dual representation.
The failure of counsel to advance a more convinc}ng defense

«cannot be said to have resulted from the desire to prevent the
eliciting of damaging testimony concerning Chesimard. Counsel

presented all possible arguments and defenses, which were

necessarily limited by virtue of the proofs elicited by the
10 State. Even assuming, however, that the test in.Davenport is
'applicable, the State maintains that a simiig; conclusion must
be reached; since a conflict of interest would not have existed
at a joint trial, there was not even a remote possibility of
a conflict in the present case. The complete absence of any
resulting prejudice underscores this conclusion. Therefore; the

defepdant was not denied effective assistance of counsel.

20. '

* Moreover, it would appear that counsel could have attempted to
attribute the murder to Chesimard during summation through
argument. In this regard, it is clear that such arguments of
counsel, in the absence of independent proof to support them,
would in no way jeopardize or damdge the defense advanced by
Chesimard in the subsequent trial. The failure to do so under-
scores the conclusion that attributing the acts to Costan was

a much more viable and credible theory to advance to the jury in
light of the evidence presented.
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POINT I1

THE TRIAL COURT'S RULING IN

‘ QUALIFYING CHIEF MULLEN AS AN

EXPERT WITNESS WAS PROPER AND
HIS SUBSEQUENT TESTIMONY DID
NOT EXCEDE THE SCOPE OF HIS
EXPERTISE. N\

»

During the ocurse of the trial, Deputy Police Chief
Edward Mullen testified that he was a qualified firearms training
officer and had béen an instructor in firearms for over 20 years.
He was familiar wich‘"just about every weapon madg." During his
experience with automatic weapons, he had observed over a nnda}éd
injuries rgsulting from the handling of guns, about ten to
thirty of which had resultedffrom automatic pistols. (25T403-9
to 407-3; 25T412-5 to 16). He could not specifically recall
whether he had ever seen an injury attributed to a Browning
automatic, or any of the automatics (P-53, P-71 and P-76) found
in the present case. (25T414-16 to 416-1). If thr?e individuals
had sustained injuries from‘each of the above three weapons,
he would not be able to distinguish the injuries. (25T416-8 to

14). Oyver defense counsel's objection, the trial court ruled

__that Chief Mullen would be permitted to testify concerning the

- cause of the defendant's hand injury. (257418-9 to 427-14). 1In

so ruling, the court noted that the witness was not testifying

or being offered as an expert on injuries, but rather was,
"...an expert on the handling of weapons
and their potehtiality for causing injury
and the fact that they do cause injury...

As far as I'm concerned, the man who's

been a police officer for 27 years is more
qualified to testify as to the way a

) weapon might injure you than any doctor

_in the world, unless that doctor has been Z
handling weapons for 27 years." (25T427-6 to 14).
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Chief Mullen then testified that the most comson type
of injury from an automatic weipon resulted from an improper
grip, where the hand‘is held too high, thus engaging the webbing
between the thumb and index finger in the operation of the siide
portion-of the gun on recoil. As a result, the weapon could
become, jammed. (257428-11 to 429-4) . when shown photographs
of the defendant's hand injury (P-109, P-110), Chief Mul}en
stated he had seen a similar injury numerous times resulting
from an improper hand grip on the hand. (25T489-5 to 430~15).
Of the three automatic weapons in evidence {P-53, P-71 and P-76),
he opined that the 380 Browning was the’gné"hbst likely to have
caused the injury. He came to this conclusion because of the
weapon's design and the construction of the safety features;
when the slide is extended to the rear, the safety notch is
f:lly exposed and causes the hand injury if there is an improper
grip. On the other hand, the Luger was the least likely to
cause the injury since the safety lip was higher and the slide
did not have a full cut in it. The Llama also had a higher
safety lip which actedas a protectiée device to keep the webbing
of the hand away from the slide dur%ng its operation. (25T432=w. - =
18 é; 434—12).

The defeqﬁant contends that although Chief Mullen

might properly have qualified as a firearms expert, his testi-
mony concerning the cause of his hand injury was outside the
scope of his expertise and no; a propey subject of expert
opinion»testimony. Specifically, he argues that the witness was
not competent to testify as he did, and that his opinion testi-
mony invaded the province of the jury. It is the State's ’
position that the wiiness' expertise was gleﬁ;ly shown, and that




1 the tr;al couxt'g limiting instructions regarding the testimony
kept the opinions expressed within proper bounds.
Expert testimony has been the subject of appellate
. review in this State for at.  least a century. The central case

setting forth the standards for review of the trial court's

‘

decision in this regard is New Jersey Zinc and Iron Co. V.

Lehigh Zinc and Iron Co., 59 N.J.L. 189 (E.&A. 1896). In up-

holding the trial court's admission of expert testimony, the
Court of Errors and Appeals stated:

10 "Who is entitled to be considered as an
expert in regard tonzgyfquestion of
science or skill ca t be determined by
any precise rule, but from the nature of
the case must be left very much to the dis-
cretion of the trial judge, and his
decisitn is conclusive unless clearly
shown to be erroneous as a matter of law."
Id. at 194, citing Castner v. Sliker, 4
Vroom 95; S. & B. Ma nufacturing Co. V.
Phelps, 130 U.S. 520. %

It is clear f{fm this early rule that a party wishing to over-
turn a judgment on the basis of an improper ruling in this :
regard has a heavy burden. 1In fact, it would appear that the
g\} court's deciaiéh to permit a witness»to testify as an
20 expert is almost "qoncluaive".
This heavy burden was again espoused in Rempfer v.
Deerfield Packing Corp., 4 N.J. 135 (1950). There, the New

Jersey Supreme Court laid down the rule that "the qualifications

of experts are left to, the discretion of the trial court and
the decision is conclusive unless clearly shown to be erroneous

« ’
as a matter of law." Id. at 141, citing New Jersey Zinc and

Iron Co. v. Lehigh Zinc and Iron Co., supra; Ross v. Commissioners
of Palisades Park, 90 N.J.L. 461 (Sup.Ct. 1917); Essex County
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1 Park Commission v. Brokaw, 107 N.J.L. 110 (E.sA. 1930); Cowdrick

v. Pennsylvania R.R. Co., 132 N.J.L. 131 (E.&A. 1944); Bosze

v. Metropolitan Life Insurance Co., 1 N.J. 5 (1948). The court

éxplained that the admissibility of expert testimony'is not
premised upon whether the subject matter is common or uncommon
or Whether many or few persons have knowledge of the matter.
Instead, the admissibility rests upon "whether the witnesses
offered as experts have peculiar knowledge or experience not
common to tﬁe world which renders their opinions founded on such

10 knowledge or experience any aid to the Spurf or jury in deter-

- \

mininq‘the questions at issue."” lg.’at 142, citimg Rogers,

Expert Testimony, (3rd ed., 1941), §31; Taylor v. Town of Monroe,
43 Conn. 36 (1875). . é
This State, as most, pefmits a witness to be qualified
as an expert "by reason of study without practice or pxaéﬁ&ce
without study." Rockland Electric Co. v. Bolo Corp., 66 N.J.
Super. 171 (App.Div. 1961), citing 2 Wigmore on Evidence (3rd
A ed. 1940), §555 et seq.; 3 Wigmore on Evidence (3rd ed. 1940),

§712 et seq.; Wheeler and Wilson Manufacturing Co. v. Buckhaut,
20 60 N.J.L. 102, 105 (Sup.Ct. 1897); State v. Arthur, 70 N.J.L.

425, 427 (Sup.Ct. 1904); Fenias v. Reichenstein, 124 N.J.L.

196, 200 (Sup.Ct. 1940). The Court in Rockland noted that in

_other jurisdictions witnesses may qualify as experts by reason
of their training, experience, or both. Id. at 176, citing

Carroll v. Magnolia Petroleum Co., 223 F.2d 657, 664 (5th Cir.

1955) ¢~ Tf the witness has any special study or experience,
he is considered to possess special skill or knowledge which is

not common to the average'han. Ibid., citing Wilmington
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Housing Authority v. Harris, 8 Terry 469, 47 Del. 469, 83 A.2d
518, 522 (Sup.Ct. 1952); Tifton Brick and Block Co. v. Meadow,

92 Ga.App. 328, 88 S.E.2d 569, 573 (Ct. of App. 1955). "The
expertness may be acquired by occupational experience as well
as by scientific study." 1Ibid., citing Rogers on Expert

Testiﬁonx (er ed. 1941), §40, p.69; Churbuck v. Union Railroad

Co., 380 P. 181, 110 A.2d 210, 213 (S.Ct. 1955); United States

V. 3969.59 Acres of Land, 56 F.Supp. 831, 838 (N.D. Idaho 1944).
Thus, "within broad limits, the qualifications of an expert
witness are for the discretionary determination og,cﬁé‘trial

court; an appellate court will not reverse if there is '

any
legal evidence' to support the trial court's action." Ibid.,

citing Brown v. New Jersey Shortline R.R. Co., 76 N.J.L. 795,

796 (E.&A. 1908) (emphasis by the court).

In the present case, Chief Mullen had over 20 years
of experience in both thé handling and teaching of virtually
everx/gptomatic weapon made. A; a result of having seen numerous

hand injuries stemming from the improper handling of automatic
. .

pistols, he was particularly qualified to testify with respect

to how and why such injdries occurred. Certainly, he properly
testified that the defendant's hand injg;y was similar to the
injuries he had previously observed; the jury could not hgve
been expected to have either the knowledge or experience in
assessing the relationship between the défendaht's injury and

the automatic pistols found in the case. After having observed

the various safety features of the weapons, and being familiar

with their operation, he was able to opine that of the three,
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ﬁhc 380 bzqwning was® the one most likely to have caused the
injury. He came to this conclusion because an individual was
more prone to mishandle the Browning than the other two, due

to itg smaller safety lip and deeper notch on the clip. In
elaborating upon the feasons behind his opinion, Chief Mullen
demonstrated a skill and knowledge in an area certainly not
common to the average Jayman. The jury Qould not have been able,
absent his testimony, to determine the likelihood of each

weapon causing such an injury.

At no time did the witness conclude{;h;t'che Browning
had, in fact, produced the injury on the dé?;ndant's hand.
Rather, the effect of cross-examination served to illuminate
the precise nature and scope of the testimony elicited. The
jury was told that as with all automatics, the three weapons in
question contained some type of safety device (lip) designed to
prevent the hand from coming in contact with the returning slide,
and thus prevent an injury to the webbing; consequently, any

~Automatic held improper could inflict a similar injury. Z25T435—
6 to 442-19). Chief Mullen could not state that the defendant's
injury was caused by an automatic.gun slide to the exclusion
of any other type of injury. (25T449-4 to 16; 25T453-23 to
454-7) . Mo;eover, rather than conclude that the Browning
caused the injury, he merely opined that of the three weapons
ahéwnvhim, it was the one most likely to cause it; there were
other weapons not found at the scene (such as the 45 caliber)

which were almost as likely to cause a webbing injury. (25T454- -

15 to 455-7; 25T476-18 to 21).




1 In short, Chief Mullen's testimony was proper-as-being
,‘Qléhinwﬂié expertiae inrthe field of automatic weapons; at no
time did he base any opinidn or view on knowledge or facts out-
side of his specialized field. _Certainly, it did not constitute
medical testimony. He did not. form his opinions on the basis
of the injury itself (since any automatic weapon would produce
a similar wound), but rather based it upon the design, construc-

: . : -' .
tion and operation of the various weapons he examined. His

opinion dealt with the facts eshablished at trial, and was with-
10 in the scope of an area of special knowledge and skill which he

6(2).  As such, this case is

possessed. See Evidence Ru
distinguiéhable from the cases cited by the defendant, in which

an expert testified outside of his field of expertise, or within
an area of common, everyday knowledge. See, e.g., State v. Sachs,
69 N.J.Super. 566 (App.Div. 1961) (detective opined as to who

had had p&ssession and control of lottery tickets); State v. 2
Vigliano, 50 N.J.. 51 (1967) (witness testified conerning the
position of the victim before and after each shot that was fired);

Biro v. Prudential Insurance Co. of America, 110 N.J.Super. 391

20 (App.Div. 1970), rev'd 57 N.J. 204 (1970) (medical ex;miner
opined as to whether the-death had been a suicide); In re Hyett,

61 N.J. 518 (1972) (doctor testified in a legal capacity).

Fﬁrthermore, the jury was instructed by the trial court
that they were not ?ound by an expert's opinion, but were to
give it appropriate weight on the basis of the facts and reasons
underlying the opinion. (277234-4 to 22). Togethgt with the
various qualificatipns Chief Mullen attached to his opinions
as to the cause of the defendant's hand injury, the scope and

-58~




"1 import of his testimony was clear: to determine which of the

automatié pistols found at the scene was most apt to be mishandled,
and thus causé a hand injury. Such testimony relating to a
"peculiar knowledge or experieﬂée not common to the world, and
being an aid to the jury in their determination of the issues,

it was properly befbre them for their assessment. No error

could possibly have-existed in permitting such tesﬁimony.
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POINT III
" THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY 8 h

REFUSED TO CHARGE THE JURY
ON ACCESSORY AFTER THE FACT.

The defendant maintains that khe trial court erred in
not heeding defense counsel's request to charge the jury on
accessory after the fact. Arguing that the evidence presented

at trial supported this ground of defense, he concludes that

. reversible error was committed. The State respectfully submits

that a fair review of the trial record leads inescapably to a

contrary conclusion. ,f”ﬂw

It is well established that the traditional function
of a trial court is to instruct the jury with respect to the
law governing t?f’iigues to be decided by them under the faéts
of the particular case. State v. Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413, 438

(1968); State v. Butler, 27 N.J. 560, 594-595 (1958); state v.

Beachlor, 52 N.J.Super. 378 (App.Div. 1958). Thus, the Court

in Butler held that,

"...a mandatory duty exists on the part of
the trial judge to instruct the jury as to
the fundamental principles of law which
control the case. Among such principles is
the definition of a crime, the commission of
which is basic to the prosecution against

the defendant." State v. Butler, supwma, 27 - o
N.J. at 595. o0

Furthermore, this duty exists even in the absence of a request

by defense counsel.’ State v. Butler, supra; State v. Thomas,

105 N.J.Super. 331, 337 (App.Div. 1969). As a result, the
trial court is obliged to instruct the jury with respect to any

and all otfenses, issues, or theories of def.nso which could

be uupport‘d by the evidence and its zolulting 1n£ortno.a

Fers’ s
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elicited at trial; clearly, however, no such duty exists in the
absence of a factual basis in the evidence.
Despite defendant's contention to the contrary, State

v. Mayberry, supra, is consistent with this principle. 1In

"Mayberry, the trial court's refusal to instruct the jury on

accessory after the fact as to the alleged getaway driver was
held to be proper, despite his defense that he was unaware of
his two companions' plan for robbery. In so holding, the Court
stated that "the refusal to charge [accessory after the fact]

was entirely correct for Miller had never been accused or

.
indicted as an accessory after.the fact (N.J.S.A.2A:85-2) and

the issue was not in the case." State v. Mayberry, supra, 52 « 5

N.J. at 438. (Emphasis supplied). As such, the duty of the court
to charge on accessory was held to depend not solely upon the
"technisms 6f indictment", but also upon whether the proofs
elicited at trial would support the charge. Clearly, the Court e
concluded that the evidence presented did not Fupport such a
charge.*

The issue thus presented is whether the testimony
elicited at trial would support the charge of accessory“after

the fact. At common law, such an individual was one who, "with

* See also State v. Saulnier, 63 N.J. 199, 206~207 (1973), which-
held that there need not be a charge to the jury with respect .,
to an included offense to the one charged in the indictment

. "unless there is a rational basis in the eygidence for a finding

that the defendant was not guilty of the higher offense charged
but guilty of the lesser included offense." While the charge
of accessory after the fact would not appear to be properly
characterized as a lesser included offense, nevertheless the
principle is applicable. PR

- , v
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knowledge of another's commission of felony, receives, relieves,
comforts, or assists the felon in order to hinder the tla;terfs)
apprehension, trial or punishment." State v. Sullivan, 77

N.J.Super. 81, B89 (App.Div. 1962), citing Shelly v. United States,

76 F.2d 483, 487.(10th Cir. 1935); 1 Schlosser, Criminal Laws
of New Jersey, §116, p.88 (1953); 14 Am. Jur., Criminal Law,

: §102, p.836 (1938). This law is presently embodied in N.J.S.A.

. 2A:85-2, which prohibits any aid or assistance to one who has
committed a high misdemeanor, "for the purpose of prgvgpting oy :
hindering his apprehension." The mere fact thi; an individual
is present at the scene of a crime does noﬁ”;;ohibit that
individual from being charged as an accessory. See Smith v.

\
United States, 113 U.S.App.D.C. 126, 306 F.2d 286 (D.C. Cir. ,/

1962). As such, an accessory after the fact is clearly dis-
tinguishable from an aider and abettor who is equally guilty with
the ‘perpetrator as a principal, State v. Madden, 61 Nad.-397,

392 (1972); State v. Humphreys, 101 N.J.Super. 539 (app.Div.
£

.~1968) , and is accordingly punished in the same manner. State

~
v. Jacques, 99 N.J.Super. 230 (1968), aff'd 52 N.J. 481 (1968), %

20 cert. denied 395 U.S. 984 (1969).

Defendant argues that the testimony elicited at trial
provided a factual basis for the charge of accessory after the
fact and thus should have been presented to the jury as an
alternative verdict‘to the murder, - robbery and assault’ch&tges.
SpocificAlly, he emphasizes the cooperative nature of the defen-
dant toward Trooper Harper together with the lack of communica- .
tion between the defendant and the othe; two occupants of the

Pontiac; the resulting inference which could have been drawn
. Ve

=62~
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was that the defgndant was a victim of circumstances and was
merely defending himseif from Trooper Foerster's reaction to
Chesimard's spontaneous shooting. His only crime, consequently,
is that he aided Chesimard and Costan to escape.

The State submits that a careful examination of the
triai rgcord demonstrates the complete absence ofiany evidence,
however remote, indicating the viability of an accessory after
the fact charge. To allege such a factual basis necessarily
involveﬁ an exercise in fanciful speculation and conﬁectute,
which-is clearly outside the province of E&p’jﬁty. Without
detailing the evidence presented at trial, suffice it to say
that the only conclusion wh%ch could rationally have been drawn
was that until Foerster had discovered the automatic clip on the
defendant, he, along with his two companions, would purposely
be cooperative; they wanted to avoid ;;y suspicion on the officer's
part which might lead to a search and thus a discovery of their ki
weapons, their identity, and their cache of ammunition in the
trunk. Once it-became obvious that the three had aroused the
officers' suspicions, Chesimard precipitated the night's
activities by firing and wounding Harper. From ;hat p°1"ﬁ on,

whlle Chesimard and Coétan were engaged in a gun battle with

Harper, the defendant, sensing the predicgment, became ingolved
in a struggle with Foerster. As noted by passing motorist,
the defendant appeared to have tﬁe advantage in the battle.
Clearly, it wasvimpossiblé and futile fo he defendant to have
accampted~any communication with his cohorts duiing this p.rioa.
Moreover, the fact thq; the defendant did not fire at any time
at Harper is of no consequenc; == the defondént vi. obviously

& . —63-
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1 preoccupied with his own struggle which would end in Foerster's
‘E:fth.
- E While it is impossible to re-create precisely the
sequence of. events that night, nevertheless the evidence points
in only one dirfction: that the defendant] if not a principal
in the night's activities, was clearly an aider and abettor.
A review of the salient evidence reveals that (1) Foerster's
5 stomach wound had ; burn mark directly below it, suggestlx a
bullet-shot at close range and during a struggle; (2) the defen- ’
10 dant's gun had Seen fired once before jamming; (3) the defegdaﬁlfs
hand injury strongly suggested that it was the result of an
improper gripping of the gun handle (which wags very conceivable

d 'durinq a struggle); (4) the only two bullets fired from Foerster's

gun were found lodged in his head; (5) Foerster's body was

found at the same spot where he had initially been fighting with
defendant; (6) Foerster's blood was on the steering wheel of 5
the Pontiaé, whith the defendant drove away in; (7) the defen-

dant's blood type was found on the grips and sides of Foerster's

gun; (8) the defendant had no other injuries beside the hand

20 injury; and finally, (9) Foerster was literally covered with
wounds and his own blood. Under no stretch of the imagination
| could it be said that such testimony supported, even remotely,
an accessory charge. A difference of opinion could remotely
< " exist over whether the defendant was acting as a principal,
or whether, ‘after initially wounding Foerster, he acted as an
aider and abettor concerning the murder and robbery. Neverthe-
‘11:0, it is clear that the defendant shared the necessary

intent with Chesimard and Costan, and was equally responsible
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1

for the acts committed. The concept of acceé#bry after the
gact had no support in thé trial record, and-the court properly
refused to charge the jury on it.
= The defendant ynevertheless argues that the court should
at least h\ave insttucte} the jury that if the; believed he was
.an accessory after the fact, an acquittal was mandated. However,
it is significant that thé trial court's charge on aiding and
abetting (29T214-17 to 218-2; 29T247-24 to 250;16) was clear;and
unambiguous, and could not have failed to convey to the jury the
need for criminal knowledge on the defendani;g,putt before he «
could be found guilty of any crime. It presented the applicable
principles and was consistent with prevailing case law. State
v. Mayberry, supra, 52 N.J. at 538-539; State v.-Sullivan, 43
N.J. 209, 236-237 (1964), cert. denied 382 U.S. 990 (1966). In
the absence of evidence to the contrary, it must be assumed that

the jury understood and followed these  instructions. State v.

Walker, 33 N.J. 580 (1961); State v. Williams, 30 N.J. 105
(1959); State v. Curcio, 23 N.J. 521 (1957); State v. Boncelet,

107 N.J.Super. 444 (App.Div. 1969). Thus, the charge as pre-
sently requested was, in essence, contained in the court's
charge as a whole. If the jury had believed the delenda:!'s
present theory of defense, they would have acquitted him since'
every element of each offense, as defined in the charge, had
not been demonstrated beyond a reasonable doubt. In light o

the instructions and the trial record, it is inconceivable that
the jury's verdict was other than a proper finding that the
defendant had knowingly, engaged in the niqht's activitiea,};har~

&f"‘he common intent with his two companions.

i




1 for the acts committed. The concept

fact had no support in the trial reco:

jury on manslaugh-

POINT IV

refused to charge the jury on it.

for trial court
THE TRIAL COURT'S REFUSAL
TO CHARGE MANSLAUGHTER

WAS PROPER

The defendant snevertheless :

manslaughter; State

rial court not to at least have instructed/thc jury that

Defendant maintains that the trial court committed

an accessory after the fact, an acquit

reversible error by refusing to charge the jury concerning it is significant that the trial court

ly not use force

abetting (297T214-17 to 218-2; 297247~2

manslaughter, as requested by defense counsel. Specifically,

‘eason to believe

unambiguous, and could not have failed

he argues that since the evidence could support the inference

lance of his duties,

10 need for-criminal knowledge on the def

- circumstances that the defendant was wrestling with Trooper Foerster in an

could be found guilty of any crime. I

attempt to res t an unlawful arrest or excessive force, a

69, 184 (App. Div, . -

mitigating defense of manslaughter should have been placed principles and was consistent with pre

of an illegal

10

asion of his right before the jury. The State respectfully disagrees, V. Mayberry, supra, 52 N.J. at 538-539
156. (1970); State As previously noted, the obligation of the trial J. 209, 236-237 (1964), cert. denied
in effectuating court is to instruct the Jury on all offenses or theories of the absence of evidence to the contrar
and'unreasonable defense. having a factual basis in the evidvncé presented. the jury understood and followed these
reasonable force State v. Saulnier, Supra; State v. Mayberry, supra; State v. Walker, 33

is injured, no . Butler, supra. However, it is equally well established in (1959) ; state v. curcio, 23 N.J. 521 (2
Washington, 57 N.J. homicide cases that the court need not and, in fact, should 107 N.J.Super. 444 (App.Div. 1969). Th
39 (1959). However, not instruct the Jury on a specific charge in the absence of 20 sently requested was, in essence, conta
zen's right to evidence supporting thé’charge. See, e.g. State v.Artis, 57 charge.as a whole. If the jury had bel
not use greater 20 N.J. 24 (1970), - proper for court not to charge jury on man- present theory of defense, they would h

slaughter; State v. Gosser, 50 N.J. 438 (1967), cert. denied every element of each offense, as defin

- if greater force

390 U.S. 1035 (1968) proper for trial court not to charge jury not been demonstrated beyond a reasonab

and forfeits his

ows that the on voluntary manslaughter; State v. Sinclair, 49 N.J. 525 (1967) the instructions and the trial record,
5 s _BIDCARIY LA .

the jury's verdict was other than a proj

3 ‘l s
0 submit- to proper for trial court-not to charge jury on manslaughter; 2

defendant had knowingly engaged in the )

State v. Trantino, 44 358 (1965), cert. denied 382 U.S. 993
2tate v. Trantino cert U

-defense. :

ing the common intent with his two comps
-
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1 (1966) proper for trial court not to instruct jury on manslaugh-

ter; State v. Wade, 40 N.J. 27 (1968) proper for trial court

not to charge jury on second degree murder or manslaughter; State

Vi Scott, 104 N.J.L. 544 (E.&A.) proper for trial court not to

charge jury on manslaughter.
I; New Jérsey, "a private citizen may not use force
to resist arrest by one he knows or has good reason to believe
{ is an authbrized police officer in the performance of his duties,
whether or rot the arrest is illegal under the circumstances
10 obtaining." State v. Koonce. 89 N.J. Super. 169, 184 (Agpu‘Div. =
1965). The individual's recourse in the event of an illegal
arrest is to seek relief in the courts fo; invasion of his right

. .to freedom. State v. Mulvihill, 57 N.J. 151, 156 (1970); State

V. Montague, 55 N.J. 387 (1970). However, iﬁ, in effectuating
t&e~deten;ion, the officer employs unnecessary and xnreasonable
force, the citizen may counter with the use of reasonable force
to ptotect/g;mself; if in doing so the officer is injured, no

criminal offense has been committed. State v. Washington, 57 N.J,.

160, 163 i1970)a State v. Williams, 29 N.J. 27 39 (1959). However,
20 two qualifications exist with respect to a citizen's rigﬁt to
repel an officer's eycessive force: (1) he cannot use greater
force than reasonably appears to be necessary -- if greater force
.is utilized, the citizen becomes the aggressor and forfeits his
right of°self-defensé and (2) if the citizen knows that the
officer's excessive force would cease were he to submit to

nrrest,’he must do so or lose his right of self-defense.

-67-




10

20

State v. Mulvihill , supra, 57 N.J. at 157.

Nevertheless, even if a citizen does utilize greater
force than is necessary in response to an officer's use of
excessive force,.the offense might still be mitigated to vol-
untary manslaughter under appropriate circumstances. Without
delving at length into the court's discussion of this issue
in state v. Madden,61 N.J. 377 (1972), it would appear that
this partial defense might be available to a defendant. -Id.

at 400-402. See also Bullock v. State, 65 N.J.L. 557,570 (E.&A.

1900) and Brown v. State, 62 N.J.L. 666, 709-714 (E.&A. 1898).
o .

-

However, given the fact of the officer's use xcessive force,
a reduction of the homicide to Eanslaughter would not arise
automatically. Madden seemingly- indicates the necessity of a
subjective standard; the defendant would have to be filled with
passion aroused by the excessive force sufficient to meet the
usual provocation tests in order to mitigate the offense to
voluntary manslaughter. See e.g. Davis v. State, 204 Md. 44,
53-34, 102 A.2d 816, 820-821 (1954).

5 As such, the applicable law in New Jersey may be
summarized thusly: If ; citizen responds to an officer's
unﬁecgasa:y use of dgadly force in effectuating an arrest,

a claim of self-defense and complete exoneration could be war-
rant59 if, in protecting himself, the c;tizen kills the officer.

Brown V. State, supra; Bullock V. Stagi, supra. C £. State v.

Mulvihill, supra. If thecofficer does not use deadly force

but hevertheless uses unreasonable and unnecessary force, a claim

e PSS -




1 of ;rovocution could arise under appropriate circumstances,
thus mitigating the offense to voluntary manslaughter. g{.
s v. Madden, supra. Furthermore, Madden indicates‘that if
the officer is n;t acting in the performance of his duties,
and the citizeﬁ intended to commit less than a grievous bodily
harm, a conviction® for involuntary manslaughter might be war-
ranted. Id. at 402.

The issue thus presented is whether the testimony

£
elicited at trial would have supported any of the above theories,

-

10 thereby warranting a charge to the jurys The defendant argues .~

that it could have been inferred that he had been wrestling

with Foerster in an attempt to resist an unlawful arrest or

the use of excessive force. In essence, he reiterates his
.

p{}or argument made in Point III, supra. The State's corre-
sponlling response is thus equally applicable here. Without
reiterating the relevant evidence presented there, the State
submits that there ﬂfs no factual basis to support the position
thqt Foerster utilized any force, let alone unreasonable or
deadly force,to restrain.the defendant. - This is most vividly
20 demonstrated by the numerous wounds received by Foerster,

while in constrast the defendant was unmarked except.for his
hand injury. Since there was no factual basis in the trial
record to infer, even remotely, that Foerster had utiliéed

! deadly. force (thus precluding the issue of self-defense from
arising), or unreasonable force (thus effectively preventing
the element of provocatipn, needed éo establish voluntary

manslaughter, from arising), there was no need to instruct
. P
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1 the jury on these theories. Furthermore, since the officer

10

20
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was clearly acting in the performance of his duties, a charge
of involuntary manslaughter was similarly unwarranted. Simply
siated, the evidence presented at trial pointed solely to the
commissiop of a murder; the trial court's refusal to charge
manslaughter, and failure to charge self-defense, was clearly

proper. .

-70-=
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POINT V

THE ADMISSION INTO EVIDENCE OF -
THE DEFENDANT'S FINGERPRINT CARD

WAS PROPER UNDER EVIDENCE RULE

55. .

During. the course of the trial, it was elicited that

‘an "Archie Gibson" had been arrested and fingerprinted in New

York City the day preceding the shooting on the turnpike. The
individual, who was identified as the defendant, gave the
arresting ofgicer a New York driver's license bearing the saﬁe
name. (19T41-5 to 59-10). The card which containai”ghé finger-
prints of the individual (P-2) was admitted into evidence over
defense counsel's objection, after-the card had been sealed so
that only the priﬁts-and the officer:s signature were visible.
The court ruled that the card was admissible under Evidence Rule
55 to demonstrate identity. (19T59-19 to 89-5). A comparison

of the fingerprints on the card with thééé of the defendant,

Clark-Squire, on file in the Middlesex County Sheriff's Office

(P-3), indicated that the fingerprints were of the same indivi-
dual. (19T91-3 to 97-10). The defendant presently contends that
the‘prejudicial effect of the card, combined with the failure
of the trial court to issue a limiting instruction, constituted
reversible error. The State respectfully disagrees.

It 'is well established as a general rule, that the
State cannot prove that the defendant committed other crimes,
even though of.a like nature, for the purpose of showing that the
éefendant would be likely to.commit the crime charged. State
v. Marchand, 31 N.J. 223 (1959); State v. Ascolese, 59 N.J.

Super. 393 (1960); State v. Raymond, 53 N.J.L. 260 (Sup.Ct. 1891).



A

1 The principle established by the above case law is also
embodied in Rule 55, which states:
\ "Subject to Rule 47, evidence that a
person committed a crime or civil wrong
on a specified occasion, is inadmissible
to prove his disposition to commit crime
or civil wrong as the basis for an inference
that he committed a crime or civil wrong
on another specified occasion, but, subject
to Rule 48, such evidence is admissible to
prove some other fact in issue including
motive, intent, plan, knowledge, identity,
or absence of mistake or accident."
The exclusionary aspect of Rule 55 is not based upon
10 the absence ¢of probative value from the other crime evidence. y
‘ - ’l""
On the contrary, the probative weight of such evidence may’be
high. This type of proof is excluded under Rule 55, however,
in the interests of fundamental fairness and the avoidance of
undue prejudice to the defendant. Admission of other crime
.evidence might lead a jury to believe that he was a bad man in
general and convict him for that reason alone. The rationale
behind Rule 55 is the policy of providing a trial in which an
Pt
impartial determination is made upon the facts of the case,
rather than upon extraneous-and inflammatory material. See

20 Report of the New Jersey Supreme Court Committee on Evidence,

(1963 Report), Comment on Rule 55, at 101-102. See also State

v. Harris, 105 N.J.Super. 319 (App.Div. 1969).

.

However, neither Rule 55 nor prior case law prohibit

other crime evidence under all circumstances. ,Thus, other crime
evidence is admissible when it is relevant to some fact in issue,
even though it would be excludg? if offered to show the defen-
. dant's general disposition for wrongdoing to infer that he was

Quilty of the present offense. Sucﬂ evidence may bé offered
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as proof of one of the enumerated factors in Rule 55 if one of
those factors is actually in issue in the case, although,
"[I}n general it may be said that whenever
the defendant's guilt of an extraneous crime
tends logically to prove against him some
particular element of the crime for which he
i is being tried, such guilt may be shown."
State v. Kociolek, 23 N.J. 400, 419 (1957).
See also State v, Wright, 132 N.J.Super. 130, 148 (App.Div. 1974),
rev'd on dissenting opinion, 66 N.J. 465 (1975) .
The defendant acknowledjes that the evidence in ques-
tion was probative as to identity, but argues that sucﬁfpxbof
e
was unnecessary to the prosecution's case, since tHe defendant
‘had already been’ clearly connected to the scene of the crime. »

However, the significance of the arrést card was not merely to
establish the defendant's presence at the scene, alt;ough as
such it was important to corfoborate the identification testimony
of Transit Policeman Sullivan and Trooper Harper, which was
subjeis'to attack*by defense counsel. - Rather, such evidence

was uéilized to demonstrate that the defendant, Clark Squire,

had used an alias, Archie Gibson, for purposes of identification.
Once having eliciteé that various documents containing the name
"Archie Gibson" had been found in an attache case in the trunk
of the Pontiac, it could then be argued that the defendppt had
knowledge and constructive possession of the shotgun shells

and two boxes of 38 supéer vel ammunition‘.in a suitcase along~
side it. As a result, he had reason to be initially cooperative
with the troopegﬁupon,the stop in order to avoid suspicion,
knowing that a search of his ?erson and the car would reveal

weapons and ammunition. As such, it .serves to refute defense
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counsel argument that the defendant's cooperation with Trooper
Harper té;ded to imply that he was not a participant, either
directly or indirectly, in the shooting which ensued. -Moreover,
to the extent that it tended to demonstrate the defendantis
dominion and control over the'car, it was clearly relevant to
the charge of possession of. the three automatic pistols in the
car. Thus, the evidence was also clearly probative as to the
issue of knowledge with respect to the charge of possession.
Furthermore, any prejudiciality engendered by the
admission of such evidence was_clearly not sufficient to warrant
its exclusion under Rule A.WJ;imply because evidence is damaging
to defendant and tends to prove his guilt of the crime which he
is charged wi;h inferentially, rather than direétly, does not
hean a Rule 4 situatioh is created. "Undue prejudice" in the
sense of that Rule is a concept akin to a "due process" notion.

Superimposing Rule 4 on a purported Rule 55 situation, the

inquiry would be whether the evidence, while oséensiblxvptobative

under the exception to the general exclusion embodied-in Rule .
55, clearly would have its principal impact on the ju{y'as to

the ultimate question of guilt'by its tendency to show "disposi- =
tion to commit crime or civil wrong as a basis for an inference, ;
--." Cf. State v. Boiardo, 111 N.J.Super. 219, 232-233 (App;

Div. 1970), certif. den. 57 N.J. 130, cert. den. 401 U.S. 948~

* »

(1971) . g

In this regard, the defendant maintains that because

the principal impact of the eviden;e was to imply a disposition

“to commit crime, the prejudicial nature outweighed its proba-

,tive value and warranted its exclusion. In'part,‘thil is alleged .

. -74-

£




1 to have resulted from the failure of the trial court to issue

.limiting instructions to the jury. When evidence of anothess

crime is admissible as proof of some fact in issue, the trial

cou;t, pursuant to Rule 6 of the New Jersey Rules of Evidence,

: is to instruct the jury to the limited effect to be given to
the evidence in question. This was not done in the present
case, although defense counsel neither requested that the court
include such an instruction in its charge nor objected to its

omission. As such, this case presents a situation similar to

10 that recently discussed in State v. Rajnai, 132 N.J.Super. 530

.(App.Div. 1975). There, the trial courg failed to instruct \
the jury as to the limited purpose of "other crime" evidence.
Notiné that such a lfhlting instruction should have been given
pu{suunt to Rule 6, the Court added that the issue had to. be

: considered under the pl;in error rule since no objection has
be?n raised at trial, and that the failure to give a-limiting

instruction did not necessarily require a reversal. Id. at 537-

538. See also State v. Lair, 62 N.J. 388, 392 (1973); State
v. DiRienzo, 53 N.J. 360, 384 (1969). The same tesé would lceﬁ
2°Hequaliy applicable here.

Initially, it must be noted that with the exception
of the brief testimony of Transit Patrolman Michael Sullivan,
there was no other reference to the defendant's arrest. The
circumstances surrounding the arrest was never elicited or
alluded to during the trial. Furthermore, the only refetencg
by the prosecutor to the evidence was a brief comment during
summation concerning the issue of the defendant's identity

(28T11-5 to 12-13); at no time did the subject of his arrest

-75%
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ever arise. Consequently, when the evidence is examined in

the context of the entire trial, which produced over f&rtv
witness?s, it cannot ;airly be said that the jury utilized it
to infer that the defeqdant was a badvman in general, and had
a disposition to commit crime.

In short, the evidence in question was properly ad-
mitted since its prejudicial impact was, at best,'minimnl, and
certainly did not outweigh its probative'value. Similarly,
since the evidence demonstratind the defendant's guilt wis
overwhelming, and thg,pd!ﬁiiility of an improper utilization

of the evidence by the jury is not apparent under the circum-

i stances of the case, the failure to issue a limiting ingtruc-

tion did not prejudice the defendant.




POINT VI
337 THE PHOTOGRAPHS WERE

PROPERLY ADMITTED INTO
EVIDENCE

The defendant contends that the trial court erred
whe; it admitted into evidence twelve photographs depicting
varied scenes.* Specifically, he argues that the exhibits
were unnecessarily gruesome and inflammatory, as well as
being cumulative of trial testimony. Despite only a general
objection by defense counsel to most of the ppogggr(ﬁhs,

£ defendant maintains that the court should have excluded them
Sua sponté pursuant to Rule 4. A‘r;view of the relevant ex-

hibits and the trial record, together Qith the controlling

case law, clearly demonstrates the propriety of the trial
court's rulings.

: «In State v. Thompson, 59 N.J. 396,420-421 (1971),
the Bupreme Court dealt with the admissibility of photographs,
stating, L

"It has long been the rule in this State
that admission of photographs of the victim
of a crime rests in the discretion of the
trial court, and the exercise of its dis=
cretion will not be reversed in the absence
20 of a palpable abuse thereof. [citations
omitted]. Such abuse exists only where
. the 'logical relevance will unquestionably
be overwhelmed by the inherently prejudicial
nature of the particular picture. State v.-
Smith, 32 N.J. 501,525, cert. denie
' U.8.7936, 81 s.ct. 383, 5 L.Ed. 24 367
3 (1961) ." =
. Purthermore, the mere fact that photographs are illustrative

* The photographs in question, plus one other photograph
admitted into evidence without objection but. havinhg : :
relevance the present contention, are being forwarded
to the court under separate cover. : -

\

T L
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of cumulative facts does not bar their admission into evidence.

As the court held in State v. Smith, supra, 32 N.J. at 525,

"It is urged that their introduction
was unnecessary to establish the State's
case and calculated to arouse the passions
of the jury. Admission of photographic
evidence,properly proved and having probative
value, even if somewhat inflammatory, in color
and only cumulative, is mainly within the
discretion of the trial judge, whose ruling
will not be overturned save for abuse, as
where logical relevance will unquestionably
~ be overwhelmed by the inherently prejudicial
nature of the particular picture. [citations
omitted]. Here we find no semblance of any
abuse. All such photographs are bound to
be unpleasant, but these are not unduly grue-
some,"

In order to demonstrate the propriety of' the trial court's
zuiing, an analysis of each photograph is both relevant
and necessary.

P-33, P-34 and P-35 (21T 78, 79 and 82)J§nd P-43
(21T 386)depict the pody of Costan lying on the ground frém_
differens,angles. The defendant objected to the photographs
on the basis that they bore no relationship to him in the

trial, and thus could only be prejudicial and inflammatory.

_The probative value of the photographs is apparent, however.

~—They portrayed to the jury the automatic clip in Costan's ~

pocket and the holster strapped to his back, .the latter aspect
being necessary to connect him with possession of the 9 mm
luger. More importantly, however, they demonstrated the lack
ot.a significant loss of blbod, refuting defense counsel's

ligumant that Costan could not have been in the back of the ®

Pontiac because his blood type was not found there, and that
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he must have driven the car. It also supports the prosecutor's
éheory that the type O blood found on Foerster's gun was
that of the defendant. Finally, the photographs depict the
position of Foerster's gun beneath Costan s knee, and the position
of his shirt which had ridden up on his chest. As such, they
graphically and vividly support the theory advanced that the
defendant had carried both Costan and the trooper's-gun to that
spot in the woods, tying the defendant, rather than Costan, to
the killing of Foerster.. Certainly the relevancy of these
photographs cannot bg_nanimized, nor can they be characterized
as inflammatory andAérueeome.

P-38 (21T 115) and P-68 (21T 804) both depict the
position of the Foerster's body in relation to the unmarked
car. The former is a view from the front of the car, alaé *
showing where the deceased's flashlight was found, while the
latter is a rear view of the car andlbody and includes the
position of Trooper Harper's hat and flashlight when found.
The éignificanqg and probative worth 6f the two photographs
are obvious when the trial record is examined. During cross-
examination of Trooper Dreyer, defense counsel viqo:ully ésggéggé_d___
at length his testimony. Specifically, he questionod how the Y
officer could have seen the flashlight and hat betveon cars

820 and 886 without seeing Foerster's body, as well as why he

and Trooper Byrne had both walked on the left sidc of the tvo

police cars in investigating the area. The photographs graph-

ically supply the answers. Because there J-q a dirt onbln*l‘nt

which rose sharply along the riéh; l}da of the police vehicles,

the officers would out of necessity havt-ﬁng to walk on the

left side. - Furthermore, oncé P-4 is viewed, it becomes apparent -
) 79 Gh e
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why the officers had not seen the body when .walking along
the cars while fhey were able to see the flashlight and hat.
Clearly, the photographs demonstrate that the position of the
officers in felationehip to the body precluded the possibility
of sth an observation. Had the; been in a different position,
as pictured in P-68, the body would have been apparent. Clearly,
the probatxve value of the two pictures is readily apparent.
Furéhermore, the photographs are not gruesome in any manner.*
P-37 (21T 125-127), objected to as inflammatory and
irrelevant; depicts the body of Trooper Fgaxste? lying along-
side of the unmarked car. The positioi’of the various items
subsequently introduced into evidence (Foerster's hat, the
defendant's hat, the exﬁended shell, the Llama automatic) are
shown in relation to the body. The dirt on the victim's pants
and the cuts on his hands are indications of the struggle in
which Foerster was engaged. Especially significant is the by
position of the holster, which has apparently been pulled from
his side to the front in order to take the revolver 6ut. As
such, it aéain represents photographic support for the theory
advanced by the prosecution concerning the method in which
the killing w;a committed. The logical relevance clearly pre- ﬁ%
dominates over the prejudicial nature, if any, of the photograph. i%
P-72 and P-73 (21T 827), objected to as irrelevant, -

depict (1) the relationship’ of Foerster to the car and the luger

£

* Defendant's argument with respect to the above photographs
is especially difficult to accept in view of the fact that
P-68 and P-38 are virtually identical to J-2 and J-3, which
were photographs jointly admitted into evidence by defense
counsel and ‘the prosecutor. e

.




10

20

-

automatic found‘neatby, and (2) the officer's lower legs

. together with the defendant's hat and a pair of glasses,

respectively. While cumulative of testimony concerning the
scene, they are nevertheless relevant as evidencing  the
apparent struggle Foerster was engaged in as well as provid-
ing g;aphic illustrations of the scene inla manner which
could not be duplicated by mere testimony. Moreover, they
are not of an inherently prejudicial nature.

5-78 (21T 844),objected to as cumulative, again
depicts a distant view of the scene from the front BE the
unmarked car. Its pﬁrpose was to demonstrate the existence
of black foad marks as evidence that the Pontiac had left
the scene in a hurry. Since the jury had to evaluate the
merits of this contention, the photograph constituted the
best evidence possible. As such, it was extremely relevant
and certainly not inflamatory.

i P-176 (26T 546), objected to as irrelevant, shows
the right side doors of the unmarked car and the bloodstains
on Phém. The photograph.is probative as to the struggle
between Foerster and t?e defendant, indicating that Foerster
was apparently wounded while standing, and that the battle

continued in that manner for sometime afterwards. In addition
as in prior photographs, the nature of P-176 is neither prej-
udicial nor gxﬁeaom.. : :

Finally, P-134 (25T 379), objecteg to as 1rre1evﬁnt
and immaterial, depicts the hand ;ounds of Trooper Foerster

as well as the bullet wound in the chest. Defense counsel

o




1 pgesently objects to the photograph because of its cumulative
nature as well as being "awesomely gruesome,” Initially, the
State submits that the photograph 15_30: of an inflammatory
nature. Moreover, the.picture was especially significqnt
since it demonstrated to the jury the chest wound as having
a grazing abrasion or scrape just below it. Although Dr. Albano
had described the injury, the photograph offered a view Of the
wound which could not otherwise be portrayed to the jury de-
spite testimony concerning it. As such, it represents an’ :

10 indication that the wguﬁé‘bccu;ted at close ranée, possibly duqéhg

a struggle with the defendant's gun. Moreover, the hand
injuries lend credence to the prosecutor's statement that
"dead men talk ... look at Foerster's hands, he.fought'for
his life, and lost."™ (28T 23- 1 to_3).

In short, the State submits that the bhotographs
were‘not merely cumulative of trial testimony. Rather, they
conveyed to the jury-impressions of the scene and inferences
as to what transpired, impressions which could not be achieved
merely through hearing testimony. The adage, ‘; picture is

20 worth a thousand words," truly applies to the present case.

Furthermore, none of the photogréphs‘are inherently prejudiéial
or gruesome. Certaihly, the trial court's rulings in admitting

the photographs into evidence was proper.




POINT VII AR

THE PROSECUTOR'S SUMMA-
TION WAS PROPER.

During the course of his summation, the prosecutor
made the following rqmarks to the jury:

» "He [Harper] didn't see 820. That is the
marked car. Are you surprised that a man
shot at, people jumping out of a car shoot-
ing at him, can run by a car without seeing
it? Would you? People jumping out of a car,
running, shooting at you, you'd walk by an
elephant and you wouldn't see it. 1Is it,

80 surprising or is it precisely the kind of
recollection you would expect of asman being
shot at, people trying to kill him. Do you
understand that, trying to kill him. How
would you react if I pulled out a gun now
and started pointing it at you and shooting,
how observant would you be? (28T7-16 to 28T8-
1).

* * *
There are fifty some rounds of ammunition
in the trunk for the .380. You heard one of
the officers testify that he looked in the
trunk .and there were extra rounds of ammuni-
. tion for the Llama pistol, extra rounds of "

ok ammunition for the Luger. Take a look at ko',
that ammunition, it's not standard ammunition, 2
super-vel, lead nose, hollow nose, designed
for one thing, killing; killing.

When Clark Squire-Archie Gibson got out of
20 that car he knew the license was phoney, the

guns were in the car, and what do we know,
Mr. Costan in the bakk had identification
in the back, he was Mr. Williams. They were
nice they were polite. They were going to
take any kind of traffic ticket they were
going to get, because that was all right.
But couldn't afford to be arrested.
Beca he's only going to get
booked as Archie Gibson so many times before
they find out he's Clark Squire. If they
pull him out of that car and find those guns,
they will all get arrested. They were not

- going to be arwested no matter who stood in
their way, and I underline "who." Not just

) - i
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these particular policemen, but any
policemen, any policemen who would have
‘been there who would have blocked their
road to freedom would have been dead.
(28T11-10 to 28T12-6).

- * *

Down the road they go, the three of them.
Trooper Palentchar comes. You know, it's : 7
amazing. Mr. McKinney likes to pick apart
~- when a witness says something he likes,
that must be gospel. If the same witness
says something he doesn't like, he says it
must be wrong. On the one hand he says,

Bob Palentchar, there's a good fellow. She
[Chesimard) opened that door and got in and
he never did anything. He's lucky that there
wasn't another gun in that car, because if
there was the same thing would have happened
to him. It was thaf same trusting attitude
of the police that got him intc trouble."
(28T17-1-to 11).

Despite the fai}ure of defense counsel to object to the above
comments, the defendant presently contends that_they were
iﬁflammatory and prejudicial, necessitating a reversal.
Specifically, he argues that the first comment asked the jury
to decide what they wou{d &6 in a similar situation rather
‘than to judge what actually happened, yhile the other two
comments constituted improper references to other crimes not
in evidence. Since a timely ogjection was not interposed, the

alleged deficiency is advanced as plain error. R.2:10-2.

See also State v. Hipplewith, 33 N.J. 300, 317 (1960); State
Y. R;lex,. 28 N.J. 188, 206 (1958); State v. Sinnott, 24 N.J.
468, 415 (1957). The, State respectfully submits that the

prolfcutor did not exceed the bounds of propriety during his ro
summation. Nt S

The law clearly requires a prosecutor to vigorously

and forcefilly present the State's case and permits his
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1 the jury that Foerster may not have even arrived yet when
Harper panicked and began shooting. I;\response to this con-
tantién. the prosecutor was merely asking the jury whether it
was natural foi an individual in Harper's situation to be
unable to specifically recall certain circumstances which

"occurred during the.shooting. The prosecutor was thus stating

the obvious: that the jury would have tg rely upon their

experiences in deciding whether theifailure to ygecall the car's

presence was natural and reasonable under the dircumstances. i
10 “The commént constituted a fair response to deae4§q~counsel's

-

contentions and was cléarly proper. State vf'wilson, 57 N.J.

39, 50 (1970); State v. Taylor, 46 N.J. 316, 355 (1966) , cert.
~denied(385 U.5. 855 (1966); state v. Johnson, 31 N.J. 489,
510 (1960), cert. denied 368 U.S. 933 (1961).

With respect to the second comment, defense counsel
had argued that at no time did thHe defendant, being unarmed,
ever arouse the pfficer's suspiéions or appear to pose a

- .

danger to their safety. 1In countering this characterization

of the defendant as an "innocent third party", the prosecutor

20 called the jury's attention to the contents of the trunk,
which contained several boxes of ammunition. This ammunition,
which the jury could observe, had been designed in a different

““manner than most other types of ammunition. Clearly it was SR,
not designed for target practice,-but was purposely made in
a fashion to cause serious injury. . 3 s 3 :
i & Moreover, the jury was told that the defendant had 1

reason for cooperating fully with the police., Having at least i :

constructive possession of the car and its contents, the ; : 15
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defendant must necessarily have known of the various guns and
ammunition in it. To avoid arousing suspicion and a resulting
arrest or searc@ which would reveal these items, the.defendant
would necessarily be cooperative, even to tie extent of‘getting
a traffic ticket. The prosecutor was thus attempting to refute

defense counsel's contention that if the defendant had intended 5

“to-assault Harper or any police officer, he would have done

so whenAHatper was questioning the passengers in the Pontiac.
Until the suspicions of the police had been sufficiently AT
axoused to justify a search or arrest, thaﬂﬂefendant had no
need to resort to v1olence.

Nor can it be gaid that the érosecutor improperly
referred to other crimes not in evidence. Regardless of éhe
proéecutor's comment, the jury wouid«naturally{wonder as to the
need of the defendant to use an alias and possess numerous °
identification documents under that assumed name. The inference ~
that the defendant wanted to avoid arrest to prevent the diaj
closure of his true identity was not only a natural one which
was supported by the evidence, but was .a logical inference .
which the jury would doubtlessly have drawn even in the absence o

of the comment. As such, it was proper as being within the

scope of the evidence and in response to contentions initially
raised by defense counsel.

The third comment is equally proper for similar

reasons. Defense counsel contrasted the conduct of Trooper

Harper, who allegedly panicked, with that of Trooper Palentchar,

who ‘acted reasonable and compassionately in an equally dis-
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- whether an objection was made or a curative instruction requested.

tressing situation. (27T175-14 to 177-20). The prosecutor,

in response, argded that Harpet_ﬁad also acted rationally and

‘cautiously. - In fact, it was because he was over-cautious and

failed to draw his gun that he was subsequently shot and

Foerster killed. Had he drawn his gun in response to =z

Cﬂesimaxd's suspicious movements, the three would not have been

able to initate the shooting. (28T5-21 to 6-22). Thé evidéncé 77777777

elicited at trial clearly demonstrated the desire of bhesima;d

to kill Harper, from the initial wounding shot to the volley

og shots which ensued immediately aftergand. .Having demon-

strated this type of deadly conduoe’ﬁflh Harper, it was a proper

inference to note that she would likely have acted similarly

with Palentchar had she had the chance. The reference being

solely to Chesimard and not to the defendaqt,‘it cannot be said

that the comment pictured him as an evil man who had committed

past crimes and, if not‘apprehended, would continue to parti-

cipate in more killing. ‘ 7+ .
In short,. the prosecutor's summation was within the

facts and inferences established at trial and was merely a

fair response to contentions raised by defeﬁse counsel. But

even assuming prosecutorial impropriety, it is not every

excursion outside the evidence that will vitiate an otherwise

valid conviction. To compel such a drastic remedy, the

infraction must be "clear and unmistakable" and must "sub- .
stantially prejudice the defendant's fundamental right to have
the jury evaluate the merits of his defense." State v. Bucanis,

supra, 26 N.J. at 48. Significant to such an ingquiry is. .

o

b ~88~




1 "On the question whether the improper comment shall have that
effect, the making by trial counsel of a timely objection and
the action of the trial judge in connection therewith are
ordinarily controlling considerations." State v. Vagzoticzi
I3 NT. 99, 119 (1953).  An appellate court may properly infer
fram counsel's failure to object to the remarks at the time
‘they were made that he did not, in the atmosphere of the trial,
think them to be out of bounds.: State v. Wilson, 57 N.J. 39,

50 (1970); state v. Johnson, supra, 31 N.J. at 511.

10 Plainly, the comments complained!of ﬁere-not so
grievous as to infect the proceedinod’::;rto require a new
trial, even if prosecutorial impr&prigty could be said to exist.
It cannot be said that defendant was denied a fair trial, or

that the alleged derelictions led to an unjust result. ©

20
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“trial.

POINT VIII
; T
THE CUMULATIVE ERROR DOCTRINE

IS NOT APPLICABLE .IN THE
PRESENT CASE.

Defendant argues that the aggregate effect of the

~

trial court's rulings and the prosecutor's conduct was to
deprive him of a fair and impartial trial. In essence, he
relies upon the cumulative error doctrine first enunciated

by our Supreme Court in State v. Orécchio, 16 N.J. 125 (1954).
In Orecchio, the d;fendant's convictieﬂﬂyﬂl reversed because
the trial judge committed numerous Eg}ors which were of such
magnitude as to substantially deprive the accused of a fair
The present case presents a totally'different situa-
tion. Here, the trial court's rulings were entirely proper,
as was the conduct of the prosecutor. But even assuming the
existence of error, this Court should not review the legal
arguments raised by defendant from t?e vantage point of twenty-
twenty hindsight. Trial tribunals, faced with the burdens of

congested court calendars and the pressurized atmosphere of

evidentiary hearings, must not be held to an impossible standard

‘of conduct. Undoubtedly, the arguments of counsel and the

court's responses could have been more finely articulated.
Nevertheless, a fair reading of the record below reveals that

the defendant received a fair and impartial trial, and that

the jury's verdict was consistent with. the weight of the evidence

presented. It must always be remembered that "[a] defend;nt

is entitled to a fair trial but not a perfect one." State i
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gg&gggg; 111 !;g.gggg_. 219, 233 (App.Div. 1970), cert. denied
401 U.S. 948 (1971). Trial judges as well as trial counsel

are human and perfection caﬂgof be either demanded or expected. '

Aﬁ long as the rulings of the trial judge were devoid of error

preju&iciné the defendant's rights, the conviction must be
affirmed. -

" That éﬁe defendant Qas not seriously prejudiced by

the cumulative effect of the court's tulinqg cannot be disputed.
Nothing contained in the record or contained in defense counsel'
brief, supports the conclusion that ‘he was denied an impartial
trial or that the verdict rendered by the jury was in any way
unfair. The evidence in the instant case was coffélusive of

the defendant's guilt. His conviction, accordingly, should be

affirmed. a




POINT IX.
1 : THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DENIED
THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR A

JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL AS TO THE
ARMED ROBBERY CHARGE.

To establish a prima facie case against an accused,
the evidence must connect the defendant in some way to the crime.

State v. Reyes, 50 N.J. 454" (1967); State v. O'Donnell, 8 N.J.

Super. 13 (App.Div. 1950). However, for the purpose of a i
motion for a juégment of acquittal at the end of the State's
case, the State is givén the benefit of all inferences which can

i reasonably be drawn in favor of the prosecug5pnfwyxf, upon such
considéracion, a factual issue exists from which a jury @ould

find that the defendant committed the crime, the motion must

be denied. state v. Franklin, 52 N.J. 386 (1968); State v.

. van Duyne, 43 N.J. 369 (1964), cert. denied 380 U.S. 987 (1964).
"The proper issue is simply whether the evidence, viewed in :
its entirety, including the legitimate inferences therefrom,

5 )

~"1s sufficient to enable a jury to find that the State's charge

-,
has been established beyond a reasonable doubt." State v.
2 Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413 (1968), cert. denied 393 U.S. 1043 (1969).

It is also established that a conviction can rest upon circum=-
stantial evidence alone, and that there need be no direct

evidence of a defendant's guilt. State v. Franklin, supra.

In order to find the defendant guilty of robbery under
N.J.S.A.2A:141-1, the State must demonstrate that (1) the
defendant forcibly took something of value from another;

(2) the defendant did so through the use of force or by putting

the victim in fear; afd (3) the defendant had a specific intent
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to steil and to permanently deprive him of the property in .

question. State v. Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413 (1969), cert. denied

393 U.S. 1043 (1969); State v. Butler, 27 N.J. 560 (1958);
State v. McCoy, 114 N.J.Super. 479 (App.Div. 1971); State v.
Ford, 92 N.J.Super. 356 (App.Div. 1966). Ordinarily, the degree
of trdngportation necessary to constitute the taking under
the statutg need only be slight. State v. Culver, 109 N.J.
Super. 108 (App.Div. 1970).

The defendant maintains that the evidence presented
could not reasonébly have supported an intent to rob on_his
part. Specifically, he argues that the taking and usinq of

Foerster's revolver was done with the intent to use it, not

to steal it; as such it was an integral part of the murder.

However, by intending to kill Foerster with his own gun, a

resulting inference is that the defendant also meant to effect-

ively deprive him of the revélver. The success in obtaining

the rexg}ver and using it against Foerster made it obvious

that Foerster would never use gf possess the weapon again.

As such, the defendant's main purpose in taking the gun is at

least probative of his intent with respect to the robbery cbarge.'
Moreover, the defendant did not merely leave the

revolver at the scene after utilizing it to kill Foerster.

Rather, the evidence supports the inference that he carried

the gun with him to Milepost 78, especially\since his blood type

was found on the handle and side plates of the gun. Being

wtthbut a weapon as the result of the jamming of his Browning,

Ehe defendant obviously kept the gun and intended to possess
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it to use again ih‘any<pubsgquent encounter with police.'

When this is combined with the defendant's killing of Foerster,
the resulting inference becomes clear: the defendant intended
to permanently deprive Foersger of his gun, not merely to

effectudte the killing but also to utilize as a substitute for

~his own jammed weapon.

On tﬁis baéis,ifactual issues were presented from
which a jury could determine that the defendant had violated
the provisions of N.J.S.A.2A:141-1. In assessing a motion for
a judgment of acquittal, whether the ev{ggndswi; strong or
fraii, if it is faifly susceptible of diverse inferences when
considered in its totality, a fact questi;n is presented.

In such a situation it presents a case for the determination
of the jury, rather than the~court, and the motion, as was done

in the present case, should properly be denied. State v. Sachs,

69 N.J.Super. 566, 575 (App.Div. 1961). .




POINT X
THE DEFE&DANT'S CONVICTION FOR :

ARMED ROBBERY IS DISTINCT FROM
HIS FIRST DEGREE MURDER CONVICTION.

During tﬁe charge, the trial court instructed
éﬁémjﬁiy that in maintaining that the defendant was quiity
of first degrée murder, the State was proceeding upon two
alternative concepts. Thus, he issued‘éhe appropriate

principles of law concerning a premeditated, deliberate and

. willful murder, as well as concerning t&gﬂintentional

10

20

killing of a law enforcement official’éhring the pefformance
of his duties. (27T7209-1 to 211-13). The-jury was also
charged as to the necessary elements to support a second
degfee murder conviction under each of the two concepté.
(27T211-14 to 214-16). After deliberating, the jury found
éhe defendant guilty of first degree murder as well as armed
robbery. The defendant presently argues that since the
robbery of Troopet Foerster's revolver was an integral part
of the murder, the robbery conviction should merge &ith the

first degree murder conviction. The State submits that an’:

_examination of the trial record together with the applicable

case law supports separate convictions in the preéent situation.
While at common law, murder was defined as a

killing done with "malice afofethquqht"; other situations

emerged in which actual malice was not required to support a

charge of murder. 'bné such category, which became kﬁown.as

the 'fe}ony-murgef' rule, was a killing in the course of

the commission of a felony, as to which the intent to commit




1 the felony sufficed even'though there was no intent to
kill. The malicious and premeditated intent to perpetraté
one kind of felony was, by implication of law, transferred
from such bffense to the homicide which was actually com=
mitted, sufficient to support a conviction .of murder in
« ‘the first degree. State v. Madden, 61 N.J. 377, 384-385 g e
(1972) ; State v. Turco, 99 N.J.L. 96, 101 (E. & A. 1923);

People v. Nichols, 230 N.Y. 221, 129 N.E.Rep. 883 (1921).

This concept now exists as statutory authority in N.J.S.A.
10 2A:113-1.
Hoyever, it is also established‘fﬁgf a conviction
under the felony-murder concept bars a prosecution for the

underlying felony when the killing is the direct result of

the perpetration of that felony. See e.g. State v. Hubbard,
123 N.J. Super. 345 (App.Div. 1973), certif. den. 63 N.J.
325 (1972) and State v. Mowser, 92 N.J.L. 474 (E. & A. 1919),

in which the acts of robbery, perpetrated by physical attacks,
resulted in the death of the victims, and State v. Cooper,
13 N.J.L. 361 (Sup.Ct. 1883), in which the act of arson
20 resulted in the death of the deceased. Consequently, in
each case the elimination of the underlying felony would virtually
bar a first degree murder conviction because of the lack of the
~ necessary elements of malice aforethought andkggsmedigation,

deliberation and willfulness. State v. Cooper, supra, 13

N.J.1. &t 368ﬂ In essence, therefore, the merger of a
felony conviction appropriately occurs when the following

two factors exist: (1) the homicide resulted from the

-
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perpetration of certain enumerated felonies, and (2) the
underlying felony suppliesrthe necessary element of malice
which, in the absence of the felony, could not be demon-
strated.

The instant case is clearly distinguishable*
onm such a Situation. Tnitially, it is significant that
the robbery, in essence, occurred during the course of thé
murder of Trooper Foerster; as such, a standard felony~-
murder situation is not present. It is clear that the
defendant, as well as hisitwo companions, inteqd.d’zg kill
any police officer that they encountered. This fact can
be inferred from the gun battle engaged in with Harper és
well as the struggle and initial shooting of Foerster in
the chest. Once Foerster was wounded and incapacitated t
on the ground, the subsequent killing would likely have
taken place regardless of whether the officer's revolver
was available -- some method would have been utilized to
effectuate the death of Foerster. The utilization of the
gun was smply a convenient way to carry out this purpose.

The officer's revolver was taken not merely because the

defendant and his companions wanted to kill Foerster: rather,

the three,‘realizing they were unarmed once their automatic

pistols had jammed, knew they would need some type of weapon

to effectuate their escape and prevent apprehension'by
police. See Point IX, supra. Consequently, the robbery
of the trooper's re;élver, aithough proximate in time to
tﬁe murder, was nevertheless a separate and distinct‘act.

. P




Moreover, it is significant that the jury was
not instructed on the felony-murder concept. It is thus
apparent that they found the defendant either committed a pre-
meditated, deliberate and willful homicide, or aainteﬁtional
killing of a law enforcement officer. éonsequently, the

robbery coqvict}on was not utilized by the jury to supply

the element of malice to the charge of murder; the jury

found malice on the part of the defendant, as well as an

intent to kill, independent of the felony.
10 In short, the present case ingg&vés a situation
in which (1) a felony occurred during':he coﬁmission of a
murder, (2) the jury féund the defendant guilty of an
»'intentional and premeditated killing, and (3) the jury was
not instructed as to felony-murder. The State is unaware
of any case which, under such circumstances, holds that
the felony conviction merges with the first degree murder
conviction.
P In determining.tﬁe issue of merger, courts have
often employed three distinct tests in arriving at their
20 determination of the issue: the "same evidenqe' test, the
"lesser included offense" test, and the "same transaction"

test. State v. Thomas, 114 N.J. Super. 360, 364 (Law

Div.1971), mod. 61 N.J. 314 91972). However, our Suéseme

Court in State v. Carl Alexander Davis, __ N.J. __ (decided

June 10, 1975), once again reiterated its statement that
while "a distinct, non-mechanical standard for determining
the existence of the same‘or separate offenses would be

most desirable, we recognize the elusive character of that i 15

-98~




R AT e T Teaal it it ik a0 S - SRR —

1 goal gnd the probable futility of our efforts to achieve
its" Slip Opinion at P.12. The Court noted, however,

" As a practical matter, however,
it may be helpful to employ a certain
flexibility of approach to the inquiry
of whether separate offenses have been
established under the proofs, attended = -
by considerations of -'fairness—and the
£ UITilIment of reasonable expectations
At in the light of constitutional and common law
goals.' State v. Currie, 41 N.J. 531, 539
(1964) . Such an approach would entail an-
alysis of the evidence in terms of, among
other things, the time and place of each pur-
ported violation; whether the proof sub- #
mitted as to one count of the indictment
10 would be a neisggary ingredient to a conviction
under another «ount; whether one act was an
integral part of a larger scheme or episode;
the intent of the accused; and the consequences
of the criminal standards transgressed. Cer- g7
tainly there are other factors to be considered :
and, along with the above, accorded greater or
lesser weight depending on the circumstances
of the particular case.  We mean to emphasize
that by referring to these elements we do
not intend either to create exclusive cate-
gories of evidence which may be of critical
significance or to shroud the analytical
process in any mystery. In reality we are
simply reflecting, in the context of these
cases, on the traditional determination of
sufficiency of proofs." Slip Opinion at P,12-13.

In ghe present case, whi%g)the robbery occurred during ‘
20 the commission of the murder, and was thus close in time and
place to it, the evidence submitted to the jury concerning
the robbery was not a necessary ingredient to a conviction.
The.absence of a charge for robbery in this case would not
have prevented a conviction fﬁr.first degree murder. Clearly
the jury found malice on the defendant's part independent ;'7

of the robbery. Furthermore, the defendant intended to take

the trooper's revolver because of the need for a functioning




weapon in his subsequent attempt to escape apprehension.
.Itg use in killing Foerster was only incidental. As such,
the defendant not only had the intent to rob the revolver
for his own use, but also had the separate intent to kill
Foerster. Certainly under these circumstances the robbery
was not such an integral part of the murder that it should
merge into it. A

The defendant's reliance upon State v. Fitzsimmons,

60 N.J. Super. 230 (App.Div. 1960) is misplaced. In Fitzsimmons,
a police officer attempted to arrest the defendants 3nﬂ”~
became involved in a struggle with one of them. During the

struggle, the second defendant removed the officer's revolver

and killed him with it. Both defendants were indicted for
murder and convicted; during the case the only ground advanced
to ;upporé the charge was felony-murder. Subsequently,

both defendants were indicted for armed robbery. Howevef,

the chaggg was dismissed, since,

-4

"The conviction of the defendants for 4
murder under Indictment No. 467-57 is a bar
to further prosecution under Indictment No.
518-57. 'Where the accused may be con-
20 victed of a lesser offense included in
the greater laid in the indictment, an
acquittal or conviction of the greater
offense is on grounds of former jeopardy
a bar to a subsequent trial' for the
lesser offense.'" Id. at 233.

The State agrees completely with the holding in Fitzsimmons.

a
Because the prosecution of the murder charge was success-
fully predicated upon the felony-murder theory, to have
permitted the second indictment would have necessarily

°
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1 entailed a jury determination of the issue of robbery
on two separate occasions. Mefger of the fobbery into
the murder under such circumstances is thus apparent.

As previously noted, however, the present case
involves a far different situation than that found in
Fitzsimmons. Aécordingly, the State submits that the
conviction for robbery did not merge into the conviction

for first degree murder.*

10 -

*While the robbery and murder involved two separate acts,
their proximity in time and place might appear to be
relevant to the propriety of consecutive, as opposed to
concurrent sentences. Cf. State v. Jones, 66 N.J. 563
(1975) . However, the State submits that because of the
two separate and distinct intents involved, and because
the trial court realized the necessity of consecutive
sentences to insure adequate incarceration (See Point XII,
infra) the propriety of the separate convictions and the
appropriateness of the consecutive sentences 1mpcsed
should not be disturbed.

20
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_POINT XI

THE VERDICT WITH RESPECT TO THE CHARGES

OF ASSAULT AND ROBBERY WAS CONSISTENT

WITH THE WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE.

It is well setﬁled that a verdict will not be set
aside as being against the weight of the evidence unless
there is.a plain and obvious showing of a miscarriage of

justice. R. 2:10;1. In State v. Johnson, 42 N.J. 146, 161

(1964) , our Supreme Court set down certain broad principles
- " .

to assist a court in evaluating the evidence on review:
s
. "It is not our function in reviewing

the conviction in question to weig .

the evidence anew and to make igdég’d
pendent ‘findings of fact as if we were
sitting in first judgment-in the case.

Rather our obligation is to determine
‘whether there is adequate evidence

to support the judgment below. Citing

Je State v. Emery, 27 N.J. 348 (1958)."

These standards were more précisely set forth in Dolson V.

Anastasia, 55 N.J. 2, 7 (1969), wherein the Court stated:
"The rule might be more precisely
- stated as the trial judge shall grant
the motion, if, having given due
regard to the opportunity of the
jury to pass_upon the credibility of .
the witnesses, it clearly appears i
that there was a miscarriage of °¢
justice under- the law.
The standard governing an appellate
tribunal's review of a trial court's
action on a new trial motion is
essentially the same as that con-
trolling the trial judge. We say the
test is *'essentially the same', bgeause
where certain aspects are important --
" witness credibility, 'demeanor',
'feel of the case', or other criteria
which are not transmitted by a written
record --, the appellate court must
give deference to the views of the trial
judge thereon."




1 An examination of the record below compels the conclusion
that the jurors properly performed their function as triers
of fact. '

Initially, with respect to the charge qf armed robbery,
the defendant maintains that .;here was no evidence to demonstrate
an intent to steal. As previously indicated, the State presented

“sufficient evidence to establish a prima facie case as to the
robbery. See Point IX, supra. Without reiterating the relevant
facts, the'SFate submits that the use of the trooper's revolver

10 by the defendant, together with the subsequent asporéation of the
revolver from the scere, clearly psgdéﬁ%éd more than adequéte
evidence to support the verdict reached b& the jury.’ It cannot
fairiy be said that there was a miscarriage of justice.

Once the trial record is examined, the same conclusion
must be reached with respect to the various assault charges against

the defendant. As the trial court instructed the jury, the prose- ; :

cution did not maintain that the defendant was guilty of the

assaults against Trooper Harper as a principal. Rather, the theory

advanced was that he had aided and abetted their commission by

20 Chesimard and Costan. Thus, the jury was told that while an in-
dividual who had willfully and knowingly aided and abetted another
in the commission of a crime was equally guilty as a prin?ipal,
the individual must have shared the same intent rquired to be
proved-against the person who actually coﬁmitted the crime. There-"
fore, to constitute guilt, there had to be a community of purpose
and actual participation in the offense; the jury thus had to
evaluate the totality of the circumstances to determine.whether

the defendant had assented to the various assaults, "lent to it

B
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1 !}il countenance ;and approval and was thereby aiding and abet-
L3NG .0 " (277214-17 to 218-2; 27T247-24 to 250-16; 27T260-16
to 261-2; 27T272-17 to 275-9). As such, the court's instructions
properly and accurately'reflected tHe controlling principles on
aiding and abetting. See State v. Madden, 61 N.J. 377 (1972);

~State v. Mayberry, 52 N.J. 413 (1968); State v. Fair, 45 N.J. 77

(1965) ; State v. Humphreys, 101 N.J.Super. 539 (App.Div. 1968).

After defining the various elements of the four assault
counts, the court again reviewed the law on aiding and abetting,
10 cautioniqg the jury that the defendéﬂg,,to be found guilty, had
to have the same specific intent a; the principal committing the

assault. (27T224-14 to 225-3). Significantly, he also told the

jury, )

"it is not alleged that Mr. Squire

was the actual principal in any one

of these assaults, but what they do
allege is that he aided and abetted,
and they say that he aided and abet-
ted by averting Trooper Foerster: from
coming to the aid of Trooper Harper."
(277224-7 to 13). (Emphasis supplied).

This instruction was clearly relevant to the present

situation and was correct in its statement of the law. In State
20 i

v. Black, 86 N.J.L. 520 (Sup.Ct. 1914), defendant Curtis argued
that the court had erred in denying his motion for a judgment of
. acquittal. The court, in discussing the claim, stated:

" ... the ground upon which [the motion]
rested, as a legal proposition, is faulty.
It was not necessary that it should appear
| that Curtis had inflicted any injury upon
Van Etten in order that he may be found
guilty of an assault and battery. If he
in anywise aided, encouraged or abetted
the others he could be properly convicted

R -
.

.
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of an assault and battery. There was
some proof in the case which tended to
establish that Curtis prevented one
Warner from going to the assistance

of one Van Etten, while he, Van Etten,
was being assaulted. From this circum-
stance a jury might have reasonably
inferred that Curtis was aiding and
abetting the others in their assault
upon Van Etten." 1Id. at 522-523.

While it is impossible to re-create precisely the sequence

.of events which transpired that night, the evidence presented does

not even remotely subport an.inference that Foerster utilized any
force to restrain Ehe défendant. As fully presigggg-in Points
IIT and 1V, supra, the overwhelming evidence ¥éads inescapably
to the conclusion that the defendant, sen?ing the predicament
he and his comp;nions were in fellowing the shooting.ofNHarper,
immediately engaged in a struggle with Foerster. By doing so,
and subsequently incapacitating Foerster, the defendant clearly
prevented the trooper from going to the aid of Harper, who had
to battle Chesimard and Costan alone and wounded. From these
ag;}ons, the jury could logically conclude that the defendant had
aided the attempt by his two companions to [(ll Harper, and that
he had done so with the specific intent required for the various
offenses. Having intended to kill Foerster, the defendant would
certainly have had the same intent toward Harper.

‘Furthermote, the absence of an express conspiracy between
the defendant and his two companiéns is of no moment. Aiding{and
abetting does not presuppose the existence,of an agreement to com-

mit a cérime; rather, aiding and abetting has a broader application .

- making a defendant culpable,as a principal wgéﬁuuer‘he shares in a




s

Uy 1 criminal act with the necessary intent, regardless of the existence
’ .
- of a conspiracy. Pereira v. United States, 347 U.s. 1, 11-12

‘(1950); United States v. Valencia, 492.2.Zg=1071, 1073-1074

(9th Cir. 1974). Thus, the State submits that the evidence
presented at trial clearly demonstrates that the jury's verdict g

was justified and proper as to the assault on Trobper'Harper.
' 4

10 __ o

20
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POINT XII

THE SENTENCE IMPOSED WAS PROPER.

In addition to the mandatory life imprisofmernt term

given the defendant with respect to the first degree'murder

conviction, the sentencing court imposed consecutive terms of

10 to 12 years on Count VI (assault with intent to kill), two

to three years on Count VII (possession of a'gun without a

permit), and 12 tp 15 years on Count VIII (armed robbery) .

Counts III, Iv and V were found to merge with Count H!”’The

defendant maintains that considering the consecutive nature of

the sentences, the court's imposition of sentence was manifestly

excessive and unduly punitive. The State respectfully disagrees.
Although the appellate court has the power to revise

this sentence, State v. Bess, 53 N.J. 10, 18 (1968), it is

well established that the sehtencing judge has broad discretion

as to the guantum of the sentence, as long as it is within the

R
statutory limits. State v. Yormark, 117 N.J.Super. 318 (App.Div.

1971), certif. den. 60 N.J. 138 (1972), cert. den. 407 U.S. 925

(1972) ; State v. Provoid, 110 N.J.Super. 547, 559 (App.Div.

1970). It is defendant's burden to prove that the sentence
was unduly punitive before the reviewing court can interfere
with it. State vl,Tyson; 43 N.J. 411, 417 (1964), cert. den.
380 U.s. 987 (1965); State v. Cox, 101 N.J.Super. 479, 475

(App.Div. 1968), certif. den. 53 N.J. 510 (1969).

The defendant offers ligtle to show that the sentencing

court abused its discretion. The reason for this is obvious -- there
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is little to offer in his behAlf. The killinq of Trooper
Foerster represented a senseless and savage taking of one's
life, under circumstances which serve only to further illuminate

the heinous nature of the crime. The death of Foerster is

_further compounded by the injuries suffered by Troobper Harper;

it is tiuly fortunate that more individuals, both police officers
and.;assing motorists, did not fall prey to the shooting spree
which erupted that night.

Nor is there anything in the history or character
of the defendant‘to suggest that the sentence is unwarranted.
Rather, the reverse is true. As noted in the pred%ntence report;
the defendant refused to cooperate with probation officials,
feeling that it would be "a futile‘effort." (PSR at 2). Further-
more, although not complete, the presentence report indicates
prior trouble with the law.

When sentencing a defendant to consecutive terms on
a series of offenses arising out of a single episode, the court
eva{yates the seriousness of the offenses and determines thé

aggregate penalty warranted by the occurrence. The court con-

siders the,defendant's past history and probability for rehabilitation

as well as the need for detention of the defendant in order to
protect society. State v. Ivan, 33 N.J. 197 (1960). The court
then allocates this guantum of punishment with respect to the

various offenses. State v. Quatro, 33 N.J.Super. 333 (App.Div.

1954), aff'd o.b. 18 N.J. 201 (1955); State v. Barbato, 89

N.J.Super. 400, 411 (Cty.Ct. 1965). Thus, the present situation
{
involves the impd&ition of consecutive sentences as part of a

pattern of punishment and rehabilitation.
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In evaluating the relevant circumstances, the sentencing
court felt that the prevailing consideration was not rehabilitation,

but rather the protection of society from further danger. As the

court aptly stated:

I must sentence this man to life.
< But life, as we all know, under our laws
is not really life. 1It's a matter of
.being eligible for parole in fourteen
years.

‘ And in all circumstances of this* 3
case, this Court does not consider that
to be sufficient sentence.

The Court feels that whe meone
comes before me, an avowed reévolution-
ary, and impliedly advocates the-con-
tinued violence against police officers,
whether they be white or black, that the
only thing this Court can do to protect
the world from such activities is to place
the man in prison.

I appreciate and I agree wlh Counsel
there's no question of rehabilitation
involved here. The Court feels there's
very little rehabilitation done in ‘prison,
anyway.

The Court does owe an obligation to
society, to all members of society,
when somebody is advocating violence,
feels that it must protect society.
(TS40~-3 to 24).

* * *

Please note that in a couple of
instances they are not maximum sentences. e
The Court is giving some consideration to 'aﬁﬁ
the arguments of Counsel and the state- L
ments of Mr. Squire. (TS41-10 to 13).

Clearly, the sentences imposed in this case represented
- v SO —— B
a punishment which fit both the offender as well as the oftgnsé.
The court wisely exercised his sentencing discretion; the result was

a proper sentence which shoul& not be disturbed.




CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the State respect-

: fully submits that the conviction and sentence imposed

ibelow be affirmed. ﬁ:P;
Respectfully submitted,

~
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" i{ndictment, that is Indictment 1436-72.

_ he has indicated to me he has spcken to Mr. Squire

“THE COURT: I will hear counsel.

R, ASHLEY: If it plea&é the Court, this is an
application of the firm of Brown, Vogelman & Ashley,
Thomas R.'Ashley appearing, to have admitted,
pro has vice, for the purpose of trying the case of
State v. Clark Edward Squire a/k/a James Henry
Walker, and ;/k/a Archie Gibson. Your Honor, for

the purpose of the record, I am reading from the

Your Honor, 1f.it paeasé the Court, Mr. McKinney
was adnitted to the New York Bar in 1956, and
presently has his law offices at 32 Court Street in
Brooklyn.

I have spoken to Mr. McKinney, your Honor, and
and it is Mr. Squire} ifitention, a;d he has already
rec&inud Mr. McKinney for the purposé of trying
this case,

So the record can be clear, your Honor, my
cffice, Mr. Brown appeared and I was present at the
time, moved the admission of Mrs. Evelyn Williams
Pro hac vice, too. At that time the understanding
was,Ain the cvent ¥rs. Williams chose, for whatever
reason, or the Court choge that Mrs. Williahs should

notw be involved in the case any lon;er, that -7

.
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‘Mr. Brown, or my office, would undertake the obligat-

ion of.crying the case with or without her presence.
I submit to the Court that the same understanding
applies in this instance.
'Cercainly I don't anticipate in aﬁy way that

there will be any problem which w;dld result in
Mr. Charles McKinney not being able to try the case
on tchalf of !Mr. Squire. I submit te the Court that
Mr. Brown and I have been ipv6lved in other cases
where he has represented one defendant and’ I have
represented-another defendant., In the event that an
eventuality does create itself, certainly my office
is willing to undertake the obligation of having
myself defend lMr. Squire and having lir. Brown defend
‘fiss Chesimard.

I also should say for the record, your Honor,
I have not consulted with Mr, Squire, I have never
met the man, but I submit in the event that -there is
this emergent situation my office will undé;takg the
obligaticn which I have alrcady expressed to the .
Court, So I don't think there will be any problem,
your Honor;

T wonld ask, very respectfully, that thclcourt
srant“my motion recquesting that Mr. YcKinney be

permitted pro hac vice to represent Mr, Squire,

SERUEEEETS I PRERSEIARSSUISE S
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‘the trial and serve, in a sense, as chief trial

THE COURT: You intend to actually take over in
J

attorney for Mr. Squire?

HRa MC KINNET: That is my intention, your Honor

THE COURT: You are in'good standing berore'§he
New York Bar? et ' 5

MR. MC KINNET: I am, ey

THE COURT: “And a member of the New York Bar?

MR, MC KINNEY:, K I am, sir:";In addition, I am
also a member of the Bar dffghé United States
Sﬁprcmc Court and several District Courts of the
United States District Court.

THE COURT: The Court will grant the motion.
You will submit the Order, along with a certificate
of good stand%ng. I would ask counsel to furnich :
the Court with such a cer;ificate in gegérd.to
Mrs, ¥Williams who appeared here a few weeks agoe.

MR. ASHLEY: I will, your Honor. Thank yﬁu

_very much,

‘MR. MC KINNEY: I might_say, your Honor, since
#r. Ashley inserted in the record that he has nqb
consulted with my client, Mr. Squire, nevertheless

I have conferred with him on at lecast two occasions
< -

and hé is aware of the fact that I have rqqueste@ of}

M. Ashley that ho serve as local coungel in this cape |
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SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
APPELLATE DIVISION
DOCKET NO. A-1882-73

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, H
% Plaintiff-Respondent, : Criminal Action

V. H ORDER RELAXING THE PAGE
LIMITATION OF R.2:6-7

CLARK E. SQUIRE,

Defendant-Appellant. : . ;

e

This matter being opened to the Court by the
10 :
verified petition of William Welaj, Deputy Attorney General,

attorney for plaintiff-respondent, and for good cause shown

as set forth in the annexed petition, .
1€ is on this /5 Taay of W/, 1975
ORDERED that the page limitation of R.2:6-7 be and
h,;eby is relaxed to permlt the filing. of respondent's brief

not to excecd~1f\\5ages.

For the Court

(o G QW/L

20 . P.J.A.D.

| hereby certify that the foregoing
- a true copy of th oiginal on file
ne ., office.

/
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